
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
 

 CITY COUNCIL 
AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE  

SAN FERNANDO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

MONDAY, JULY 18, 2022 - 6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 
TELECONFERENCE – PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF ASSEMBLY BILL 361 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS 

WATCH THE MEETING: 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON: 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL: 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting. 

SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING COVID-19

NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE: Pursuant to Adopted Resolution No. 8098 by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
effective January 12, 2022, the City of San Fernando’s Legislative Bodies may participate via teleconference and/or video 
in Accordance with Government Code Section 54953 as permitted under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 1 of 207

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – July 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 5

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING: 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 

Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 

Passcode:  924965 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  

PRESENTATIONS 

A. AN INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION FROM LOS ANGELES COUNTY METROPOLITAN
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (METRO) UPDATING PROGRESS ON THE EAST SAN FERNANDO
VALLEY TRANSIT CORRIDOR RIGHT-OF-WAY STUDY

DECORUM AND ORDER 

The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 2 of 207



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – July 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 5

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda. Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council and read into 
the record.  

Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be disposed of by a single motion 
to adopt staff recommendation. If the City Council wishes to discuss any item, it should first be 
removed from the Consent Calendar. 

1) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE WARRANT REGISTER

Recommend that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-072 approving the Warrant
Register.

2) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A SPECIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH LIEBERT CASSIDY
WHITMORE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve an Agreement for Special Services (Contract No. 2087) with the law firm of
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore;  and

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents.

3) CONSIDERATION TO APPROVE A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY
AND ONEGENERATION TO IMPLEMENT THE ELDERLY NUTRITION PROGRAM

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (Contract No. 2088) between the City and
ONEgeneration to implement the Elderly Nutrition Program; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related
documents.

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 3 of 207

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – July 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 5

 

 

4) CONSIDERATION TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 1711 ADOPTING A MILITARY EQUIPMENT 
POLICY GOVERNING THE USE OF MILITARY EQUIPMENT PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 481 
 
Recommend that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1711, that was introduced for first 
reading at the City Council meeting of July 5, 2022, in title only and waive further reading, 
approving the ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, 
California, adopting a Military Equipment Policy, governing the use of military equipment 
pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.” 

 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
5) A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 

PLACEMENT OF LIENS ON REAL PROPERTY FOR NON-PAYMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AND 
COMMERCIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES BILLINGS 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 

 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing; and  

 
b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8169 authorizing the placement of a lien 

against real property as a special assessment on property tax bills for the collection of 
delinquent solid waste billings. 

 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
6) CONSIDERATION AND DISCUSSION REGARDING THE COMMUNITY OUTREACH CONDUCTED 

BY AZURE DEVELOPMENT, INC. FOR POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS ON PUBLIC 
PARKING LOT NO. 3 AND THE RELATED EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATION AGREEMENT 
 
Recommend that the City Council: 
 
a. Receive and file an update on community outreach from Azure Development, Inc. for 

potential development options on Public Parking Lot No. 3; and 
 

b. Provide direction related to the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement.  
    

 

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 
 
 

 
  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 4 of 207



SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL/SUCCESSOR AGENCY 
Regular Meeting Notice and Agenda – July 18, 2022 
Page 5 of 5

 

 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 
 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting.  
 
 
________________________________________ 

Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted:  July 14, 2022 (5:00 p.m.)  

 

The Regular Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando also serves  as concurrent Regular Meeting s of the Successor Agency to the 
San Fernando Redevelopment Agency, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of the Members of the City Council.    
 

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s `Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 5 of 207

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 6 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 7 of 207



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 8 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 9 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 10 of 207



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 

By: Sonia Gomez-Garcia, Interim Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  July 18, 2022    
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt a Resolution Approving the Warrant Register 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 22-072 (Attachment “A”) approving 
the Warrant Register. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

For each City Council meeting the Finance Department prepares a Warrant Register for Council 
approval.  The Register includes all recommended payments for the City. Checks, other than 
special checks, generally are not released until after the Council approves the Register.  The 
exceptions are for early releases to avoid penalties and interest, excessive delays and in all other 
circumstances favorable to the City to do so.  Special checks are those payments required to be 
issued between Council meetings such as insurance premiums and tax deposits.  Staff reviews 
requests for expenditures for budgetary approval and then prepares a Warrant Register for 
Council approval and or ratification.  Items such as payroll withholding tax deposits do not require 
budget approval. 
 
The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that all requests for expenditures have 
been signed by the department head, or designee, receiving the merchandise or services thereby 
stating that the items or services have been received and that the resulting expenditure is 
appropriate.  The Director of Finance/City Treasurer hereby certifies that each warrant has been 
reviewed for completeness and that sufficient funds are available for payment of the warrant 
register. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Resolution No. 22-072, including: 
Exhibit A: Payment Demands/Voucher List 

ANill 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 11 of 207



ATTACHMENT “A” 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-072 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ALLOWING AND APPROVING FOR PAYMENT DEMANDS 
PRESENTED ON DEMAND/ WARRANT REGISTER NO.  22-071 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE 
AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1.  That the Payment Demands/Voucher List (EXHIBIT “A”) as presented, having been duly 
audited, for completeness, are hereby allowed and approved for payment in the amounts as 
shown to designated payees and charged to the appropriate funds as indicated. 
 

2.  That the City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution and deliver it to the 
City Treasurer. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 18th day of July 2022. 
 
  
                 

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of        
      San Fernando, California                                

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 12 of 207



RES. NO. 22-072 

2 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-072 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
18th day of July, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this ______ day of ___________, _______.  

 
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 13 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 14 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 15 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 16 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 17 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 18 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 19 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 20 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 21 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 22 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 23 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 24 of 207



SPECIAL CHECK
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 25 of 207



SPECIAL CHECK
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 26 of 207



SPECIAL CHECK EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 27 of 207



SPECIAL CHECKS
EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 28 of 207



SPECIAL CHECKS EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 29 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 30 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 31 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 32 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 33 of 207



EXHIBIT "A"
RES. NO. 22-072

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 34 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 35 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 36 of 207



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1202                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Michael E. Okafor, Personnel Manager 
   
Date:  July 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Approve a Special Services Agreement with Liebert Cassidy 

Whitmore for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve an Agreement for Special Services (Attachment “A” - Contract No. 2087) with the 

law firm of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW);  and 
 

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents.  
 
 

BACKGROUND: 

1. Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) is a law firm specializing in California labor and employment 
law since 1980. LCW has offices in Los Angeles, San Diego, Fresno, San Francisco, and 
Sacramento, and employs 85 staff attorneys. 
 

2. On December 2, 2013, subsequent to a lengthy Request for Proposal process, the City Council 
approved an Agreement for Special Services with LCW to provide Labor and Employment 
Legal Services. 

 
3. On or about July of each Fiscal Year since FY 2013-2014, the City Council has approved the 

renewal of the Agreement for Special Services with LCW respectively.  
 

4. On June 19, 2021, the City Council approved a renewal of the Agreement for Special Services 
with LCW for FY 2021-2022. 

 

ANALYSIS: 

LCW has over 30 years of extensive experience representing public agencies in California strictly 
in the area of employment law and labor relations. The firm is well respected, and currently 

ANill 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 37 of 207



Consideration to Approve a Special Services Agreement with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore for Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
serves about 80% of California cities, 90% of California counties, 80% of California’s community 
college districts, and numerous special districts and schools.   
 
Over the years, through its San Gabriel Valley Employment Relations Consortium, the firm has 
provided relevant training on a wide variety of topics to unlimited number of City employees at 
a reasonable flat fee.  In FY 2021-2022, about 40 City employees participated in workshops and 
training provided by LCW.  All workshops and training for FY 2021-2022 were provided virtually 
via zoom, while for FY 2022-2023, a mixture of virtual and in-person workshops will be provided. 
There will be three full days of in-person training and two full days of virtual training (split 
between 4 half days).  
 
If approved, the proposed special services agreement will be for one-year, from July 1, 2022 
through June 30, 2023, and will include the provision of the following services: 
 
• Five full days of group training workshops for unlimited number of City designated attendees 

(in-person or via webinars), covering the following employment relations topics: “Finding the 
Facts: Employee Misconduct & Disciplinary Investigations,” “Difficult Conversations,” “A 
Guide to Implementing Public Employee Discipline,” “Supervisor’s Guide to Public Sector 
Employment Law,” “Moving into the Future: Telecommuting and Remote Work,”  
“Maximizing Performance Through Documentation, Evaluation, and Corrective Action,” 
“Human Resources Academy,” “Public Sector Employment Law Update,” and “Leaves, Leaves 
and More Leaves.”   
 

• Availability of Attorneys for City to consult by telephone.  Questions that the attorneys can 
answer with limited research or review of documents are covered by this service.   
 

• Monthly newsletter and training materials covering employment relations developments. 
 
LCW will provide the above services to the City for a flat fee of $3,355 if paid on or prior to August 
1, 2022.  If paid after August 1, 2022, a late fee of $100 will be added.  The flat fee covers the 
provision of the aforementioned group training workshops and materials to unlimited number of 
employees, as well as yearlong telephonic consultations with attorneys.   
 
Provision of the nine workshops listed above at this flat rate amounts to major savings for the 
City when compared to the typical cost of offering employee workshops.  Typically, a three-hour, 
half-day group workshop session for one training topic ranges from $3,500 to $4,500.  
 
This agreement does not include additional services such as representation, litigation, and other 
employment relations services that may require in-depth research, for which the City will be 
billed based on the hourly rates for attorney time.  LCW’s hourly rate ranges from $210 to $390 
per hour for partners and associates, depending on the specific attorney used.   
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 38 of 207



Consideration to Approve a Special Services Agreement with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore for Fiscal Year 
2022-2023 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

The flat fee of $3,355 for Labor Attorney Services is included in the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Adopted 
Budget (001-112-0000-4270). 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

Approval of the Agreement for Special Services with LCW is necessary to enable the City take 
advantage of the special benefits available to all participating member cities of the San Gabriel 
Valley Employment Relations Consortium, including the nine scheduled workshops, training 
materials, consultation and related resources.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

A. Contract No. 2087 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 39 of 207



AGREEMENT FOR SPECIAL SERVICES 

ATTACHMENT "A" 

CONTRACT NO.   2087

This Agreement is entered into between the City of San Fernando, A Municipal Corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as "Agency," and the law firm of LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE, A Professional Corporation, 
hereinafter referred to as "Attorney." 

WHEREAS Agency has the need to secure expert training and consulting services to assist Agency 111 its 
workforce management and employee relations; and 

WHEREAS Agency has determined that no less than twenty-one (2 l )  public agencies in the San Gabriel 
Valley area have the same need and have agreed to enter into identical agreements with Attorney; and 

WHEREAS Attorney is specially experienced and qualified to perform the special services desired by the 
Agency and is willing to perform such services; 

NO\V, THEREFORE, Agency and ;\ttorney agree ns follows: 

Attorney's Services: 

During the year beginning July I, 2022, Attorney vvill provide the following services to Agency (and the other 
aforesaid public agencies): 

1. Five (5) days of group training workshops covering such employment relations subjects as management rights
and obligations, negotiation strategies, employment discrimination and affirmative action, employment
relations from the perspective of elected officials, performance evaluation (administering evaluations),
grievance and discipline administration for supervisors and managers, planning for and responding to 
concerted job actions, current court, administrative and legislative developments in personnel administration
and employment relations, etc., with the specific subjects covered and lengths of individual workshop
presentations to be determined by Agency and the other said local agencies.

It is expressly understood that the material used during these presentations, including written handouts and
projected power points are provided solely for the contracted workshops. This agreement warrants there will
be no future use of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore material in other trainings or formats without the expressed
written permission of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore. Any such use will constitute a violation of this agreement
and copyright provisions.

2. Availability of Attorney for Agency to consult by telephone. Consortium calls cover questions that the
attorney can answer quickly with little research. They do not include the review of documents, in depth
research, written responses (like an opinion letter) or advice on on-going legal matters. The caller will be
informed if the question exceeds the scope of consortium calls. Should the caller request, the attorney can
assist on items that fall outside the service, but these matters will be billed at the attorney's hourly rate. (See
additional services section.)

3. Providing of a monthly newsletter covering employment relations developments.

Attorney will provide these special services to Agency for a fee of Three Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Five 
Dollars ($3,355.00) payable in one payment prior to August J, 2022. The fee, if paid after August I, 2022 will be 
$3,455.00. 

IO 120989.1 ER020-015 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 40 of 207



Contract No. 2087
SA180 

Said fee will cover Attorney's time in providing said training and consultative services and the development 
and printing of written materials provided to attendees at the training programs. 

Additional Services: 

Attorney shall, as and when requested by Agency, make itself available to Agency to provide representational, 
litigation, and other employment relations services. The Agency wj!i be billed for the actual time such representation 
serv ices are rendered, including reasonab le travel time, plus any necessary costs and expenses authorized by the 
Agency. 

The range of hourly rates for Attorney time is from Two Hundred Forty to Four Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars 
($240.00 - $425.00) per hour for attorney staff, Two Hundred Seventy Dollars ($270.00) per hour for Labor 
Relations/HR Consultant and from One Hundred Forty-Five to One Hundred Eighty-Five Dollars ($145.00 - $185.00) 
per hour for services provided by paraprofessional and litigation support staff Attorneys, paraprofessional and 
I itigation support staff bill their time in minimum units of one-tenth of an bour. Attorney reviews its hourly rates on an 
annual ba:. is and if approprir..te, adjusts them effective July 1. 

Independent Contractor: 

1t is understood and agreed that Attorney is and shall remain an independent contractor under this Agreement. 

Term: 

The term of this Agreement is twelve (12) months commencing July 1, 2022. The term may be extended for 
additional periods ohime by the written consent of the parties. 

Condition Precedent: 

It is understood and agreed that the parties' aforesaid rights and obligations are contingent on no less than 
twenty-one (21) local agency employers entering into a substantially identical Agreement with Attorney on or about 
July I , 2022. 

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE 
A Professional Corporation 

By: 

Date : ---'-~---1--'~'--?-"-+-) -7 z.,,,-____ _ 

I O 120989. I ER020-0 15 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 
A Municipal Corporation 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 41 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 42 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 43 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally 

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 44 of 207



 

AGENDA REPORT 

RECREATION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT       208 PARK AVENUE, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1290       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 

From: Nick Kimball, City Manager 
By: Julian J. Venegas, Director of Recreation and Community Services 

Juan Salas, Recreation and Community Services Supervisor 

Date: July 18, 2022 

Subject: Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City and 
ONEgeneration to Implement the Elderly Nutrition Program 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

a. Approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) (Attachment “A” – Contract No. 2088)
between the City and ONEgeneration to implement the Elderly Nutrition Program; and

b. Authorize the City Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute all related
documents.

BACKGROUND: 

1. From July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2017, the City operated the Elderly Nutrition Program
(ENP) at Las Palmas Park as a sub-recipient of grant funds from the Los Angeles County
Department of Workforce Development and Community Services (WDACS).

2. On June 5, 2017, WDACS notified the City that the YWCA of San Gabriel Valley would be the
new ENP sub-recipient to conduct the ENP program for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018.

3. On July 1, 2017, the YWCA of San Gabriel Valley assumed all responsibility for and
implementation of the ENP at Las Palmas Park.

4. In December 2021, the WDACS re-districting of the ENP service areas affected YWCA of San
Gabriel Valley's ability to provide congregate meals and home-delivered meals for San
Fernando residents.

5. On July 1, 2022, WDACS announced that ONEgeneration was the eligible service provider in
the San Fernando Valley and the new ENP sub-recipient beginning in Fiscal Year 2022-2023.

ANill 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 45 of 207



Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City and ONEgeneration to 
Implement the Elderly Nutrition Program 
Page 2 of 3 

ANALYSIS: 

ONEgeneration is currently providing ENP services to San Fernando residents and the 
surrounding communities. The ENP services include two nutritional programs to provide 
nutritious daily meals and prevent social isolation among older adults.  

1. The Congregate Meals program takes place in the Las Palmas Park Banquet Room,
Monday through Friday, between the hours of 10:30 am and 1:00 pm. It is currently
conducted as a “Grab’n Go” packaged meal during July 2022.

2. The Home-Delivered Meals program is designed to serve homebound seniors who are
frail due to illness or may have a physical limitation that prevents them from leaving their
homes. This program is also conducted Monday through Friday, between 11:30 am and
1:00 pm.

The ENP meal service is a great safety net for the City of San Fernando senior community and for 
some participants the ENP meal is the only hot meal they have all day. In FY 2018-2019 (prior to 
COVID), approximately 11,700 congregate meals were served out of Las Palmas Park, and another 
8,320 meals were delivered to homebound senior residents. Currently, there are 24 seniors 
enrolled in the Home Delivered Meals program. ONEgeneration has the capacity to increase the 
Home Delivered Meal participants by utilizing its webpage (ONEgeneration.org/Homebound-
Meals) to promote the program.  In addition, RCS staff will conduct a community outreach 
campaign to inform seniors of the program to increase participation.   

Through the ENP program, meals are prepared off-site by a third-party food vendor contracted 
by ONEgeneration and is dispensed during the Congregate Meals program at Las Palmas Park or 
packaged for the Home Delivered Meals program. All meals are prepared under the supervision 
of the WDACS staff and follow strict USDA-approved dietary guidelines for seniors. There is a 
ONEgeneration staff member who manages the Las Palmas Park site and several volunteers that 
help implement the program. 

Individuals age 60 or older are eligible to participate in the ENP program. Spouses who are not 
yet 60 years old may participate in the programs as long as they are registered with 
ONEgeneration as such. The program is free, but donations are accepted to help offset the cost 
of running the program. All money collected through donation is handled by ONEgeneration 
staff. 

The City’s responsibility through the MOU is to provide adequate space to conduct both the 
Congregate Meal program and the Home Delivered Meal program, maintain the facility in 
working order to pass a Food Vendor Health Inspection, and coordinate special event meals with 
ONEgeneration to account for participants’ eligibility. The proposed MOU with ONEgeneration 
will ensure proper access to the Las Palmas Park Banquet Room, the kitchen area to plate 
distribute meals, and an office for the site manager to perform the administrative tasks 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 46 of 207

https://www.onegeneration.org/homebound-meals/
https://www.onegeneration.org/homebound-meals/


Consideration to Approve a Memorandum of Understanding Between the City and ONEgeneration to 
Implement the Elderly Nutrition Program 
Page 3 of 3 

associated with the program. 

ONEgeneration’s responsibility through the MOU is to conduct all aspects of the ENP program, 
designate a site manager to supervise the day-to-day operation, support staff and volunteers, 
provide the labor and supplies required to implement the ENP services, coordinate with City 
staff on special event meals, and provide the City with data on the number of residents and non-
residents served. 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The MOU provides for waiving of all facility use fees during normal business hours, which may 
result in loss of future revenue from customers that may otherwise want to rent the space. 
However, there is currently very limited demand for renting the space during the hours that 
ONEgeneration is proposing to provide services. Additionally, in exchange for use of the facilities, 
the City will benefit from valuable social network programs such as Telephone Reassurance and 
Case Management provided by ONEgeneration at no cost to the community through the MOU.  

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council approve the MOU (Attachment “A”- Contract No. 2088) 
with ONEgeneration to use City Las Palmas Park facilities to implement the Elderly Nutrition 
Program and services for seniors and authorize the City Manager to execute the MOU. 

ATTACHMENT: 

A. Contract No. 2088, including:
Exhibit A:   Facility Usage Log
Exhibit B:   Rental and Usage Terms
Exhibit C:   Liability Sample
Exhibit D:   Scope of Services

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 47 of 207



ATTACHMENT “A” 
CONTRACT NO. 2088 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN CITY OF SAN FERNANDO AND ONEGENERATION 

FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ELDERLY NUTRITION PROGRAM  
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) is made and 
entered into as of July 18, 2022 (hereinafter, the “Effective Date”) by and between the CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO, a California municipal corporation (hereinafter, the “CITY”), and 
ONEGENERATION, a non-profit organization (hereinafter, “PARTNER”) for the implementation of 
the Elderly Nutrition Program at Las Palmas Park. For the purpose of this Agreement, CITY and 
PARTNER may be referred to collectively by the capitalized term “Parties.” The capitalized term 
“Party” may refer to the CITY or PARTNER interchangeably as appropriate.    

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, PARTNER is a 501 (C) (3) non-profit organization committed to providing 
women, girls, seniors, and their families with information and services they need to manage 
critical issues in their lives. PARTNER’s Mission is to eliminate racism, empower women, and 
promote peace, justice, freedom, and dignity for all, and 

WHEREAS, PARTNER contracts with the County Los Angeles Workforce Development 
Aging and Community Services Department to provide Elderly Nutrition Program (ENP) services 
for communities in and around the City of San Fernando, and 

  WHEREAS, PARTNER provides ENP services that include a Congregate Meals program for 
mobile older adults age 60 or older and a Home-Delivered Meals program for home-bound and 
frail individuals. Both programs provide a USDA approved meal, meeting the dietary guidelines 
for seniors.   

WHEREAS, the Congregate Meals and Home-Delivered Meals programs are designed to 
maintain, improve the physical and social well-being of mobile older adults, and provide a 
mechanism to check up on the safety and well-being of home-bound seniors, and 

WHEREAS, PARTNER may also provide Social Services such as Telephone Reassurance, 
and Case Management on a as needed bases by residences; and 

WHEREAS, the CITY owns and operates Las Palmas Park, located at 505 Huntington Street, 
San Fernando, California (hereinafter the “FACILITY”). 

WHEREAS, PARTNER desires to use the FACILITY to conduct the ENP services for residents 
of the City of San Fernando and neighboring communities. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 48 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

2 

WHEREAS, PARTNER has requested the use of indoor space during normal business hours; 
and 

WHEREAS, the CITY is willing to provide access to the FACILITY, upon the terms, 
provisions, and conditions hereinafter set forth; and 

WHEREAS, the terms of this Agreement were approved by the City Council of the City of 

San Fernando at its Regular Meeting of July 18, 2022. 

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and 
promises contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the CITY 
and PARTNER hereby agree as follows: 

1. FACILITY.  

1.1. Availability for PARTNER’ Use.  Except as otherwise provided herein, PARTNER 
shall have a non-exclusive license to use the FACILITY for the purposes of conducting ENP services 
and activities for a period of five (5) years commencing from the Effective Date of this Agreement.  

1.2. The CITY shall provide PARTNER access to Banquet Room, Kitchen, Office Space, 
and storage at the FACILITY for the ENP program.  The CITY will also reserve parking at Las Palmas 
Park (one stall) and at the City Yard (two stalls) for the ENP vehicles.  The use of the FACILITY and 
parking shall be based upon the mutually agreed times set forth in the Facility Usage Log 
contained in Exhibit “A”, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
While using the FACILITY, PARTNER agrees to allow the CITY to move the ENP program to other 
available rooms for the sake of accommodating other programming or events.  PARTNER’ right 
of access and use to the FACILITY shall be non-exclusive and shall at all times be subordinate and 
subject to the CITY’s ownership rights in the FACILITY and the underlying real property where the 
Facility is located. 

1.3  The CITY shall provide PARTNER access to the FACILITY on a weekly basis for 
PARTNER sponsored programming set forth in the Facility Usage Log (Exhibit “A”) without 
programming overlap. The FACILITY is subject to availability of dates and times as determined by 
the CITY in its sole and absolute discretion.  All programming shall be scheduled during regular 
business hours. Rental Fees and Staff Time will be applied should PARTNER programming is 
scheduled during non-business hours. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 49 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

3 

1.4 PARTNER will adhere to all Facility rules, including but not limited to the Rental 
and Usage Terms set forth in Exhibit “B”, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference.  

1.5 PARTNER will provide the CITY with a schedule of activities as soon as reasonably 
possible but in no event later than seven (7) days prior to the first day of programming. 

1.6 PARTNER shall report the number of ENP participants served on a monthly basis.  
The report shall include demographic (Age, Gender, Race, Marital Status, etc.) information for 
both the Congregate Meals, the Home-Delivered Meals and other Social Services programs. 

1.7 PARTNER participants will register with the CITY through the Department of 
Recreation and Community Services and complete the Registration Waiver prior to participation 
in any sponsored PARTNER program or activities. 

2. LIABILITY & INDEMNIFICATION. 

2.1 PARTNER agrees to be financially responsible for all destruction of, damage to, or 
unnecessary abuse of the FACILITY and CITY’s buildings, grounds or equipment in any way arising 
out of the use or occupancy thereof by PARTNER. 

2.2 PARTNER agrees to indemnify and hold harmless without limit the CITY, and its 
officers, agents, employees, and elected and appointed officials, from and against any and all 
liability, claims, demands, damages, fines, fees, expenses, penalties, suits, proceedings, actions 
and costs of actions, including attorney’s fees for trial and on appeal, of any kind arising or 
growing out of or in any way connected with the performance of this Agreement, caused by any 
act or omission of PARTNER, its agents, servants, employees, clients, guests or invitees, or 
because of or due to the mere existence of the Agreement between the parties. 

2.3 Prior to the beginning of the partnership, PARTNER shall also require all of its 
instructors and participants to submit properly executed individual waivers containing similar 
indemnifications listed in 2.1 holding the CITY and its officials and employees harmless from any 
liability associated with their use of the FACILITY.   Refer to Exhibit “C” for liability sample, which 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

2.4 The provisions of this Section, shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, for a period of three years. 

3. INSURANCE. 

3.1 Coverage.  PARTNER shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry, 
maintain, and keep in full force and effect, the insurance listed below: 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 50 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

4 

A. PARTNER shall obtain and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, comprehensive 
public liability and property damage coverage, insuring against claims for injuries 
to persons and property occurring in, upon or about the FACILITY that has a limit 
of liability, per occurrence and aggregate, of not less than Two Million Dollars ($ 
2,000,000) for injuries to person or persons, and not less than One Million Dollars 
($ 1,000,000) for property damage.  Such coverage shall (a) name the CITY as an 
additional insured,  (b) contain a provision that the policy will not be canceled 
without at least thirty (30) days prior notice to the CITY, (c) provide that coverage 
afforded thereby will be primary and that any coverage carried by the CITY shall 
be noncontributing with respect thereto, and (d) contain a waiver of any right of 
subrogation against the CITY that arises, or might arise, by reason of any payment 
under such policy or by reason of any act or omission of the CITY.   

B. PARTNER agrees that if it does not keep the insurance required in this Agreement 
in full force and effect, the CITY may either immediately terminate this Agreement 
or, if insurance is available at a reasonable cost, after reasonable notice to 
PARTNER, the CITY may take out the necessary insurance and pay, at PARTNER’s 
expense, the premium thereon. 

3.2 Certificate.  PARTNER shall supply the CITY with a Certificate of Insurance as a 
precondition to commencing any activities at the FACILITY. 

3.3 Waiver.  PARTNER waives any and all rights of recovery against the CITY for loss 
of, or damage to, PARTNER’ property or the property of others under PARTNER’ control, where 
such loss or damage is insured against under any insurance policy in force at the time of such loss 
or damage.  PARTNER shall, upon obtaining any policies of insurance affecting the FACILITY, give 
notice to the insurer that the foregoing mutual waiver of subrogation is contained in this 
Agreement. 

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement and the license rights set forth herein 
shall be Five (5) years, commencing from the Effective Date and ending on June 30, 2027.  Nothing 
in this Section shall operate to prohibit or otherwise restrict the Parties’ ability to terminate this 
Agreement earlier set forth in Section 5 of this Agreement. 

5. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.  

5.1 Termination Without Cause.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement without 
cause by providing thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party.   

5.2       Termination with Cause; Events of Default; Breach of Agreement. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 51 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

5 

A. In the event either Party fails to adhere to any term or condition set forth under 
this Agreement, including those set forth in Exhibits “A”, “B”, “C” and “D” (or fails 
to timely perform or properly perform any such duty, obligation, or task set forth 
under this Agreement), an event of default (hereinafter, “Event of Default”) shall 
occur.  For all Events of Default, the Party alleging an Event of Default shall give 
written notice to the defaulting Party (hereinafter referred to as a “Default 
Notice”) which shall specify: (i)  the nature of the Event of Default; (ii) the action 
required to cure the Event of Default; (iii) a date by which the Event of Default 
shall be cured, which shall not be less than the applicable cure period set forth 
under Sections 5.2(B) and 5.2(C) below or if a cure is not reasonably possible 
within the applicable cure period, to begin such cure and diligently prosecute such 
cure to completion. The Event of Default shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement if the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the 
applicable cure period or any extended cure period allowed under this Agreement.   

B. PARTNER shall cure the following Events of Defaults within the following time 
periods: 

i. Within three (3) business days of the CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice for 
any failure of PARTNER to timely provide the CITY or CITY’s employees or 
agents with copies of necessary permits or other documentation required 
under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration of the 3-day cure period, 
PARTNER may submit a written request for additional time to cure the Event 
of Default upon a showing that PARTNER has commenced efforts to cure the 
Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be reasonably cured 
within the 3-day cure period.  The foregoing notwithstanding, the CITY shall be 
under no obligation to grant additional time for the cure of an Event of Default 
under this Section 5.2(B)(i) that exceeds three (3) calendar days from the end 
of the initial 3-day cure period; or 

ii. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of the CITY’s issuance of a Default Notice 
for any other Event of Default under this Agreement.  Prior to the expiration 
of the 14-day cure period, PARTNER may submit a written request for 
additional time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that PARTNER has 
commenced efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default 
cannot be reasonably cured within the 14-day cure period.  The foregoing 
notwithstanding, the CITY shall be under no obligation to grant additional time 
for the cure of an Event of Default under this Section 5.2 B. ii that exceeds 
thirty (30) calendar days from the end of the initial 14-day cure period.   

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 52 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

6 

C. The CITY shall cure any Event of Default asserted by PARTNER within forty-five (45) 
calendar days of PARTNER’ issuance of a Default Notice unless the Event of Default 
cannot reasonably be cured within the 45-day cure period.   Prior to the expiration 
of the 45-day cure period, the CITY may submit a written request for additional 
time to cure the Event of Default upon a showing that the CITY has commenced 
its efforts to cure the Event of Default and that the Event of Default cannot be 
reasonably cured within the 45-day cure period.   

D. The CITY, in its sole and absolute discretion, may also immediately suspend 
PARTNER access and use of the Facilities under this Agreement pending PARTNER 
cure of any Event of Default by giving PARTNER written notice of the CITY’s intent 
to suspend PARTNER’ access and use of the Facilities (hereinafter, a “Suspension 
Notice”).  The CITY may issue the Suspension Notice at any time upon the 
occurrence of an Event of Default. Upon such suspension, the CITY reserves the 
right to restrict PARTNER’s access to portions of the facilities that PARTNER would 
otherwise be permitted to use under this Agreement, including the use of the 
concession stand. 

E. No waiver of any Event of Default or breach under this Agreement shall constitute 
a waiver of any other or subsequent Event of Default or breach.  No waiver, 
benefit, privilege, or service is voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give 
the other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise.  

F. The terms and conditions imposed under this Agreement and the rights and 
remedies available hereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any 
duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. In 
addition to any other remedies available to the CITY at law or under this 
Agreement in the event of any breach of this Agreement, the CITY, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, may also pursue any one or more of the following remedies: 

i. Upon written notice to PARTNER, the CITY may immediately terminate this 
Agreement in whole or in part; 

ii. Upon written notice to PARTNER, the CITY may suspend or terminate 
PARTNER’ access and use of a portion of the Facilities that the CITY has 
determined has not been used in compliance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, for a period of time up to or including the remainder of the 
Term of this Agreement; 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 53 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

7 

iii. The CITY may proceed by appropriate court action to enforce the terms of the 
Agreement to recover damages for PARTNER’ breach of the Agreement or to 
terminate the Agreement; or 

iv. The CITY may exercise any other available and lawful right or remedy.   
PARTNER shall be liable for all legal fees plus other costs and expenses that the 
CITY incurs upon a breach of this Agreement or in the CITY’s exercise of its 
remedies under this Agreement. 

G. In the event that the CITY is in breach of this Agreement, PARTNER’ sole remedy 
shall be the suspension or termination of this Agreement.   

5.3 Scope of Waiver.  No waiver of any default or breach under this Agreement shall 
constitute a waiver of any other default or breach, whether of the same or other covenant, 
warranty, agreement, term, condition, duty or requirement contained in this Agreement.  No 
waiver, benefit, privilege, or service is voluntarily given or performed by a Party shall give the 
other Party any contractual rights by custom, estoppel, or otherwise. 

6. NONDISCRIMINATION.  PARTNER shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, 
age, religion, national origin or any other basis prohibited by law in its use of the Facilities.   
PARTNER shall provide the CITY with a copy of its non-discrimination policy prior to any use of 
the Facilities. 

7. FEES AND CHARGES.   

7.1 Fees.   

A. The CITY shall waive all facility fees for the ENP program held during regular 
business hours. ENP services held during non-regular business hours will be billed 
at regular rental rates and for staffing costs. 

B. PARTNER shall pay for any damages to the FACILITY resulting directly from the 
operation of the ENP program. 

C. PARTNER shall obtain and maintain, at its sole cost and expense the licenses and 
certificates required to conduct a host facility, included within the definition of a 
food facility and must comply with the requirements of the California Retail Food 
Code (CRFC). 

7.2 Billing.  The CITY shall submit PARTNER an invoice, when necessary, for any 
damage to or non-business use of the FACILITY. Any invoice dispute regarding use or damages 
shall be submitted to the CITY within ten (10) business days of receipt of the invoice. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 54 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

8 

7.3 Method of Payment.  Payments will be made payable to the City of San Fernando. 

8. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and 
all exhibits attached and incorporated hereto, PARTNER agrees to perform the services and tasks 
set forth in “Exhibit D” (hereinafter the “SERVICES”).  PARTNER further agrees to furnish to CITY 
all labor, materials, tools, supplies, equipment, services, tasks and incidental and customary work 
necessary to competently perform and timely complete the services and tasks set forth in the 
Scope of Services.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the aforementioned services and tasks 
set forth in the Scope of Services shall hereinafter be referred to generally by the capitalized term 
“Services.”  PARTNER shall not commence with the performance of the Services until such time 
as CITY issues a written Notice to Proceed. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.   

9.1 The Parties acknowledge, understand and agree that PARTNER and all persons 
retained or employed by PARTNER are, and shall at all times remain,  
independent contractors and are not officials, officers, employees, departments 
or subdivisions of CITY.  

 
9.2 The Parties acknowledge and agree that PARTNER shall perform all Services at 

PARTNER’s own cost and expense and without any reimbursement from CITY.  
 
9.3 PARTNER shall be solely responsible for the negligent acts and/or omissions of its 

employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, and subconsultants.  PARTNER 
and all persons retained or employed by PARTNER shall have no authority, 
express or implied, to bind CITY in any manner, nor to incur any obligation, debt 
or liability of any kind on behalf of, or against, CITY, whether by contract or 
otherwise.  

 
10. REMOVAL OF EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS.  The CITY reserve the right to remove any officer, 
employee, agent, contractor, subcontractor or subconsultant under PARTNER supervisor when 
the said individual is determined to be uncooperative, incompetent, a threat to persons or 
property, fails to or refuses to adhere to standards of this AGREEMENT.  PARTNER shall reassign 
said individual to another work site.   
 
11. APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California.  Should any claim or dispute arising out this agreement 
be governed solely by federal law, such claim or dispute should be brought in the Central District 
of California, located within the CITY and county of Los Angeles. 

NOTICE.  Any notice, request, direction, instruction, demand, consent, waiver, approval or other 
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall not be effective unless it is 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 55 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

9 

given in writing and shall be delivered (a) in person, (b) by certified mail, postage prepaid, return 
receipt requested, (c) by facsimile, or (d) by a commercial overnight courier that guarantees next 
day delivery and provides a receipt, and addressed to the parties at the addresses stated below, 
or at such other address as either Party may hereafter notify the other in writing as 
aforementioned: 

 
PARTNER: 
ONEgeneration 
17400 Victory Boulevard. 
Van Nuys, CA 91406 
Attn: Jenna Hauss- President & CEO 
ONEgeneration  
Phone: 818-708-6610 
Email: jhauss@onegeneration.org 

 CITY: 
City of San Fernando 
Recreation and Community Services 
208 Park Ave. San Fernando, CA 91340 
Attn: Julian Venegas, Director of Recreation 
and Community Services 
Phone: 818-898-1290 
Email: JVenegas@sfcity.org 

   
Service of any such notice or other communications so made shall be deemed effective on the 
day of actual delivery (whether accepted or refused) as evidenced by confirmed answerback if 
by facsimile (provided that if any notice or other communication to be delivered by facsimile is 
unable to be transmitted because of a problem affecting the receiving Party’s facsimile machine, 
the deadline for receiving such notice or other communication shall be extended through the 
next business day), as shown by the addressee’s return receipt if by certified mail, and as 
confirmed by the courier service if by courier; provided, however, that if such actual delivery 
occurs after 5:00 p.m. (local time where received) or on a non- business day, then such notice or 
demand so made shall be deemed effective on the first business day immediately following the 
day of actual delivery.  No communications via electronic mail shall be effective to give any notice, 
request, direction, demand, consent, waiver, approval or other communications hereunder. 

12. ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  In the event that legal action is necessary to enforce the provisions of 
this Agreement, the Parties agree that the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover attorney’s 
fees from the opposing Party in any amount determined by the court to be reasonable. 

13. MISCELLANEOUS.   

13.1 Drafter.  Despite the possibility that one Party or its representatives may have 
prepared the initial draft of this Agreement or any provision thereof or played a 
greater role in the preparation of subsequent drafts, the CITY and PARTNER agree 
that neither Party shall be deemed the drafter of this Agreement and that, in 
construing this Agreement, no provision hereof shall be construed in favor of one 
Party on the ground that such provision was drafted by the other. 

 
13.2 Severability.  The CITY and PARTNER agree that the invalidity or unenforceability 

of any provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability 
of any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 56 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

10 

 
13.3 Entire Agreement.  The CITY and PARTNER agree that this Agreement (together 

with the documents attached as Exhibits “A”-“C”) constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter and constitutes 
and supersedes all prior agreements, representations and understandings of the 
parties, written or oral. 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date first written 
above. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _18_ day of   July, 2022. 

 

 

 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO:         ONEgeneration: 

 
 

             
By: Nick Kimball, City Manager  

 By: _______________ _________________ 

     

ATTEST: 

 
____________________________ 
By: Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
       
By: Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 57 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

11 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Facility Usage Log  

Las Palmas Park                 

Room Day(s) Time 

Banquet Room Monday – Friday  8:00 am – 1:00 pm 

Kitchen  Monday – Friday  8:00 am – 1:00 pm 

Office  Monday – Friday 8:00 am – 2:30 pm 

LP Parking Stall Monday – Friday 8:00 am – 2:00 pm 

CY Parking Stall Monday – Sunday 12:00 am – 11:59 pm 

 

Las Palmas Park will be closed on all observed City Holidays listed below.  Rental fees and staff 
cost will apply should PARTNER wish to have the site open to conduct the ENP program during 
an observed City Holiday. 
 
City Holidays 
a. January 1- New Year’s Day 

b. January 16 - MLK Day 

c. February 20 - President’s Day 

d. March 31 - Cesar Chavez Day 

e. May 29- Memorial Day 

f. June  19 - Juneteenth  

g. July 4- Independence Day 

h. September 4 - Labor Day 

i. November 11- Veteran’s Day 

j. November 23- Thanksgiving Day and  

k. November 24- Day After Thanksgiving Day 

l. December 25- Christmas Day   

 
*Dates may vary year-to-year, City will provide an updated list in the beginning of each year. 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 58 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

12 

EXHIBIT “B” 

RENTAL AND USAGE TERMS 

1. PARTNER agrees that, to the best of its knowledge, the Facility which is the subject of this 
Agreement states not be used for the commission of any act intended to further any program 
or movement the purpose of which is to accomplish the overthrow of the Government of the 
United States by force, violence or other unlawful means. 

2. This Agreement covers only the activities and use of the Facilities at the expressly identified 
in this Agreement and associated Exhibits. Any additional activities and/or hours shall require 
submission of appropriate application and approval from the CITY.  

3. The use and/or advertising of drugs, alcohol or tobacco products are NOT ALLOWED AT ANY 
TIME on or in the Facilities or any other CITY-owned property. NO SMOKING is allowed on or 
in the Facilities or any other CITY-owned property. Betting and/or other forms of gambling 
also are strictly prohibited on or in the Facilities or any other CITY-owned property at all times. 

4. Responsible adults (21 years or older) must be present AT ALL TIMES when a group of minors 
is using the Facility. 

5. PARTNER shall have a copy of this Agreement available on site at all times. 

6. Persons setting up and cleaning up a PARTNER event shall arrive no earlier and leave no later 
than the set time established in the agreement.  

7. Persons in attendance shall restrict their activities to this Facility, or portions thereof, their 
agreement entitles them. Failure to comply may result in the termination of the program. 

8. Items/articles can be only be stored in designated cabinets assigned to PARTNER by CITY staff.  
The CITY is not responsible for any personal items/articles lost, stolen, or misplaced. 

9. Upon the conclusion of the event, the agent and/or the organization must leave the Facility 
in the same condition as found.  Such a condition to be determined by an authorized 
representative. Failure to comply will result in possible loss of access to the facility for future 
programming.  

10. PARTNER and/or their representatives shall maintain a civil attitude, mutual respect, and 
team cooperation at all times. Failure to do so may result in revocation of the permit. 

11. PARTNER and/or their representatives shall promptly report any deficiencies of the Facilities 
or service requests to the Recreation and Community Services Department at (818) 898-1290. 
For emergencies, dial 9-1-1. 

12. PARTNER and/or their representatives shall arrive with a sufficient amount of time to inspect 
the Facilities and allow for repairs. 

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 59 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

13 

Liability Sample 
 
 
  

EXHIBIT “C” 

SAN f ERNANI O ) - - ACTIVIITY/ IPROGRAIM IRIEGISTRATION FORM AND CLEAR FORM 

WAIVIER/RELIEASIE/INDEMNIFIICATION 
ACTIVITY /PROGRAM INFORMATION ADULT SPORTS YOUTH SPORTS JERSEY /SH IRT 
ACTTVITY/F'JlOGAAM .... ME LEAG'UE LE::..GUE 92>E 

□ sofTBAL □ MEN D IMON □ BASICilBALL □ ADULT 
□ 11-ASICETBAU . 0 \YOMEN □ TUES □ ,CfifBR □ YOUllH 
□ VOILILEYBALL: Amateur 0 CCHl!l □ WED □ l'U TSAI. □ SMALL 

SESSION 
0 VOILILEYBALL: A<hsonoed• 0 -rtuR □ .SOCCER □ Mflil lUM 
□ □ Fill □ D 1.ARGE 

'\Must <:ttz,r,d,...,-lr,Qr/on orrlmmcg, !I>~h,. 1lii,;I,; t1> ,ons111:•.,..,.,-SD)~ ~.od m«tli'>o D .X.IAF.lGIE 
&l"'r,, ti, ,n,c,l.,hio,,,;u,umnp,tfrl,,c.Mimlrat\\e!I>=,:, hll1'Ilp...,t<m:1~ D XXIARGE 

PARTICPANT INFORMATION 
IFUIST" N:.ME I Ml:l>DLE 1:Nm :.L I LAST -ME □l s.F . ESIDB'IT 

□I NON ESID6NT 

ADD:flESS 

1 □ 
ZJ Pi!:OD'E 

HOME flHD:NE t,o .. I WORJK PHONE HD•. CELL PHOKE INOl 

IEJM\IIJL "-DDRESS 
□ AGREE JORECEIVETIXTMESSAGB 

□ A.GREEJO ECEIVE PRCJMOT10r4AI!. El',fflll.5 

GENDER I DATE OF E:IRTH I AGE 
I HEISlfi (rolilTH SPORTSOK\ltJI l:F O!fRDER 1S, PAi!EmO~GUARDl-"N ~- E 

Or,;to.LE 

□ ft:l';to.LE 
M aDlc:A.<. INFOIIMJiTION [Pll.EA~e UST "-N Y C•D:NDITiot,s, :.LLERGIES. MEDICA.TIOr.cS, E, C. IF r.or.E. PIID>.SJE NDTE] 

EMERGENCY CONTACT 
IFUIST N:.ME I LAST - E 

~ E U.110 r.tSJl!ll P· 

HOME PHD:NE NO. I <>IHER FHONE NO. 

lANGUAGE PREFERANCE emtionaJ ETHNIC BACKGROUND Cmtianal 

0BNGUSH □l sPJI/Nl5H 0 AMERICAN IINDIAN OR ALASKA NATIVE: .A ~ u., '1..-.lng origins In anyoftJ,., a.i:iginaPl"'o;,f..-af M, ,:tb .,,.,d 

□ OTIHER: 
Saur.l:i A.mrrica:, .rnc/JJdllJ9 Cl!.m!raPA.mrrfca:, 1and rwOO rnaFn fafl'll' l(riba' aj/l'ti'a.tion o.r mm_m.JJ n1 ry atta1:l11niPnr-

□ ASIAlt A,Pff'lD"hal!m;f!o,fjlru" aJJyoftb• aw alp"""""eftl>eRarl!hsl;. S..,~ .,,-,Jr., fr,Ji,:, ..,.1 .. ,,..,ttnent ff..,,_.. fndI<Dle !SJ)«!Jlc lan,g.!lo:ge of;pn1;,,,,,, a,_ lnoluli\n,g, Cam&odlit a.I""' fnli\'r,.fow-rm. K,,,.,,,, Mirb,>da,. lbl:l,ro.o. tho, Pb!Bpp,,..hflmd,;; 7"".11:m,t anii ~'ktnam 

HOW DIDYOU FIND OUT ABOUT OUR □ Bl.ACK OR AfRICJ>IN M IERICJJIN: A,,p.,.... .hcvfny or(gin, fn, a.o,rafth.• bl\rd,- mdalgro.JJ['s DfAfdoa 
PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES? Optional D 11 PANIC OR OTI-J:ER lATlNO: A l""'""'n ofClJba n,, M•xl<:c.o. PuUID !li'oor,,Sooth ar C.-t>trolAmula,n,, aratlier 

□ fl.'l'ER 0 ' EWSPAPER Spanish, ru/lu,.,a rari9i'l'l, ~•m,I= of,rlJCI! 

□ . BNID 0 wtf151TE □ NA Ell'lllW ~ Oll lPAaFIC ISLANDE : A p<nnn .-.Ing a.rngins In ,.-nyoftJ,., a.i:iginol-h,sef{f,,-..., il. 

□ EXISTING -005TO.MER □ SOCIAi. IMEDIA 
e,.,,,11'!. Scmoo, « at!,,,,-Rcdjk 1slumls 

□ ontER: 
□ WHITE: .A~ n.-vlng a,!gins fn .rrnyaf tlr on;glnol _ _ h,saf&rop., tho U/ddit, E'nt a..-i'fa,:tb A!fri<D 

D OTI-J:ER : Pk= lnd/ror,, s podjlc ,otb m cgrrop ,.j 6', "'hlchJ-""' ,l<kntify 

PLEASE INITLI\L THAT YOU HAVE READ ,AND UNDERSTAND THE FOLLOWING : 

___ I h a,ve .-earl, 1unde rst,m d, a nd agree t o t he waiver, r elease_, and i nd enmification on the r-everse of tms f onn. 

___ City o f San Fem a ndo Recreati on an d Commun ity Servi ces staff cann□,t a d m i niste r any kind o f medica~i on. 

___ Par-ents are r-e51ponsibl;e fo·rtran sporti n g the·r chi ld ren to and fro m games.a:nd_/or-actNities. 

___ Pa..-ents are adviised to dhed. witlh a physician i f thffe i,s any d oubt r eg;iTii i ng their chi ld 's parti cipati on. 

___ Pa..-ents w i ll p resen t doa.imentsUlat vernyct,· 's a,ge, lega l gua nlr.ans!h~ , a nd a ddress. 

___ In case of an emer-ge ncy, I give permi&sio n for- any necessary· medical lreatme nt . Any medi cal ·ns w i I be my r-e~ponsibility. 

I ACKNOWLID6E THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS TRUE AND ACCURATE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGEMENT 
.,_.,,.,. P:.Rn o:,..,.,- OIi PARENT/ GUARDL',N l'lll'M_E I F·ARTia P:.NT OR PA!REm / GIIA!RDIAN SlJGN,!iTII.AE D:i.TE 

OFFICE USE O NLY 
IRH lBN'ElD IB'll' I DATE lt OUNTP I PATMBNTTVJ>,E CHE:0: 

1:CEIPT 
n 

Rec:raalli□n & comrnumy senrices Department I 2-oa Part A_,... I san Fernando, CA 913411 I (B:1.8) 8911--1290 I Fonn # RCS-00:l..3 P/20!1.9] I Page 1 at ll 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 60 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

14 

  
WANER., RELEASE ANO INOEMNIA CATION 

ACTIVITY/ PROGRAM REGISTRATION FORM 
AND WAIVER/ RELEASE/ INDEMNIFICATION 

I hereby certify that I am an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years, and am allowing my family members listed above 
permission t o participat e in certain activities. including but not limited to activities such as, photo-taking, obstacle course races. 
and any other activity organized by t he City of San Fernando ("aaivities-) and/ or use of equipment provided by the City of San 
Ferna ndo, induding but not limited t o, pubUc parks, bounce houses, and any other equipment provided by the City as part of a 
C~rganized event referred to as the -event"'. 
I UNDERSTAND AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT MY OR MY OilLD'S/FAMILY MEMBER'S PARTICIPATION IN CERTAIN ACTIVITIES AT 
THE EVENT OR USE OF CERTAIN CITY EQUIPMENT USED BY ME AT THE EVENT MAY EXPOSE ME OR MY OilLD/FAMILY MEMBER 
TO A RISK OF PHYSICAL HARM OR DEATH, AS WEU AS ECONOMIC LOSS, which might result not only from my or my 
child's/family member's own actions, inactions. or negligence, but also from the actions, inaction, o r negligence of othef"S, o r the 
condition of the facilities or equipment. ACCORDINGLY. I As.SUM£ ANY ANO All RISKS associat ed with my participat ion (and/ or 
of my children/family member's listed above) and/ or use of t he activities and/ or equipment. Specific risks might include: a ) 
minor injurie.s such as saatdle.s, bruises, and sprains; b) m ajor injuries such as eye injury or loss of sight, joint or back injuries, 
heart attacks, and concussions; and c) catastrophic injuries including paralysis and death. Additional potential risks and injuries 
may ind ude: falls, improper use of equipment and/ or defective equipment . All SUOI RISKS ARE KNOWN AND ACKNOWLEOGro 
BY ME. 
I agree that if I observe any facilities and equipment t o be used and believe them t o be unsafe, I will immediately advise th e 
supervisory person at the facility. 

I recognize t hat cenain medical conditions and/ or physical conditions known to me may pose a likely and/ oc foceseeable risk of 
injury, death or other harm should I, my child, or my family members rrst ed above participate in any of t he activities contemplated 
herein. By execution of this waiver, relea.se and indemnification, I assume full responsibil:ity for any and aH risks posed by any 
medical condition or physical condition suffered by me, my child or family member's listed above whether known or unknown to 
me. 
For myself, h5S, personal assigns, and anyone entitled to aa on my behalf, do hereby forever waive. release, discharge, and covenant 
not to sue the Oty of San Fernando,. its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, employees, and other volunteers. and the owner 
of a,,y private property where events or activities are held, from any and al liability, d aims, damages, expenses, and judgments, 
including attorney's fees, arising from participating/volunteering with the Oty of San Fernando. This release,. waiver, and indeflV'lification 
extend to al claims of every kind or nature whatsoever. foreseen or unforeseen. known or unJc:nown. I further agree that the City of San 
Fernando may take photographs of me and/or of my children for participating/volunteering at various events and activities and use such 
picrures at its discretion for- public di.splay or advertising purposes without any ccxnperuation to me. 

For myself, my heirs., personal assigns., and anyone entitled to aa on my behaff, assum e any and all risks of personal injuries to 
myself, induding m edi-caJ or hospital bills, permanent or pan-01 cfisability, or deat h and damages t o my property, real or personal, 
caused by or arising from participating/volunt eering with the City of San Fernando. 

For myself, my heirs, personal assigns, and anyone entitled to aa on my behalf, agree to forever indemnify and hold the City of 
San Fernando and its of ficials, employees and agents hannl ess from any and all d aims, actions., suits., procedures, costs, expenses, 
damages and liabilities, including anomeys' fees brought as a re.suit of myself participating with and on the City of San Fernando's 
equipment and facilities., and/ or volunteering with t he City of San Fernando., and t o reimburse t hem for any such expenses 
incurred. I recognize that t his waiver and release, assumption of rist and indemnity agreement is intended to be as broad and 
indusive as is permitted by the law of the State of california and that if any portion thereof is held inval id, agree t hat t he balance 
shaD cont inue in full legal force and effect and if signing on behaff of an organization, I have t he capacity and am duty authorized 
to enter into this agreement o n the organizations behaff. 

I, the undersigned, consent to have myself, and/or my chidren/family members phot ographed, interviewed. an d/oc videotaped 
by represent atives of the City and its affiliated entities. The City and its affiliat ed entities may use the images/likeness for the 
produaion of City of San Fernando mart.eting/promotional material. Wn.h re.spea to all photos, v ideotaping and audio records, 
and any reproductions of same in any medium.. in-eluding the City's websites., I hereby irrevocably consent to and authorize thei r 
use by t he Qty and its affili ated entities for reproduction, distribution, and exhibition f or any purpose and in any medium 
whatsoever including (but not limited to) publication and exhibition for educational purposes, w ithout any compensation or 
notice to me. 
I understand and agree that such materiaJ.s, including all negatives, positives, and pr ints, shall become and remain the sole 
property of the City and I shall have no right or t itle to such items. I funher understand and agree that these m ater ials may be 
kept on file and/or used by the City for potential future use and further agree to release the City and its affiliated entities f rom any 
and all liability arising from or in conneaion with t aking, use, publication, or dissemination of such mat er ials. 

THIS DOCUMENT RELIEVES THE CITY AND OTHERS FROM LIABILITY FROM PERSONAL INJURY. WRONGFUL DEATH, AND 
PROPERTY DAMAGE CAUSED BY NEGLIGENCE. I HAVE READ THIS WAIVER AND RELEASE OF UABIUTY, ASSUMPTION OF 
RISK, AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT, AND I UNDERSTAND THAT I HAVE GIVEN UP SUBSTANTIAL RIGHTS BY SIGNING IT, 
INO.UCMNG THE RIGHT TO SUE. AND I SIGN VOI.UNTARILY. 

I HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO THE FOREGO ING AND CERTIFY MY AGREEMENT BY MY 
SIGNATU RE ON THE FRONT OF THIS FORM 

Recreation & o:mll'llnty serwices Department 208 ParkAwnue J san Fema"M:10, CA 91340 I (818) 898--1290 I Form• ACS-001.3 (Z/2019) I •►.;ige z of 2 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 61 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

15 

 
Memorandum of Understanding between City Of San Fernando and  

ONEgeneration Elderly Nutrition Program   

 

SCOPE OF SERVICE  
 

The City of San Fernando (CITY) and ONEgeneration (PARTNER) mutually agree upon the 
importance of providing community-based nutrition and social services for older and disabled 
adults that are high quality, cost-effective and custom-tailored that enable and empower seniors 
of diverse cultural and economic backgrounds. The goals of this collaboration are to enrich the 
lives of senior residents in and around the City of San Fernando so that they can remain in their 
own homes with independence and dignity.  The services will help prevent isolation, neglect, 
abuse, malnutrition and forced institutionalization. 
 
The City and Partner are committed to working collectively in addressing the nutritional and 
social needs of individuals age 60 and above.  PARTNER agrees to work closely with CITY staff in 
the performance of the Work.  All work performed by PARTNER and CITY shall be based on the 
duties, responsibilities, and obligations of each party, which are detailed as follows:  
 
1. Duties, Responsibilities and Obligations of PARTNER 

a. PARTNER shall perform all Work skillfully, competently and to the highest industry 
standards and shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and 
regulations, including the conflict of interest provisions of Government Code Section 1090 
and the Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000 et seq.); 

 
b. All of PARTNER’s employees and agents shall possess sufficient skill, knowledge, training, 

and experience to perform ENP program tasks assigned to them by PARTNER. 
 

c. PARTNER shall not assign or transfer, either directly or indirectly or by operation of law, 
any of PARTNER’s duties, responsibility or obligations under this MOU without the prior 
written consent of the CITY.  In the absence of CITY’s prior written consent, any attempted 
assignment or transfer shall be ineffective, null and void and shall constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement.  
 

d. In the performance of this Agreement, PARTNER shall not discriminate against any 
employee, subcontractor, subconsultant, or applicant for employment because of race, 

EXHIBIT “D” 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 62 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

16 

color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, age, 
physical or mental disability or medical condition.  
 
e. Will manage the collection of voluntary, confidential contributions for meals from 

eligible “older persons” in accordance with YWCA’s policies and current Older 
Americans Act requirements: 

i. A voluntary, confidential donation at the current suggested donation rate may be 
made by persons sixty (60) years of age or older, or their spouses regardless of 
age when the older person accompanies the spouse to the meal site. 
Handicapped or disabled persons under sixty (60) years of age who live with and 
are accompanied to the meal site by persons sixty (60) years of age or older may 
also make voluntary, confidential donations.  

ii. Other persons, including City staff, under sixty (60) years of age will be charged a 
set fee (currently $3.75) per meal. 

 
f. PARTNER shall provide a site manager to supervise and coordinate the Congregate Meals 

(CM) and the Home-Delivery Meals (HDM) programs operating out of Las Palmas Park at 
505 South Huntington Street, San Fernando. Duties shall include, but shall not be limited 
to, the following: 

i. Ensure meals served meet Health Standards. 
ii. Supervise and train volunteers, including those from Retired Senior Volunteer 

Program (RSVP). 
iii. Maintain daily intake records. 
iv. Collect daily monetary contributions. 
v. Collaborate in the annual Senior Expo, monthly Holiday themed lunches and other 

special activities.  
vi. Make available a current roster of all nutrition program participants. 

vii. Maintain and clean facility.  
viii. Provide end of month report of CMP and HDM clients served.  

 
g. PARTNER shall provide appropriately trained paid or volunteer staff support to ensure 

that the site manager’s responsibilities, listed above, are performed, in the event the site 
manager is out ill. 

 
h. PARTNER shall provide a paid or volunteer driver to assist with the Home-Delivered Meals 

program. 
 

i. PARTNER shall provide data of residents served by the Case Management, Telephone 
Reassurance, and Social Services programs on a monthly basis.  

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 63 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

17 

j. The ENP programs shall adhere to the following: 
i. Serve a maximum amount allowed by room capacity hot, nutritious meals, menu 

to be approved by the county nutritionist, and meals prepared by a contracted 
caterer. 

ii. Participants are to be 60 years of age or older. Younger caregiver or partners that 
are younger are allowed. 

iii. A suggested donation for each meal is $3.00, although no senior shall be denied 
service due to lack of ability to pay. PARTNER shall have the right to collect meal 
donations. The CITY does not guarantee or assure the collection of such donations 
from participants.  

iv. Program participants will be assumed to be low income or extremely low income, 
therefore income documentation is not required.  

v. At such times, and in such forms, as the CITY may require, PARTNER shall furnish 
the statements, records, reports, data, and information pertaining to matters 
covered by this Agreement. All records are to be retained by PARTNER for a period 
of three (3) years after termination of this Agreement and all other pending 
matters.  
 

2. Duties, Responsibilities, and Obligations of CITY 
 

a. The City will make available the use of Las Palmas Park Recreation Center – 505 
Huntington Street, San Fernando, on the days and time as indicated in the Facility Usage 
Log (Exhibit A) of this MOU Agreement. 

i. Banquet Room 
ii. Kitchen 

iii. Office Space 
iv. Storage Space 
v. Parking Space 

  
b. The City will be responsible for providing the following as its in-kind contribution towards 

the ENP program:   
i. Building maintenance and cleaning 

ii. Paper goods and hand soap for the kitchen and rest rooms 
iii. Pest control service 
iv. Land line (sending and receiving Fax) 
v. Equipment 

a. Refrigerator 
b. Stove/Oven 
c. Provide access to shared freezer 
d. Provide kitchen space for PARTNER’s stem table  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 64 of 207



CONTRACT NO. 2088 

18 

vi. Promotion of the meal program including printing menus 
vii. Advertise all ENP services in citywide brochures, flyers, social media, website and 

events.  
 

c. City shall collaborate with PARTNER in annual Senior Expo. 
 

d. City shall permit YWCA-SGC to park two (2) cargo vans or trucks in the Public Works 
Storage Yard located at 501 1st St. San Fernando, CA 91340.  Access code shall be provided 
to the drivers of the cargo vans (code outside may not be shared outside PARTNER staff.) 
 

e. City shall reserve one parking stall at Las Palmas Park for the HDM diver.  
 

f. In Kind Contributions - the Fair Market Value (FMV) of the in-kind contributions the City 
makes on behalf of the ENP program is detailed in the table below.  The program category 
C1 indicates essential space need to conduct the program, whereas supportive program 
space is classified as C2.     

 

Fair Market Value of ENP Space Use   
Program 
Category Las Palmas Park Square 

Footage Rate/Sq. Ft.* FMV 
Monthly 

FMV  
Quarterly  

FMV 
Annually 

C1 Banquet Rm 2,500 $2.00** $5,000 $15,000.00 $60,000.00 

C1 Kitchen 225 $2.00**  $450.00 $1,350.00 $5,400.00 

C2 Nutrition Office 105  2.00** $210.00 $630.00 $2,520.00 

C2 ½  A & C Storage Rm. 126 $ 2.00** $252.00 $756.00 $ 3,024.00 

C2 Parking Stalls 2 Stalls  $10.00  
Per Day $300.00 $900.00 $3,600.00 

  
 Total FMV for Space $6,212.00 $18,636.00 

 
$74,544.00  

       
*Source:  Colliers International  (Class B commercial property rate is $2.65 per square foot) 
**Note:  LACO will not recognize a cost of space for more than $2.00 per square foot without 
substantial documentation. 

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 65 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 66 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 67 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 68 of 207



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

POLICE DEPARTMENT                 910 FIRST STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1250                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Fabian Valdez, Police Chief 
   
Date:  July 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 1711 Adopting a Military Equipment Policy 

Governing the Use of Military Equipment Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1711 (Attachment “A”), that was 
introduced for first reading at the City Council meeting of July 5, 2022, in title only and waive 
further reading, approving the ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
San Fernando, California, adopting a Military Equipment Policy (Exhibit “A” of Ordinance No. 
1711), governing the use of military equipment pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.”  
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On September 30, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill 481 ("AB 
481") (Attachment “B”), relating to the use of "military equipment" by California law 
enforcement agencies.  Pursuant to Government Code sections 7070 through 7075 (Exhibit 
“A” of Attachment “A”), law enforcement agencies are required to obtain approval for the 
use of “military equipment” by adoption of an ordinance approving a military equipment 
policy at a public hearing held during a regular meeting of the governing body. 
 

2. On April 27, 2022, the Police Department posted on the City’s website, the proposed military 
equipment policy, as part of a 30 day public review period prior to any public hearing as part 
of the transparency process to solicit public feedback, pursuant to AB 481.   
 

3. On July 5, 2022, at the regular meeting of the City Council, a public hearing was held to 
consider adopting an ordinance approving the proposed military equipment policy, governing 
the use of military equipment.  It should be noted, that there were no public comments 
submitted on this item.  The City Council voted unanimously to approve introduction for first 
reading, in title only, and waive further reading of Ordinance No. 1711 titled, “An Ordinance 
of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, adopting a Military Equipment 
Policy governing the use of military equipment pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.” 
 

 

ANill 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 69 of 207



Consideration to Adopt Ordinance No. 1711 Adopting a Military Equipment Policy Governing the Use of 
Military Equipment Pursuant to Assembly Bill 481 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
AB 481 seeks to provide transparency, oversight, and an opportunity for public input on decisions 
regarding whether and how military equipment is funded, acquired, and used by law 
enforcement agencies. 
 
The intent of AB 481 is to increase transparency, accountability, and oversight surrounding the 
use of military equipment. Moreover, the military equipment currently in use by the Police 
Department provides police officers with equipment essential to day-to-day patrol operations, 
responses to critical incidents, and protects and promotes the welfare and safety of the 
community we serve. Staff believes the proposed Ordinance and Policy of the Police Department 
is compliant with the State regulations as described under AB 481. Accordingly, staff 
recommends City Council approval of the proposed Ordinance and Policy of the Police 
Department. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
 
Adoption of this Ordinance has no fiscal impact on the City.  Military equipment identified in the 
Policy is purchased through the Police Department’s annual operating budget as adopted by City 
Council. 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt Ordinance No. 1711 (Attachment “A”), that was 
introduced for first reading at the City Council meeting of July 5, 2022, in title only and waive 
further reading, approving the ordinance titled, “An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
San Fernando, California, adopting a Military Equipment Policy (Exhibit “A” of Ordinance No. 
1711), governing the use of military equipment pursuant to Assembly Bill 481.”  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Ordinance No. 1711, including: 

Exhibit A: San Fernando Police Department Military Equipment Policy  
B. Text of California Assembly Bill 481 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 70 of 207



ATTACHMENT “A”  
 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1711 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, ADOPTING A MILITARY EQUIPMENT POLICY GOVERNING 
THE USE OF MILITARY EQUIPMENT PURSUANT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 481 

 
  

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed into law Assembly 
Bill 481 (creating Government Code Section 7070, et seq.), relating to the use of military 
equipment by California law enforcement agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, AB 481 became effective January 1, 2022, and is codified at Sections 7070 

through 7075 of Chapter 12.8 to Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Government Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, AB 481 seeks to provide transparency, oversight, and an opportunity for 

meaningful public input on decisions regarding whether and how military equipment is funded, 
acquired, or used; and 

 
WHEREAS, the term “military equipment” is defined in California Government Code 

Section 7070; and  
 
WHEREAS, AB 481 requires, among other things, that a law enforcement agency obtain 

approval of the governing body, by an ordinance adopting a military equipment use policy that 
includes a description of the equipment, quantity, capabilities, expected lifespan, purposes and 
authorized uses, fiscal impact, legal and procedural rules governing authorized uses, required 
training, and mechanisms to ensure compliance with the agency’s use policy, prior to taking 
certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition or use of military equipment, including military 
equipment acquired prior to January 1, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the San Fernando Police Department is in possession of certain items of 

equipment that qualify as “military equipment” under AB 481; and 
 
WHEREAS, the San Fernando Police Department has prepared a proposed Military 

Equipment Policy, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 7071(a)(2), if seeking to continue the 

use of any military equipment that was acquired prior to January 1, 2022, the San Fernando Police 
Department was obligated to, and has met the requirement, of commencing a City Council 
approval process for the Military Equipment Policy no later than May 1, 2022; and 

 
WHEREAS, the San Fernando Police Department made the proposed Military Equipment 

Policy available on the Police Department’s website for at least 30 days prior to the first public 
meeting concerning the proposed Military Equipment Policy on July 5, 2022; and 

 
  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 71 of 207



ORD NO. 1711 
 

2 

WHEREAS, as required by AB 481, the City Council determines as follows:  
 
(a) the military equipment inventoried and presented to the City Council is necessary 

because there is no reasonable alternative that can achieve the same objective of 
officer and civilian safety; and 

 
(b) the proposed Military Equipment Policy will safeguard the public’s health, welfare, 

safety, civil rights, and civil liberties; and 
 
(c) the equipment is reasonably cost effective compared to available alternatives that can 

achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety; and 
 
(d) prior military equipment use complied with the applicable equipment use policy 

(which included equipment now defined as military equipment) that was in effect at 
the time, or if prior uses did not comply with the accompanying Military Equipment 
Policy, corrective action has been taken to remedy nonconforming uses and ensure 
future compliance; and 

 
WHEREAS, as further required by Government Code section 7071(a)(2), if the City Council 

does not approve the continuing use of military equipment, including by adoption pursuant to a 
Military Equipment Policy, within 180 days of submission of the proposed Military Equipment 
Policy to City Council, the San Fernando Police Department shall cease its use of the military 
equipment until it receives the approval of City Council in accordance with this Ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Military Equipment Policy and supporting information must be approved 

by the governing body by ordinance, and reviewed annually; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of San Fernando, having received the information 

required under AB 481 regarding the San Fernando Police Department’s use of military 
equipment as defined in said law, deems it to be in the best interest of the City to approve the 
Military Equipment Policy as set forth herein. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and 
incorporated into this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 2. Approval of Military Equipment Policy.  The City Council, having received 
the information required under AB 481 regarding the San Fernando Police Department’s use of 
military equipment as defined in said law, deems it to be in the best interest of the City to and 
hereby approves the Military Equipment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” The Military 
Equipment Policy shall govern the approval, acquisition, use and reporting of military equipment 
by the San Fernando Police Department. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 72 of 207



ORD NO. 1711 
 

3 

 SECTION 3. CEQA. This Ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 15378 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines because it has no potential to 
result in physical change in the environment, directly or indirectly. This Ordinance is also exempt 
under CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the Ordinance may have a significant effect on the environment. 

 
SECTION 4. Uncodified Ordinance. This Ordinance shall not be codified in the San 

Fernando Municipal Code unless and until the City Council so ordains. 
 
 SECTION 5. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
Ordinance.  The City Council declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each and 
every section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional 
without regard to whether any portion of the Ordinance would be subsequently declared invalid 
or unconstitutional. 
 
 SECTION 6. Effective Date.  In accordance with Government Code section 36937, this 
ordinance shall take effect and be in force thirty (30) days from passage and adoption. 
 
 SECTION 7.  Certification.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to certify to 
the passage of this Ordinance by the City Council and shall cause it to be published or posted as 
required by law. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of San Fernando this 
5th day of July, 2022. 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
         
Julia Fritz, City Clerk  Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of  

San Fernando, California 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Richard A. Padilla 
Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 73 of 207



ORD NO. 1711 
 

4 

CERTIFICATION 
 
 
 
I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Ordinance No. 1711 which was introduced on the 5th day of July, 2022, 
and adopted by the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California at a regular meeting 
thereof held on the 18th day of July, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 
 
 

AYES:  
 
NAYS:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of _________, ____.  
 
 
 

  
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

 
 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 74 of 207



Policy

706
San Fernando Police Department

San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Military Equipment - 1

Military Equipment
706.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the approval, acquisition, and reporting
requirements of military equipment (Government Code § 7070; Government Code § 7071;
Government Code § 7072).

706.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include (Government Code § 7070):

Governing body – The elected or appointed body that oversees the Department.

Military equipment – Includes but is not limited to the following:

1. Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles.

2. Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored personnel carriers.

3. High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), two-and-one-half-ton trucks, five-ton
trucks, or wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry apparatus attached.

4. Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their occupants.

5. Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate the operational
control and direction of public safety units.

6. Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles of any kind.

7. Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive in nature. This does not
include a handheld, one-person ram.

8. Firearms of .50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue shotguns and standard-issue
shotgun ammunition.

9. Ammunition of .50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue shotguns and standard-issue
shotgun ammunition.

10. Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than .50 caliber, including firearms and
accessories identified as assault weapons in Penal Code § 30510 and Penal Code § 30515, with
the exception of standard-issue firearms.

11. Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive projectiles.

12. Noise-flash diversionary devices and explosive breaching tools or munitions containing tear
gas or OC, excluding standard, service-issued handheld pepper spray.

13. TASER® Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and long-range acoustic devices
(LRADs).

14. Kinetic energy weapons and munitions.

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 75 of 207



San Fernando Police Department
San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Military Equipment - 2

15. Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state agency to require additional
oversight.

706.2   POLICY
It is the policy of the San Fernando Police Department that members of this Department comply
with the provisions of Government Code § 7071 with respect to military equipment.

706.3   MILITARY EQUIPMENT COORDINATOR
The Chief of Police should designate a member of this Department to act as the military equipment
coordinator. The responsibilities of the military equipment coordinator include but are not limited to:

(a) Acting as liaison to the governing body for matters related to the requirements of this
policy.

(b) Identifying Department equipment that qualifies as military equipment in the current
possession of the Department, or the equipment the Department intends to acquire
that requires approval by the governing body.

(c) Conducting an inventory of all military equipment at least annually.

(d) Collaborating with any allied agency that may use military equipment within the
jurisdiction of San Fernando Police Department (Government Code § 7071).

(e) Preparing for, scheduling, and coordinating the annual community engagement
meeting to include:

1. Publicizing the details of the meeting.

2. Preparing for public questions regarding the Department's funding, acquisition,
and use of equipment.

(f) Preparing the annual military equipment report for submission to the Chief of
Police and ensuring that the report is made available on the Department website
(Government Code § 7072).

(g) Establishing the procedure for a person to register a complaint or concern, or how that
person may submit a question about the use of a type of military equipment, and how
the Department will respond in a timely manner.

706.4   MILITARY EQUIPMENT INVENTORY
The following constitutes a list of qualifying equipment for the Department:

Heckler & Koch 9mm submachine guns

40mm Less Lethal Launcher

40mm Exact Impact Sponge Round

40mm Spede-heat long range Chlorobenzaldehyde Malononitrile (CS) Tear Gas Munition

40mm Ferret CS Munition

40mm Bean Bag Munition

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 76 of 207



San Fernando Police Department
San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Military Equipment - 3

12 gauge Shotgun Less Lethal Bean Bag Munition

12 gauge Shotgun Ferret CS Munition

Pepperball launcher

Pepperball CS Munition

Unmanned aerial vehicle (drone)

Colt M4 Carbine Full Auto.223 Caliber Capability

For specific detail, see the following attachment:  See attachment: Military Equipment Policy
Final.pdf

The attachment referred to in policy section 706.4 above provides detail related to the description
of each category of equipment/supply, quantity, capability, expiration date, purpose, product
description, cost impact and policy reference for use. Less lethal weapon training shall be
completed in compliance with policy section 304, Control Devices and Techniques. Training shall
be provided by POST-certified less lethal instructors in compliance with approved POST-certified
course outlines for less lethal weapons. Training for the M-4 rifle and submachine gun will be
provided by POST-certified rifle and submachine gun instructors following POST-certified course
outlines. All drone (unmanned aerial vehicle) operators will be certified in the Part 107 pilot course
as required by the FAA.

706.5   APPROVAL
The Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall obtain approval from the governing body by
way of an ordinance adopting the military equipment policy. As part of the approval process, the
Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall ensure the proposed military equipment policy is
submitted to the governing body and is available on the Department website at least 30 days prior
to any public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue (Government Code § 7071). The
military equipment policy must be approved by the governing body prior to engaging in any of the
following (Government Code § 7071):

(a) Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to 10 USC § 2576a.

(b) Seeking funds for military equipment, including but not limited to applying for a grant,
soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal funds, in-kind donations, or other
donations or transfers.

(c) Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, including by borrowing
or leasing.

(d) Collaborating with another law enforcement agency in the deployment or other use of
military equipment within the jurisdiction of this Department.

(e) Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a manner, or by a person
not previously approved by the governing body.

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 77 of 207



San Fernando Police Department
San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Military Equipment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Military Equipment - 4

(f) Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an agreement with, any other
person or entity to seek funds for, apply to receive, acquire, use, or collaborate in the
use of military equipment.

(g) Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided above.

It will be the practice of the Department to replace damaged equipment in order to maintain the
equipment levels as specified in policy section 706.4 above. As equipment is deployed or utilized
in compliance with this policy or if such equipment exhausts its useful life, the Department will
replace that equipment. The Department will endeavor to maintain supplies of equipment at 50%
of supply levels as established in the attachment referred to in policy section 706.4 above.

706.6   COORDINATION WITH OTHER JURISDICTIONS
Military equipment used by any employee of this Department shall be approved for use and in
accordance with this Department policy. Military equipment used by other jurisdictions that are
providing mutual aid to this Department or operating in a law enforcement capacity in conjunction
with this Department shall comply with their respective military equipment use policies in rendering
mutual aid.

706.7   ANNUAL REPORT
Upon approval of a military equipment policy, the Chief of Police or the authorized designee should
submit a military equipment report to the governing body for each type of military equipment
approved within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment
is available for use (Government Code § 7072).

The Chief of Police or the authorized designee should also make each annual military equipment
report publicly available on the Department website for as long as the military equipment is
available for use. The report shall include all information required by Government Code § 7072
for the preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment in Department inventory.

706.8   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing the annual report, the Department shall hold
at least one well-publicized and conveniently located community engagement meeting, at which
the Department should discuss the report and respond to public questions regarding the funding,
acquisition, or use of military equipment. Any complaints regarding the use of equipment or to
express support for equipment use may be submitted as outlined in Policy 1009 - Personnel
Complaints.

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 78 of 207



San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Attachments - 5

Attachments

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 79 of 207



Attachment
San Fernando PD Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/04/27, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Fernando Police
Department

Military Equipment Policy Final.pdf - 6

Military Equipment Policy Final.pdf
Military Equipment Policy Final.pdf

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 80 of 207



1 

1. Specialized Firearms and Ammunition (Equipment Category 10)
a. Description, quantity, capabilities, and purchase cost:

I. The carbine rifle is a firearm capable of accurately stopping an armed
subject at various distances.  The carbine rifle is a lightweight, air-cooled,
gas-operated, magazine-fed, shoulder-fired weapon designed for semi-
automatic and selective fire.  The carbine rifle does not have an expiration
date and needs to be serviced or replaced when the rifle fails or breaks.
The .223 Remington/5.56mm NATO ammunition is used as a lethal
option designed to stop a violent encounter.  The projectile is capable of
penetrating soft body armor being worn by armed subjects.  These
carbine rifles use ammunition already used by standard-issued patrol
rifles.  Colt AR-15 M4 Carbine | cost: $5,600 | quantity: 4

II. The submachine gun is a firearm capable of accurately stopping an
armed subject in a variety of conditions and at various distances.  The
submachine gun is a lightweight and compact firearm designed to match
firepower while also having the capability to clear enclosed or close-
combat spaces.  The submachine gun does not have an expiration date
and needs to be serviced or replaced when the submachine gun fails or
breaks.  These submachine guns use ammunition already used by
standard-issued 9mm handguns.  Heckler & Koch MP5 submachine gun |
cost: $3,000 | quantity: 8

III. The sniper rifle is a firearm capable of precision accuracy and is used to
stop an armed subject from a safe distance.  The sniper rifle can also be
outfitted with a suppressor to reduce hearing damage in confined spaces.
The projectile used by this rifle is capable of penetrating soft body armor
being worn by armed subjects.  The sniper rifle does not have an
expiration date and needs to be serviced or replaced when the rifle fails
or breaks.  This rifle uses .308 Winchester ammunition which is not
standard issue and is listed below.  TacOps suppressed sniper rifle | cost:
$16,400 | quantity: 2

IV. The .308 Winchester is a rimless, bottlenecked rifle cartridge.  This
ammunition is deployed during potentially lethal encounters at longer
distances.  The 168 grain projectile maintains accuracy, while resulting in
higher impact velocities and more energy on target to stop a violent
threat.  Federal Gold Medal MatchKing 168 grain boat-tail hollow-point |
cost $11,000 | quantity: 5,000

b. Purpose:
To be used as special weapons to address potentially deadly threats with more
precision, handle close quarter situations/confined spaced, and/or deployment at
greater distances than a handgun, if weapon systems are present and feasible to
use in that particular situation.

c. Authorized Use:
Only personnel that are POST certified as operators or instructors, or personnel
designated by the Chief of Police as authorized to use the above specifically
mentioned rifles, submachine guns, and munitions.

d. Expected Lifespan:
I. Carbine Rifle – no expiration

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 81 of 207



2 
 

II. Submachine Gun – no expiration 
III. Sniper Rifle – no expiration 
IV. .308 Winchester 168 grain Rifle Ammunition – no expiration 

e. Fiscal Impact: 
I. Carbine Rifle – estimated $0 - $1,000 annually 
II. Submachine Gun – estimated $0 - 2,000 annually 

III. Sniper Rifle – estimated $0 - $2,000 annually 
IV. .308 Winchester 168 grain Rifle Ammunition – estimated $0 - $10,000 

f. Training: 
Personnel operating the above mentioned rifles and machine guns receive POST 
certified training as an operator or instructor and complete annual training and 
qualifications to maintain certification. 

g. Legal and Procedural Rules: 
Use of the above mentioned rifles, machine guns, and munitions is established 
under policy and procedure manual.  It is the policy of the San Fernando Police 
Department to utilize this equipment only for official law enforcement purposes, 
according to State and Federal law. 
 

2. PepperBall Launcher (Category 12) 
a. Description, quantity, capabilities, and purchase cost: 

This system uses high pressure to deliver PAVA (Pelargonyl Vanillylamide - 
synthetic pepper spray) powder projectiles, similar in ways to that of a paintball 
delivery system.  It is capable of launching projectiles at a subject up to 60 feet.  
The delivery of the projectile has an area saturation of up to 160 feet.  This non-
lethal option offers an alternative in potentially lethal encounters as a means of 
de-escalation.  It also doubles as a valuable tool to control riotous situations and 
crowd control during civil unrest.  PepperBall Launcher | cost: $7,500 | quantity: 6 

I. PepperBall LIVE projectile is the basic PepperBall projectile and contains 
2% PAVA powder and is designed for direct impact and area saturation, 
especially in confined and/or interior spaces.  The projectile is launched 
from the PepperBall Launcher at a velocity of 280 - 350 fps.  The 
projectile has a direct impact of 60 feet and an area of saturation of 150+ 
feet.  PepperBall LIVE projectile | cost: $6,824 | quantity: 3000 

b. Purpose: 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited 
or undesirable.  Situation for use of this non-lethal weapon system may include, 
but are not limited to: 

I. Self-destructive, dangerous and/or combative individuals 
II. Riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents 

III. Circumstances where a tactical advantage can be obtained 
IV. Potentially vicious and/or dangerous animals 
V. Training exercises or approved demonstrations 

c. Authorized Use: 
Only personnel that have been trained as operators or instructors by the 
department, or personnel designated by the Chief of Police as authorized to use 
the PepperBall system. 

d. Expected Lifespan: 

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 82 of 207



3 

I. PepperBall Launcher – no expiration
II. PepperBall Live Projectile – 1 year

e. Fiscal Impact:
I. PepperBall Launcher – estimated $0 - $2,000 annually
II. PepperBall LIVE Projectile – estimated $0 - $6,824 annually

f. Training:
Personnel operating the PepperBall launcher and munition received department
training on the operation and deployment of the system.  Refresher training is
periodically conducted.

g. Legal and Procedural Rules:
Use of the PepperBall launcher and munitions is established under policy and
procedure manual.  It is the policy of the San Fernando Police Department to
utilize this equipment only for official law enforcement purposes, according to
State and Federal law.

3. Tear Gas (Category 12)
a. Description, quantity, capabilities, and purchase cost:

Chemical agent munitions, which are commonly referred to as “tear gas” are
used by the San Fernando Police Department as a non-lethal tool to disperse
rioting subjects and dislodge barricaded subjects.  The San Fernando Police
Department uses chemical agents which are used by law enforcement across the
United States.  CS (2-chlorophenylmethylenemalononitrile) is an irritating agent
and lachrymator (irritates the eyes and causes tears to flow).  CS has been
medically tested in the United Kingdom and United States, specifically by the
U.S. Army.  There are no known allergic reactions to CS.  OC (Oleoresin
Capsicum) was de-regulated in California in 1996, is endorsed by the FBI, and is
available to civilians to legally possess (2.5 oz. or less).  OC is an inflammatory
agent which causes involuntary closure of eyes (opens in 2-5 minutes) and
respiratory inflammation (subsides in approximately 2 minutes).

I. CS Direct Impact 40mm (part# 6322) – This munition is a point-of-aim,
point-of-impact direct-fire round. It serves as a solution whether you need
to stop the threat from a single subject or control a crowd.  The Direct
Impact combines blunt trauma with the effects of an irritant powder,
thereby maximizing the potential for incapacitation.  Defense Technology |
cost: $1,550 | quantity: 50

II. CS Spede-Heat Long Range 40mm (part# 6182) – This munition delivers
one chemical canister of CS agent from a 40mm launcher down range up
to 150 yards. The Spede-Heat is a pyrotechnic round designed
specifically for outdoor use in crowd control situations with a high volume
continuous burn that expels its payload in approximately 20-40 seconds
from a single source. This munition may be used to conceal tactical
movement or to route a crowd.  Defense Technology | cost: $885 |
quantity: 40

III. CS Ferret 40mm (part# 2292) – This barricade penetrating munition is
filled with a CS powder chemical agent. It is a frangible projectile that is
spin stabilized utilizing barrel rifling. It is non-burning and designed to
penetrate barriers. Primarily used to dislodge barricaded subjects, it can

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 83 of 207



4 
 

also be used for area denial. It is designed to penetrate barriers, such as 
windows, hollow-core doors, wallboard and thin plywood. Upon impact 
the nose ruptures and instantaneously delivers the CS agent inside a 
structure or vehicle.  Defense Technology | cost: $400 | quantity: 20 

IV. CS Muzzle Blast 40mm (part# 6042) – This munition is widely used as a 
crowd management tool for immediate and close deployment. It can also 
be employed in tactical operations such as barricaded subjects, room 
clearing, area denial, and for small space contamination (e.g. a means of 
contaminating crawl spaces and attics).  Defense Technology | cost: $270 
| quantity: 10 

V. CS Liquid Ferret 12 gauge (part# 3012) – This munition has non-
pyrotechnical properties which eliminates the fire hazard common with 
other products.  It is primarily used to dislodge barricaded subjects and is 
designed to penetrate windows, hollow-core doors, wallboard and thin 
plywood. Upon impact it delivers CS agent inside a structure or vehicle.  
Defense Technology | cost: $600 | quantity: 100 

VI. OC Liquid Ferret 12 gauge (part# 3010) – This munition has non-
pyrotechnical properties which eliminates the fire hazard common with 
other products.  It is primarily used to dislodge barricaded subjects and is 
designed to penetrate windows, hollow-core doors, wallboard and thin 
plywood. Upon impact it delivers CS agent inside a structure or vehicle.  
Defense Technology | cost: $600 | quantity: 100 

VII. CS Stinger Grenade (part# 1088) – The CS stinger grenade is a 
maximum effect device that delivers four stimuli for psychological and 
physiological effects: rubber pellets, light, sound, and CS. The CS stinger 
grenade is most widely used as a crowd management tool by Law 
Enforcement and Corrections.  The blast of the CS stinger grenade is 
sufficient to project the rubber balls and chemical agent in a 50 foot 
radius.  Defense Technology | cost: $810 | quantity: 20 

b. Purpose: 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is 
prohibited or undesirable.  Situations for use of these chemical agent 
munitions may include, but are not limited to: 

I. Self-destructive, dangerous and/or combative individuals 
II. Riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents 

III. Circumstances where a tactical advantage can be obtained 
IV. Dislodging barricaded subjects 
V. Potentially vicious and/or dangerous animals 
VI. Training exercises or approved demonstrations 

c. Authorized Use: 
Only personnel that are POST certified as operators or instructors, or personnel 
designated by the Chief of Police as authorized to use the above specifically 
mentioned chemical agent munitions. 

d. Expected Lifespan: 
I. Part# 6322 – 5 years from date of manufacture 
II. Part# 6182 – 5 years from date of manufacture 

III. Part# 2292 – 5 years from date of manufacture 

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 84 of 207



5 

IV. Part# 6042 – 5 years from date of manufacture
V. Part# 3012 – 5 years from date of manufacture
VI. Part# 3010 – 5 years from date of manufacture

VII. Part# 1088 – 5 years from date of manufacture
e. Fiscal Impact:

I. Part# 6322 – estimated $0 - $1,550 annually
II. Part# 6182 – estimated $0 - $885 annually

III. Part# 2292 – estimated $0 - $400 annually
IV. Part# 6042 – estimated $0 - $270 annually
V. Part# 3012 – estimated $0 - $600 annually
VI. Part# 3010 – estimated $0 - $600 annually

VII. Part# 1088 – estimated $0 - $810 annually
f. Training:

Personnel operating the above mentioned 40mm launcher and chemical agent
munitions receive POST certified training as an operator or instructor and
complete annual training and qualifications to maintain certification.

g. Legal and Procedural Rules:
Use of the above mentioned 40mm launcher and chemical agent munitions is
established under policy and procedure manual.  It is the policy of the San
Fernando Police Department to utilize this equipment only for official law
enforcement purposes, according to State and Federal law.

4. Projectile Launcher Platforms and Associated Munitions (Category 14)
a. Description, quantity, capabilities, and purchase cost:

I. The single shot 40mm launcher is not a firearm, but a less lethal system
that uses smokeless black powder to deliver 40mm projectiles from a safe
distance.  The less lethal launcher is capable of launching 40mm
munitions up to 131 feet.  The launcher can fire impact munitions and
chemical agent munitions.  This less lethal system offers an alternative in
potentially lethal encounters as a means of de-escalation.  It also doubles
as a valuable tool to control riotous situations and crowd control during
civil unrest.  The 40m launcher does not have an expiration date and
needs to be serviced or replaced when the launcher fails or breaks.
Defense Technology 40mm Tactical Single Launcher | cost: $10,000 |
quantity: 8

II. The multiple shot 40mm launcher is not a firearm, but a less lethal system
that uses smokeless black powder to deliver 40mm projectiles from a safe
distance.  The less lethal launcher is capable of launching up to four
40mm munitions consecutively at a distance up to 131 feet.  The launcher
can fire impact munitions and chemical agent munitions.  This less lethal
system offers an alternative in potentially lethal encounters as a means of
de-escalation.  It also doubles as a valuable tool to control riotous
situations and crowd control during civil unrest.  The 40m launcher does
not have an expiration date and needs to be serviced or replaced when
the launcher fails or breaks.  Defense Technology 40mm Tactical 4-Shot
Launcher | cost: $4,000 | quantity: 2

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 85 of 207



6 
 

III. The bean bag shotgun is a firearm designed to fire 12 gauge bean bag 
less lethal munitions and 12 gauge chemical agent munitions.  The bean 
bag shotgun is capable of accurately firing 12 gauge munitions up to 75 
feet.  This less lethal system offers an alternative in potentially lethal 
encounters as a means of de-escalation.  The bean bag shotgun does not 
have an expiration date and needs to be serviced or replaced when the 
launcher fails or breaks.  Remington 870 Shotgun with orange high-
visibility less lethal stock and foregrip | cost: $8,000 | quantity: 8 

IV. Exact Impact 40mm (part# 6325) – The 40mm sponge round is a point-of-
aim, point-of-impact, direct-fire munition. This lightweight, high-speed 
projectile consisting of a plastic body and sponge nose is spin stabilized 
via the incorporated rifling collar and the 40 mm launcher’s rifled barrel. 
The munition is used as an alternative in potentially lethal encounters as 
a means of de-escalation.  It can stop violent threats and subjects that 
pose a hazard to themselves through blunt force trauma.  Defense 
Technology | cost: $4,800 | quantity: 250 

V. Bean Bag 40mm (part# 6025) – The 40mm bean bag munition is most 
widely used as a crowd management tool by Law Enforcement and 
Corrections when there is a need to target individual instigators. It has 
also been successfully used as a dynamic, high-energy, single-subject 
munition for incapacitation or distraction. The round contains one silica 
sand-filled bag.  Defense Technology | cost: $2,000 | quantity: 80 

VI. Stinger 40mm (part# 6097) – the stinger 40 mm 60-caliber munition is 
most widely used as a crowd management tool by Law Enforcement and 
Corrections. The round contains approximately eighteen 60-caliber rubber 
balls. It is suitable for administering a means of pain compliance over a 
great distance. This munition is mainly used for routing crowds or groups 
that are mildly resistive.  Defense Technology | cost: $1,500 | quantity: 50 

VII. Bean Bag 12 gauge (part# 3027) – The drag stabilized 12 gauge munition 
is a translucent 12 gauge shell loaded with a 40g tear-shaped bag made 
from a cotton and ballistic material blend and filled with #9 shot. This 
design utilizes four stabilizing tails and utilizes smokeless powder as the 
propellant. This munition has a velocity of 270 fps with a maximum 
effective range of 75 feet.  The munition is used as an alternative in 
potentially lethal encounters as a means of de-escalation.  It can stop 
violent threats and subjects that pose a hazard to themselves through 
blunt force trauma.  Defense Technology | cost: $4,000 | quantity: 800 

VIII. Rubber Ball Stinger 12 gauge (part# 3016) – The rubber ball stinger 12 
gauge munition is a translucent 12 gauge shell loaded with approximately 
eighteen 32-caliber rubber balls.  The 12 gauge rubber ball stinger is 
generally considered a low to medium pain compliance munition for close 
range deployment. The round has a maximum effective range of 
approximately 25 feet and a velocity of 500 fps.  It is suitable for 
administering a means of pain compliance and is mainly used for routing 
crowds or groups that are mildly resistive. Defense Technology | cost: 
$360 | quantity: 60  

b. Purpose: 

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 86 of 207



7 

To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited 
or undesirable.  Situations for use of these kinetic energy weapons and munitions 
may include, but are not limited to: 

I. Self-destructive, dangerous and/or combative individuals
II. Riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents

III. Circumstances where a tactical advantage can be obtained
IV. Dislodging barricaded subjects
V. Potentially vicious and/or dangerous animals
VI. Training exercises or approved demonstrations

c. Authorized Use:
Only personnel that are POST certified as operators or instructors, or personnel
designated by the Chief of Police as authorized to use the above specifically
mentioned kinetic energy weapons and the above specifically mentioned
munitions.

d. Expected Lifespan:
I. Single Shot 40mm Launcher – no expiration
II. Multiple Shot 40mm Launcher – no expiration

III. Bean Bag Shotgun – no expiration
IV. Part# 6325 – no expiration
V. Part# 6025 – no expiration
VI. Part# 6097 – no expiration

VII. Part# 3027 – no expiration
VIII. Part# 3016 – no expiration

e. Fiscal Impact:
I. Single Shot 40mm Launcher – estimated $0 - $2,000 annually
II. Multiple Shot 40mm Launcher – estimated $0-$2,000 annually

III. Bean Bag Shotgun – estimated $0 - $1,000 annually
IV. Part# 6325 – estimated $0 - $4,800 annually
V. Part# 6025 – estimated $0 - $2,000 annually
VI. Part# 6097 – estimated $0 - $1,500 annually

VII. Part# 3027 – estimated $0 - $4,000 annually
VIII. Part# 3016 – estimated $0 - $360 annually

f. Training:
Personnel operating the above mentioned 40mm launcher and kinetic energy
munitions receive POST certified training as an operator or instructor and
complete annual training and qualifications to maintain certification.

g. Legal and Procedural Rules:
Use of the above mentioned 40mm launcher and kinetic energy munitions is
established under policy and procedure manual.  It is the policy of the San
Fernando Police Department to utilize this equipment only for official law
enforcement purposes, according to State and Federal law.

ORD. NO. 1711 
EXHIBIT "A"July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 87 of 207



Assembly Bill No. 481 

CHAPTER 406 

An act to add Chapter 12.8 (commencing with Section 7070) to Division 
7 of Title 1 of the Government Code, relating to military equipment. 

[Approved by Governor September 30, 2021. Filed with 
Secretary of State September 30, 2021.] 

legislative counsel’s digest

AB 481, Chiu. Law enforcement and state agencies: military equipment: 
funding, acquisition, and use. 

Existing law designates the Department of General Services as the agency 
for the State of California responsible for distribution of federal surplus 
personal property, excepting food commodities, and requires the department 
to, among other things, do all things necessary to the execution of its powers 
and duties as the state agency for the distribution of federal personal surplus 
property, excepting food commodities, in accordance with specified federal 
law. Existing law, the Federal Surplus Property Acquisition Law of 1945, 
authorizes a local agency, as defined, to acquire surplus federal property 
without regard to any law which requires posting of notices or advertising 
for bids, inviting or receiving bids, or delivery of purchases before payment, 
or which prevents the local agency from bidding on federal surplus property. 
Existing federal law authorizes the Department of Defense to transfer surplus 
personal property, including arms and ammunition, to federal or state 
agencies for use in law enforcement activities, subject to specified conditions, 
at no cost to the acquiring agency. 

This bill would require a law enforcement agency, defined to include 
specified entities, to obtain approval of the applicable governing body, by 
adoption of a military equipment use policy, as specified, by ordinance at 
a regular meeting held pursuant to specified open meeting laws, prior to 
taking certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, or use of military 
equipment, as defined. The bill would also require similar approval for the 
continued use of military equipment acquired prior to January 1, 2022. The 
bill would allow the governing body to approve the funding, acquisition, 
or use of military equipment within its jurisdiction only if it determines that 
the military equipment meets specified standards. The bill would require 
the governing body to annually review the ordinance and to either disapprove 
a renewal of the authorization for a type, as defined, of military equipment 
or amend the military equipment use policy if it determines, based on an 
annual military equipment report prepared by the law enforcement agency, 
as provided, that the military equipment does not comply with the 
above-described standards for approval. The bill would specify these 
provisions do not preclude a county or local municipality from implementing 

92 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHENTICATED 
ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL

ATTACHMENT "B"® ~ 
LEGISLATIVE 

COUNSEL 
BUREAU 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 88 of 207



additional requirements and standards related to the purchase, use, and 
reporting of military equipment by local law enforcement agencies. 

This bill would also require a state agency, as defined, to create a military 
equipment use policy before engaging in certain activities, publish the policy 
on the agency’s internet website, and provide a copy of the policy to the 
Governor or the Governor’s designee, as specified. The bill would also 
require a state agency that seeks to continue use of military equipment 
acquired prior to January 1, 2022, to create a military equipment use policy. 

This bill would also include findings that the changes proposed by this 
bill address a matter of statewide concern rather than a municipal affair and, 
therefore, apply to all cities, including charter cities. 

By adding to the duties of local officials with respect to the funding, 
acquisition, and use of military equipment, this bill would impose a 
state-mandated local program. 

The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the purpose of 
ensuring public access to the meetings of public bodies and the writings of 
public officials and agencies, to comply with a statutory enactment that 
amends or enacts laws relating to public records or open meetings and 
contains findings demonstrating that the enactment furthers the constitutional 
requirements relating to this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 
The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local agencies 

and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory 
provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement. 

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for 
a specified reason. 

The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

SECTION 1. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following: 
(a)  The acquisition of military equipment and its deployment in our 

communities adversely impacts the public’s safety and welfare, including 
increased risk of civilian deaths, significant risks to civil rights, civil liberties, 
and physical and psychological well-being, and incurment of significant 
financial costs. Military equipment is more frequently deployed in 
low-income Black and Brown communities, meaning the risks and impacts 
of police militarization are experienced most acutely in marginalized 
communities. 

(b)  The public has a right to know about any funding, acquisition, or use 
of military equipment by state or local government officials, as well as a 
right to participate in any government agency’s decision to fund, acquire, 
or use such equipment. 

(c)  Decisions regarding whether and how military equipment is funded, 
acquired, or used should give strong consideration to the public’s welfare, 
safety, civil rights, and civil liberties, and should be based on meaningful 
public input. 

92 

— 2 — Ch. 406 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 89 of 207



(d)  Legally enforceable safeguards, including transparency, oversight, 
and accountability measures, must be in place to protect the public’s welfare, 
safety, civil rights, and civil liberties before military equipment is funded, 
acquired, or used. 

(e)  The lack of a public forum to discuss the acquisition of military 
equipment jeopardizes the relationship police have with the community, 
which can be undermined when law enforcement is seen as an occupying 
force rather than a public safety service. 

SEC. 2. Chapter 12.8 (commencing with Section 7070) is added to 
Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code, to read: 

Chapter  12.8.  Funding, Acquisition, and Use of Military 

Equipment 

7070. For purposes of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply: 
(a)  “Governing body” means the elected body that oversees a law 

enforcement agency or, if there is no elected body that directly oversees the 
law enforcement agency, the appointed body that oversees a law enforcement 
agency. In the case of a law enforcement agency of a county, including a 
sheriff’s department or a district attorney’s office, “governing body” means 
the board of supervisors of the county. 

(b)  “Law enforcement agency” means any of the following: 
(1)  A police department, including the police department of a transit 

agency, school district, or any campus of the University of California, the 
California State University, or California Community Colleges. 

(2)  A sheriff’s department. 
(3)  A district attorney’s office. 
(4)  A county probation department. 
(c)  “Military equipment” means the following: 
(1)  Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles. 
(2)  Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored 

personnel carriers. However, police versions of standard consumer vehicles 
are specifically excluded from this subdivision. 

(3)  High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), commonly 
referred to as Humvees, two and one-half-ton trucks, five-ton trucks, or 
wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry apparatus attached. However, 
unarmored all-terrain vehicles (ATVs) and motorized dirt bikes are 
specifically excluded from this subdivision. 

(4)  Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their 
occupants and utilize a tracked system instead of wheels for forward motion. 

(5)  Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to 
facilitate the operational control and direction of public safety units. 

(6)  Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles of any kind. 
(7)  Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive 

in nature. However, items designed to remove a lock, such as bolt cutters, 

92 

Ch. 406 — 3 — 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 90 of 207



or a handheld ram designed to be operated by one person, are specifically 
excluded from this subdivision. 

(8)  Firearms of .50 caliber or greater. However, standard issue shotguns 
are specifically excluded from this subdivision. 

(9)  Ammunition of .50 caliber or greater. However, standard issue shotgun 
ammunition is specifically excluded from this subdivision. 

(10)  Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than .50 caliber, 
including assault weapons as defined in Sections 30510 and 30515 of the 
Penal Code, with the exception of standard issue service weapons and 
ammunition of less than .50 caliber that are issued to officers, agents, or 
employees of a law enforcement agency or a state agency. 

(11)  Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive 
projectiles. 

(12)  “Flashbang” grenades and explosive breaching tools, “tear gas,” 
and “pepper balls,” excluding standard, service-issued handheld pepper 
spray. 

(13)  Taser Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and the 
Long Range Acoustic Device (LRAD). 

(14)  The following projectile launch platforms and their associated 
munitions: 40mm projectile launchers, “bean bag,” rubber bullet, and 
specialty impact munition (SIM) weapons. 

(15)  Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state 
agency to require additional oversight. 

(16)  Notwithstanding paragraphs (1) through (15), “military equipment” 
does not include general equipment not designated as prohibited or controlled 
by the federal Defense Logistics Agency. 

(d)  “Military equipment use policy” means a publicly released, written 
document governing the use of military equipment by a law enforcement 
agency or a state agency that addresses, at a minimum, all of the following: 

(1)  A description of each type of military equipment, the quantity sought, 
its capabilities, expected lifespan, and product descriptions from the 
manufacturer of the military equipment. 

(2)  The purposes and authorized uses for which the law enforcement 
agency or the state agency proposes to use each type of military equipment. 

(3)  The fiscal impact of each type of military equipment, including the 
initial costs of obtaining the equipment and estimated annual costs of 
maintaining the equipment. 

(4)  The legal and procedural rules that govern each authorized use. 
(5)  The training, including any course required by the Commission on 

Peace Officer Standards and Training, that must be completed before any 
officer, agent, or employee of the law enforcement agency or the state agency 
is allowed to use each specific type of military equipment to ensure the full 
protection of the public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties and 
full adherence to the military equipment use policy. 

(6)  The mechanisms to ensure compliance with the military equipment 
use policy, including which independent persons or entities have oversight 

92 

— 4 — Ch. 406 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 91 of 207



authority, and, if applicable, what legally enforceable sanctions are put in 
place for violations of the policy. 

(7)  For a law enforcement agency, the procedures by which members of 
the public may register complaints or concerns or submit questions about 
the use of each specific type of military equipment, and how the law 
enforcement agency will ensure that each complaint, concern, or question 
receives a response in a timely manner. 

(e)  “State agency” means the law enforcement division of every state 
office, officer, department, division, bureau, board, and commission or other 
state body or agency, except those agencies provided for in Article IV 
(except Section 20 thereof) or Article VI of the California Constitution. 

(f)  “Type” means each item that shares the same manufacturer model 
number. 

7071. (a)  (1)  A law enforcement agency shall obtain approval of the 
governing body, by an ordinance adopting a military equipment use policy 
at a regular meeting of the governing body held pursuant to the 
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 (commencing with Section 
11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2) or the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of 
Division 2 of Title 5), as applicable, prior to engaging in any of the 
following: 

(A)  Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to Section 
2576a of Title 10 of the United States Code. 

(B)  Seeking funds for military equipment, including, but not limited to, 
applying for a grant, soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal 
funds, in-kind donations, or other donations or transfers. 

(C)  Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, 
including by borrowing or leasing. 

(D)  Collaborating with another law enforcement agency in the deployment 
or other use of military equipment within the territorial jurisdiction of the 
governing body. 

(E)  Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a 
manner, or by a person not previously approved by the governing body 
pursuant to this chapter. 

(F)  Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an 
agreement with, any other person or entity to seek funds for, apply to receive, 
acquire, use, or collaborate in the use of, military equipment. 

(G)  Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided by 
this paragraph. 

(2)  No later than May 1, 2022, a law enforcement agency seeking to 
continue the use of any military equipment that was acquired prior to January 
1, 2022, shall commence a governing body approval process in accordance 
with this section. If the governing body does not approve the continuing 
use of military equipment, including by adoption pursuant to this subdivision 
of a military equipment use policy submitted pursuant to subdivision (b), 
within 180 days of submission of the proposed military equipment use policy 
to the governing body, the law enforcement agency shall cease its use of 

92 

Ch. 406 — 5 — 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 92 of 207



the military equipment until it receives the approval of the governing body 
in accordance with this section. 

(b)  In seeking the approval of the governing body pursuant to subdivision 
(a), a law enforcement agency shall submit a proposed military equipment 
use policy to the governing body and make those documents available on 
the law enforcement agency’s internet website at least 30 days prior to any 
public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue. 

(c)  The governing body shall consider a proposed military equipment 
use policy as an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting and 
provide for public comment in accordance with the Bagley-Keene Open 
Meeting Act (Article 9 (commencing with Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of 
Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2) or the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 
(commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5), as 
applicable. 

(d)  (1)  The governing body shall only approve a military equipment use 
policy pursuant to this chapter if it determines all of the following: 

(A)  The military equipment is necessary because there is no reasonable 
alternative that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety. 

(B)  The proposed military equipment use policy will safeguard the 
public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties. 

(C)  If purchasing the equipment, the equipment is reasonably cost 
effective compared to available alternatives that can achieve the same 
objective of officer and civilian safety. 

(D)  Prior military equipment use complied with the military equipment 
use policy that was in effect at the time, or if prior uses did not comply with 
the accompanying military equipment use policy, corrective action has been 
taken to remedy nonconforming uses and ensure future compliance. 

(2)  In order to facilitate public participation, any proposed or final military 
equipment use policy shall be made publicly available on the internet website 
of the relevant law enforcement agency for as long as the military equipment 
is available for use. 

(e)  (1)  The governing body shall review any ordinance that it has adopted 
pursuant to this section approving the funding, acquisition, or use of military 
equipment at least annually and, subject to paragraph (2), vote on whether 
to renew the ordinance at a regular meeting held pursuant to the 
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 (commencing with Section 
11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2) or the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part 1 of 
Division 2 of Title 5), as applicable. 

(2)  The governing body shall determine, based on the annual military 
equipment report submitted pursuant to Section 7072, whether each type 
of military equipment identified in that report has complied with the 
standards for approval set forth in subdivision (d). If the governing body 
determines that a type of military equipment identified in that annual military 
equipment report has not complied with the standards for approval set forth 
in subdivision (d), the governing body shall either disapprove a renewal of 
the authorization for that type of military equipment or require modifications 

92 

— 6 — Ch. 406 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 93 of 207



to the military equipment use policy in a manner that will resolve the lack 
of compliance. 

(f)  Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) to (e), inclusive, if a city contracts 
with another entity for law enforcement services, the city shall have the 
authority to adopt a military equipment use policy based on local community 
needs. 

7072. (a)  A law enforcement agency that receives approval for a military 
equipment use policy pursuant to Section 7071 shall submit to the governing 
body an annual military equipment report for each type of military equipment 
approved by the governing body within one year of approval, and annually 
thereafter for as long as the military equipment is available for use. The law 
enforcement agency shall also make each annual military equipment report 
required by this section publicly available on its internet website for as long 
as the military equipment is available for use. The annual military equipment 
report shall, at a minimum, include the following information for the 
immediately preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment: 

(1)  A summary of how the military equipment was used and the purpose 
of its use. 

(2)  A summary of any complaints or concerns received concerning the 
military equipment. 

(3)  The results of any internal audits, any information about violations 
of the military equipment use policy, and any actions taken in response. 

(4)  The total annual cost for each type of military equipment, including 
acquisition, personnel, training, transportation, maintenance, storage, 
upgrade, and other ongoing costs, and from what source funds will be 
provided for the military equipment in the calendar year following 
submission of the annual military equipment report. 

(5)  The quantity possessed for each type of military equipment. 
(6)  If the law enforcement agency intends to acquire additional military 

equipment in the next year, the quantity sought for each type of military 
equipment. 

(b)  Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing an annual military 
equipment report pursuant to this section, the law enforcement agency shall 
hold at least one well-publicized and conveniently located community 
engagement meeting, at which the general public may discuss and ask 
questions regarding the annual military equipment report and the law 
enforcement agency’s funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment. 

7073. (a)  A state agency shall create a military equipment use policy 
prior to engaging in any of the following: 

(1)  Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to Section 
2576a of Title 10 of the United States Code. 

(2)  Seeking funds for military equipment, including, but not limited to, 
applying for a grant, soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal 
funds, in-kind donations, or other donations or transfers. 

(3)  Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, 
including by borrowing or leasing. 

92 

Ch. 406 — 7 — 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 94 of 207



(4)  Collaborating with a law enforcement agency or another state agency 
in the deployment or other use of military equipment within the territorial 
jurisdiction of the governing body. 

(5)  Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a 
manner, or by a person not previously approved by the governing body 
pursuant to this chapter. 

(6)  Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an 
agreement with, any other person or entity to seek funds for, or to apply to 
receive, acquire, use, or collaborate in the use of, military equipment. 

(7)  Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided by 
this subdivision. 

(b)  No later than May 1, 2022, a state agency seeking to continue the use 
of any military equipment that was acquired prior to January 1, 2022, shall 
create a military equipment use policy. 

(c)  A state agency that is required to create a military equipment use 
policy pursuant to this section shall do both of the following within 180 
days of completing the policy: 

(1)  Publish the military equipment use policy on the agency’s internet 
website. 

(2)  Provide a copy of the military equipment use policy to the Governor 
or the Governor’s designee. 

7074. The Legislature finds and declares that ensuring adequate oversight 
of the acquisition and use of military equipment is a matter of statewide 
concern rather than a municipal affair as that term is used in Section 5 of 
Article XI of the California Constitution. Therefore, this chapter applies to 
all cities, including charter cities and shall supersede any inconsistent 
provisions in the charter of any city, county, or city and county. 

7075. Nothing in this chapter shall preclude a county or local 
municipality from implementing additional requirements and standards 
related to the purchase, use, and reporting of military equipment by local 
law enforcement agencies. 

SEC. 3. The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, 
which adds Chapter 12.8 (commencing with Section 7070) to Division 7 of 
Title 1 of the Government Code, furthers, within the meaning of paragraph 
(7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, 
the purposes of that constitutional section as it relates to the right of public 
access to the meetings of local public bodies or the writings of local public 
officials and local agencies. Pursuant to paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of 
Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution, the Legislature makes 
the following findings: 

Requiring local agencies to hold public meetings prior to the acquisition 
of military equipment further exposes that activity to public scrutiny and 
enhances public access to information concerning the conduct of the people’s 
business. 

SEC. 4. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 
of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because the only costs that 
may be incurred by a local agency or school district under this act would 

92 

— 8 — Ch. 406 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 95 of 207



result from a legislative mandate that is within the scope of paragraph (7) 
of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California Constitution. 

O 

92 

Ch. 406 — 9 — 

  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 96 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 97 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 98 of 207



REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Department      ☐ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Mathew Baumgardner, Director of Public Works  
  Kenneth Jones, Management Analyst 
   
Date:  July 18, 2022 
 
Subject: A Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Placement 

of Liens on Real Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid 
Waste Collection Services Billings  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Conduct a Public Hearing; and  
 
b. Pending public testimony, adopt Resolution No. 8169 (Attachment “A”) authorizing the 

placement of a lien against real property as a special assessment on property tax bills for 
the collection of delinquent solid waste billings.  

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On May 16, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1655, authorizing the placement 

of liens on real property for non-payment of solid waste collection bills.  The City’s ability to 
place delinquent sums on the tax roll is conditioned upon the local solid waste hauler 
having made multiple attempts to collect the invoice on their own by sending notice to the 
customer and later to both the customer and the owner of the property served by the solid 
waste account (in those instances where the customer and the property owner are 
different). After following the process prescribed by Government Code Sections 5473, 
5473a and related statutes, the City Council, by resolution, may approve the placement of 
certain delinquent sums on the tax roll by 2/3 vote.   
 

2. On June 6, 2022, the City Council approved Resolution No. 8151, declaring the City Council’s 
intention to place liens on real property for non-payment of residential and commercial 
solid waste collection services billings and setting the date for a Public Hearing for July 18, 
2022. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 99 of 207



A Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Placement of Liens on Real 
Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services Billings 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Customers that receive solid waste collection services are billed for such services directly by 
Republic Services, the City’s franchise solid waste contractor.  If the bill is not paid within 30 
days, a reminder notice is sent to the account holder.  If payment is not received within 30 days 
following the reminder notice, a second notice of delinquency is sent.  If an account remains 
unpaid 30 days following the second delinquency notice, delinquent a total of 90 days, the 
account can be submitted to the City for collection through the placement of a lien on the tax 
roll.   
 
Following the issuance of required reminder notices, the City’s franchise solid waste contractor, 
Republic Services, provided the City with a list containing 227 accounts (156 residential; 71 
commercial) that were delinquent for more than 90 days as of May 31, 2022.  On June 6, 2022, 
the City Council approved Resolution No. 8151, setting a Public Hearing date for July 18, 2022 
to consider the placement of liens on the tax roll for unpaid residential and commercial solid 
waste collection billings.  Any accounts that are paid and are current have been removed. As of 
July 11, 2022, 93 residential accounts ($41,939.38) and 48 commercial accounts ($68,142.66) 
remain in a delinquent status (Attachment “A,” Exhibit “A”). 
 
Placement of Liens. 
Authority to collect delinquent solid waste fees on the tax roll is found under Health & Safety 
Code Section 5473 and 5473a.  The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1655 establishing 
procedures in accordance with these statutes that allow for the tax roll collection process to 
occur.  In accordance with State and local guidelines, the following actions have been 
completed to satisfy noticing requirements: 
 
• Mail Notice. 

Notice was sent to both account holders and property owners during the week of June 13, 
2022.  Upon request, account information has been provided to either account holders or 
property owners relative to delinquent billing amounts.  Notices indicate a final payment 
due date of July 17, 2022 for account holders to bring accounts current.  Attachment “B” is 
a sample notice provided to account holders and/or property owners. 

 
• Public Notice and Annual Report. 

Notice was published in the San Fernando Valley Sun Newspaper on June 23, 2022 and June 
30, 2022, which included the time and place of the Public Hearing where the City Council 
will consider the placement of liens for non-payment of solid waste collection billings.  
Attachment “C” is a copy of the published Public Hearing notice and lien list.  As stated in 
the Public Notice, “The written report describing each parcel of real property receiving solid 
waste collection service for which payment is delinquent was made available for review at 
the Department of Public Works.” 

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 100 of 207



A Public Hearing to Consider Adoption of a Resolution Authorizing the Placement of Liens on Real 
Property for Non-Payment of Residential and Commercial Solid Waste Collection Services Billings 
Page 3 of 3 

Public Hearing. 
The City Council can make modifications to the annual report of delinquent accounts prior to 
placement on the tax roll.  This may occur if a customer/property owner is able to prove to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the City that the account was never delinquent or that there is an 
error in the report for which a correction is justified.  Any modifications will need to be 
processed by August 1, 2022.  On August 3, 2022, the final delinquent annual report list will be 
forwarded to the County of Los Angeles for inclusion on the tax roll. 

BUDGET IMPACT: 

The City will incur administrative costs associated with the preparation of the annual report, 
complying with noticing requirements and payment of sums to the County of Los Angeles for 
their role in collecting delinquent sums on the tax roll. To offset these costs, the City’s 
Ordinance authorizes deduction of five percent from sums actually collected to cover the City’s 
administration expenses prior to remitting collections to the solid waste hauler.  

CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8069 authorizing the placement 
of liens on real property for non-payment of solid waste collection services billings. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Resolution No. 8069, including:
Exhibit A: Final Report

B. Mailing Notice
C. Public Hearing/Lien List

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 101 of 207



ATTACHMENT “A” 

RESOLUTION NO. 8069 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO, 
CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE FINAL FORM OF THE DELINQUENT 
CHARGES REPORT FOR PAST DUE AND PAYABLE ACCOUNTS FOR 
RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
AND DISPOSAL SERVICES PROVIDED BY REPUBLIC SERVICES FROM APRIL 
1, 2019, THROUGH MARCH 31, 2022 AND DIRECTING THAT THE SAME 
BE SUBMITTED TO THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 
FOR COLLECTION ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLL TAX YEAR 2022 

WHEREAS, on the May 16, 2016, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1655 declaring 
that periodically the City shall, by resolution, order that liens be placed on real property for the 
collection of solid waste fees reported delinquent pursuant to delinquent solid waste account 
reports; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has received a report (the “Report”) which was prepared in 
accordance with California Health and Safety Code Sections 5473 and 5473(a), containing a 
sufficiently detailed summary of information relating to certain delinquent accounts of 
Customers for municipal solid waste collection, recycling, transport and disposal services which 
are subject to collection pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance 1655; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s staff has verified that all noticing requirements of Ordinance 1655, 
as relates to all accounts appearing in the Report, have been complied with; and  

WHEREAS, on the June 6, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 8151, declaring 
its intention to set a public hearing to consider the placement of liens on real property for non-
payment of residential solid waste collection services billings; 

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2022, written notice was provided to all account holders and 
property owners by United States mail, with postage properly affixed, that on July 18, 2022 at 
6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible, a public hearing shall be held to hear the above 
mentioned report and any objections or protests thereto.  Said notice was mailed, as required 
by law, more than ten (10) days prior to the hearing.  In addition, a list of the delinquent service 
addresses was published in the San Fernando Sun on June 23, 2022 and June 30, 2022, as 
required by California Health and Safety Code Section 5470-5474.10; and 

WHEREAS, on July 18, 2022, the City conducted a public hearing in accordance with 
Health and Safety Code Section 5473a to identify delinquent residential municipal solid waste 
collection, transport, recycling and disposal service rate amounts, as more fully identified in the 
Report, payable for services rendered by Republic Services from April 1, 2019 through March 
31, 2022; and 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 102 of 207



RES. NO. 8069 
 

2 

WHEREAS, the delinquent payable amounts shall be collected on the tax roll for the City 
and County Tax Year 2022-2023 in the same manner and at the same time with ad volorem 
property taxes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SAN FERNANDO DOES HEREBY 

RESOLVE, FIND, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby finds and determines that the City has given 
notice of publication to all interested persons of the public hearing as ordered by applicable 
law, and that on July 18, 2022 a full, fair and complete public hearing was conducted by the City 
Council on this matter as provided by applicable law.  A copy of the proof of publication of the 
notice of the public hearing is on file as an official record of the Office of the City Clerk. 
 

SECTION 2.  The City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of a written Report, as 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Final Report”). 
The Final Report will incorporate the changes, corrections, modifications, exceptions and 
deletions to the Report based upon comments received by the City Council from interested 
persons during the public hearing on July 18, 2022. 
 

SECTION 3.  Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Sections 5473 and 5473a, the City 
Council hereby orders that the delinquent charges in the amounts indicated for each Customer 
in the Final Report, shall be collected for the City by the Los Angeles County Tax Collector on 
the 2022-2023 tax roll. The Los Angeles County Auditor Controller is hereby requested to enter 
the amounts of the delinquent charges as shown in the final Report against the respective lots 
or parcels of land as they appear on the current assessment roll. 
 

SECTION 4.  The City Council hereby authorizes and directs the Director of Public 
Works to make such additional administrative corrections to the Final Report as may be 
necessary or appropriate and to delete the name of each Customer from the Final Report, who 
may have completed payment in full of the delinquent amount by August 1, 2022, who is 
otherwise determined, in writing, by the Director of Public Works to be eligible for removal 
from the Final Report, prior to its certification and delivery to the Los Angeles County Auditor.  
 

SECTION 5.  The City Clerk, in cooperation with the Director of Public Works, is hereby 
authorized and directed to modify, if necessary, the Final Report, as may be modified pursuant 
to Section 5 of this Resolution, and certified as the Final Report for tax year 2022-2023 and filed 
with the Office of the Auditor-Controller of Los Angeles County, in the manner provided in 
Health and Safety Code Section 5473.4. 
 

SECTION 6. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute any 
necessary or appropriate modification to the direct local assessment and collection agreement 
by and between Los Angeles County and the City as may be necessary or appropriate to 
facilitate the collection of the delinquent amounts as described in the Final Report on the tax 
roll for 2022-2023. The relevant information included in the Final Report shall be transmitted to 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 103 of 207



RES. NO. 8069 
 

3 

the Auditor-Controller in an appropriate record format in order to facilitate such collection. 
Upon remittance to the City of the charges identified in the Final Report which are collected by 
the County Tax Collector for each of the Customers identified in the Final Report, such amounts 
shall be remitted by the City to the Company, less the administrative fee and Franchise Fees 
and other fees due to the City. 
 

SECTION 7.  If any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this Resolution or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of the Resolution or any part thereof. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or 
more of these sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, phrases or 
portions thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more of these sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases may later be held or declared to be 
invalid. 
 

SECTION 8.  The Mayor shall sign this resolution, and the City Clerk shall attest and 
certify the passage and adoption thereof.  The City Clerk shall cause a certified copy of this 
Resolution to be recorded in the Official Records of the County of Los Angeles. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS 18th day of July, 2022. 

 
 
ATTEST: 
              

Mary Mendoza, Mayor of the City of San 
Fernando, California 

      
Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Richard Padilla, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 104 of 207



RES. NO. 8069 

4 

CERTIFICATION 

I, City Clerk of the City of San Fernando, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, 
true, and correct copy of Resolution No. 8069 which was regularly introduced and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of San Fernando, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on the 
18th day of July, 2022, by the following vote of the City Council: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAINED: 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of the 
City of San Fernando, California, this _____ day of July, 2022.  

Julia Fritz, City Clerk 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 105 of 207



RES. NO. 8069
EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NUMBERS CITY LIEN AMOUNT

0 SAN FERNANDO 1,290.31 

2520009007 SAN FERNANDO 160.05 

2520008007 SAN FERNANDO 2,714.48 

2520007021 SAN FERNANDO 786.40 

2520007011 SAN FERNANDO 3,084.49 

2520002016 SAN FERNANDO 2,660.07 

2519020003 SAN FERNANDO 140.89 

2519021036 SAN FERNANDO 278.82 

2518007001

PROPERTY ADDRESS

1015 1ST ST

1516 1ST ST

1720 1ST ST

1803 1ST ST

1807 1ST ST

2021 1ST ST

628 4TH ST

655 4TH ST

1223 4TH ST SAN FERNANDO 525.09 

2516010002 1815 7TH ST SAN FERNANDO 280.30 

2517008024 1941 7TH ST SAN FERNANDO 49.23 

2517008023 1949 7TH ST SAN FERNANDO 725.19 

2513031008 825 8TH ST SAN FERNANDO 167.74 

2513019068 1401 8TH ST SAN FERNANDO 103.59 

2513018051 1531 8TH ST SAN FERNANDO 136.88 

2520024006 128 N ALEXANDER ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2518027006 627 N ALEXANDER ST SAN FERNANDO 963.21 

2518028011 646 N ALEXANDER ST SAN FERNANDO 310.24 

2518026001 731 N ALEXANDER ST SAN FERNANDO 280.30 

2516032027 858 N ALEXANDER ST SAN FERNANDO 218.96 

0 640 ARROYO ST SAN FERNANDO 183.97 

2524015037 660 ARROYO ST SAN FERNANDO 1,761.21 

0 121 BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 699.00 

2519015002 400 N BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 140.39 

2522011002 611 S BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 695.50 

2515020016 860 N BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2515018019 907 N BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 575.32 

2515027001 1006 N BRAND BLVD SAN FERNANDO 315.24 

2425003033 905 CELIS ST SAN FERNANDO 3,514.32 

2521032009 1135 CELIS ST SAN FERNANDO 2,681.54 

2522012021 523 CHATSWORTH DR SAN FERNANDO 131.26 

2517008015 1958 CHIVERS ST SAN FERNANDO 713.98 

2517005024 2043 CHIVERS ST SAN FERNANDO 287.81 

2521022005 1224 CORONEL ST SAN FERNANDO 125.76 

2517013019 2020 DONNAGLEN AVE SAN FERNANDO 93.84 

2517013049 821 FAYECROFT ST SAN FERNANDO 60.00 

2518014007 520 FERMOORE ST SAN FERNANDO 237.51 

2518019006 639 FERMOORE ST SAN FERNANDO 103.46 

2516015015 1611 FERMOORE DR SAN FERNANDO 582.36 

2514001062 12940 FOOTHILL BLVD SYLMAR 49.10 

2516003014 1617 GLENOAKS BLVD SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2522027018 623 GRIFFITH ST SAN FERNANDO 309.28 

2521035007 1134 GRIFFITH ST SAN FERNANDO 182.26 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 106 of 207



 RES. NO. 8069
EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NUMBERS CITY LIEN AMOUNT

2519013009 SAN FERNANDO 963.21 

2515021024 SAN FERNANDO 971.83 

2518012018 SAN FERNANDO 90.30 

2518012023 SAN FERNANDO 233.96 

2518025008 SAN FERNANDO 320.24 

2520016009

PROPERTY ADDRESS 
513 GRISWOLD AVE

843 GRISWOLD AVE

512 HARDING AVE

538 HARDING AVE

752 HARDING AVE

203 HARPS ST SAN FERNANDO 963.21 

2520016015 227 HARPS ST SAN FERNANDO 2,569.44 

2520016014 231 HARPS ST SAN FERNANDO 1,364.72 

2520015012 315 HARPS ST SAN FERNANDO 1,967.08 

2518025016 731 HARPS ST SAN FERNANDO 228.96 

2522007014 1031 HEWITT ST SAN FERNANDO 78.84 

2521011006 1324 HEWITT ST SAN FERNANDO 237.28 

2522029006 626 HOLLISTER ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2521028005 1118 HOLLISTER ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2521013013 1339 HOLLISTER ST SAN FERNANDO 264.60 

0 56 HUBBARD AVE SAN FERNANDO 403.62 

2517013004 14020 HUBBARD ST SYLMAR 762.36 

2520012012 220 N HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2518001007 429 N HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 104.60 

2518001006 435 N HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 226.90 

2521038009 664 S HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 122.44 

2516006001 924 N HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 88.84 

2516011005 1062 N HUNTINGTON ST SAN FERNANDO 590.36 

2612014018 556 JACKMAN AVE SYLMAR 272.82 

2613010031 717 S KALISHER ST SAN FERNANDO 530.24 

2522028019 607 KEWEN ST SAN FERNANDO 211.29 

2522009001 1000 KEWEN ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2522009003 1012 KEWEN ST SAN FERNANDO 963.21 

2521010004 1316 KEWEN ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2521010009 1338 KEWEN ST SAN FERNANDO 438.40 

2516017019 1529 KNOX ST SAN FERNANDO 128.08 

2517003010 2032 KNOX ST SAN FERNANDO 146.52 

2612024005 712 LASHBURN ST SYLMAR 762.36 

2520004033 222 N LAZARD ST SAN FERNANDO 223.96 

2517018020 635 N LAZARD ST SAN FERNANDO 533.98 

2722003002 501 LIBRARY ST SAN FERNANDO 189.51 

2518008013 1110 LIBRARY ST SAN FERNANDO 583.63 

2517012026 1915 LUCAS ST SAN FERNANDO 246.52 

2517013038 2036 LUCAS ST SAN FERNANDO 310.24 

2519002010 110 MACLAY AVE SAN FERNANDO 1,671.28 

2522003014 202 S MACLAY AVE SAN FERNANDO 1,908.20 

2519005004 204 N MACLAY AVE SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2518008013 455 N MACLAY AVE SAN FERNANDO 595.05 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 107 of 207



 RES. NO. 8069
EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NUMBERS CITY LIEN AMOUNT

2518009018 SAN FERNANDO 751.29 

2521026022 SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2518030001 SAN FERNANDO 843.53 

2516027001 SAN FERNANDO 885.04 

2516027006 SAN FERNANDO 1,276.31 

2519006014 SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2515018010 SAN FERNANDO 410.58 

2522025017 SAN FERNANDO 395.34 

2613007006 SAN FERNANDO 125.76 

2613007006 SAN FERNANDO 199.26 

2516022010 SAN FERNANDO 292.76 

2515004021 SAN FERNANDO 218.96 

2613002045 SAN FERNANDO 691.20 

2518017004 SAN FERNANDO 310.24 

2518018003 SAN FERNANDO 316.70 

2515019006 SAN FERNANDO 764.14 

2517004002 SAN FERNANDO 36.52 

2517006012 SAN FERNANDO 177.68 

2521021906

PROPERTY ADDRESS

513 N MACLAY AVE

603 S MACLAY AVE

701 MACLAY AVE

951 N MACLAY AVE

967 N MACLAY AVE

323 N MACNEIL ST

930 N MACNEIL ST

719 MOTT ST

1224 MOTT ST

1226 MOTT ST

1211 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 
672 NEWTON ST

637 OMELVENY AVE

628 ORANGE GROVE AVE 
722 ORANGE GROVE AVE 
925 ORANGE GROVE AVE 
1107 ORANGE GROVE AVE 
1938 PHILLIPPI ST

1212 PICO ST SAN FERNANDO 1,551.58 

2521015027 1329 PICO ST SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2521014028 1332 PICO ST SAN FERNANDO 562.36 

2612009002 1608 PICO ST SAN FERNANDO 78.84 

2425003033 908 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 864.09 

2425003033 910 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,806.30 

2522003033 912 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,485.39 

2522003026 1000 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,178.37 

2522003026 1002 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,002.07 

2522003002 1008 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 91.23 

3089460000 1012 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 399.92 

2615660000 1015 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 521.18 

2522003005 1016 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,877.52 

2522002007 1019 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,332.73 

2522002007 1021 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,633.55 

2522002007 1023 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,822.30 

2522002008 1025 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 3,266.51 

2522002010 1031 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 2,167.14 

2522003010 1034 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 202.41 

2522003012 1040 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,941.67 

2522003014 1044 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 6,305.48 

2521033002 1109 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 4,333.79 

2521032002 1110 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,144.24 

2521033002 1111 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,820.38 

2521033004 1115 SAN FERNANDO RD SAN FERNANDO 1,056.94 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 108 of 207



RES. NO. 8069
EXHIBIT "A"

PARCEL NUMBERS CITY LIEN AMOUNT

2521033005 SAN FERNANDO 85.43 

2521033015 SAN FERNANDO 1,070.32 

2521033015 SAN FERNANDO 210.90 

2516027032 SAN FERNANDO 653.56 

2516026030 SAN FERNANDO 762.36 

2516006022 SAN FERNANDO 148.43 

2516009012 SAN FERNANDO 46.87 

2516008012 SAN FERNANDO 241.17 

2517012015 SAN FERNANDO 351.36 

2522027014 SAN FERNANDO 554.98 

2612028005 SAN FERNANDO 32.69 

2518023015

PROPERTY ADDRESS

1123 SAN FERNANDO RD 
1143 SAN FERNANDO RD 
1145 SAN FERNANDO RD 
1125 WARREN ST

1305 WARREN ST

1602 WARREN ST

1627 WARREN ST

1813 WARREN ST

1964 WARREN ST

616 WOLFSKILL ST

1423 WOODWORTH ST 
656 N WORKMAN ST SAN FERNANDO 46.92 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 109 of 207



 ATTACHMENT “B” 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
MAYOR 
JOEL FAJARDO 
 
VICE MAYOR 
SYLVIA BALLIN 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
ROBERT C. GONZALES 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
ANTONIO LOPEZ 
 
COUNCILMEMBER 
HECTOR A. PACHECO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC WORKS 

DEPARTMENT 
 
117 MACNEIL STREET 
SAN FERNANDO 
CALIFORNIA 
91340 
 
(818) 898-1222 
 
WWW.SFCITY.ORG 
 

Date 

Contact First Last Name 
 Address 
City, State Zip Code 

RE:   Address: 
 Account No.: 
 Parcel:     Amount Due:  $  
 
Dear Property Owner(s): 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 70 (Sections 5473 & 5473A) of the San Fernando Municipal Code, the City shall 
place a lien for unpaid refuse collection charges on real property if the owner(s) of the property served do 
not make payment directly to Consolidated Disposal Service, LLC.  Consolidated’s records indicate that 
the owner(s) of the property referenced above are delinquent in the payment of rubbish charges for the 
period of April 1, 2018 through March 31, 2019. 
 
To avoid having a lien placed against your property for rubbish charges and collection costs, you must 
make payment directly to the City’s Contractor (Consolidated) by July 5, 2019.  When making payment 
please mark “LIEN” on your payment envelope, as well as, your check/money order to help 
identify and record the payment.  The contractor’s address is as follows: 
 

CONSOLIDATED DISPOSAL SERVICE, LLC. 
12949 TELEGRAPH ROAD 

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA  90610 
Phone: (562) 347-4016      FAX:  (562) 347-4092 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that if you wish to protest the charges, you may attend a Public Hearing 
to be held at San Fernando City Hall, City Council Chambers, 117 MacNeil Street., San Fernando, on 
July 15, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  All interested persons may attend and be heard at that time. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Nick Kimball 
City Manager 
……………………………………………………………………………........................................................................................ 
PLEASE TEAR ALONG DOTTED LINE ABOVE AND MAIL THIS PORTION WITH YOUR PAYMENT IN THE ENCLOSED ENVELOPE 
 
Subject Property/Service Address:       
Dollar Amount of Delinquent fees and Penalty:  $  «Total__Tax_lien_letter» 
Name and Phone Number of Company:                    Consolidated Disposal Service 
Providing Trash Collection Services:   (562) 347-4016 
Account Number:      30902  
Parcel Number:     «PARCEL» 

IF PAYING BY CREDIT CARD OR DEBIT CARD, PLEASE FILL OUT BELOW. WE ALSO ACCEPT CHECKS BY PHONE 
   MASTERCARD           VISA          AMERICAN EXPRESS                ATM/DEBIT     Security code on the back of 
Credit card___________ (Security code must be included to process credit card payment) 
** WE WILL PROCESS YOUR PAYMENT OVER THE PHONE AT NO CHARGE  BY CALLING 562 347 4016** 
CARDHOLDER NAME: 
CARDHOLDER ADDRESS:                                                                                                                ZIP: 
CARD NUMBER:                                                                                      EXPIRES:                          SECURITY CODE: 
SIGNATURE 
AMOUNT PAID:         $ 

 

SAN f ERNANm 

□ 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 110 of 207

http://www.sfcity.org/


ATTACHMENT "C"
Your Return Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication 
c201ss c.cP.) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of the county aforesaid; I am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Under the date of 8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit: 

6/30/2022 

all in the year 2022. I certify (or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, 

this 30th day of June, 2022 

Signature, 

Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARINC3 OF CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SAN FERNANDO TO CONSIDER PLACEMENT OF LIENS ON REAL 
PROPERTY FOR NON-PAYMENT OF RESIDENTIAL AND COMMER• 
CIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES BILLINGS AS OF JUNE 
17, 2022 ON THE LOS ANGELES COUNTY TAX ROLLS 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of San 
Fernando, California, will hold a public hearing in the Council Chambers 
at City Hall, 117 Macneil Sueet, San Fernando; beginning at 6:00 p.rn., on 
July 1 B, 2022 to consider the following: 

Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 5473(8), a written re
port been filed with the City Clerk of the City of San Fernando. The re
port contains a description of each parcel of real property receiving solid 
waste collectlon service, for which payment Is delinquent and containing 
the amount of delinquent solid waste collection service charges, for each 
such parcel for the period ending March 31 , 2022, computed in confonnity 
with the charges prescribed In Chapter 70 of the San Fernando Municipal 
Code. 

The purpose of the hearing is to determine whether the delinquent 
solid waste collectlon charges described in said report shall be collected 
on the tax roll in the same manner, by the same person and at the same 
time as, together with and not separately from, the general taxes of the 
City of San Fernando. This means that, if the delinquent ctiarges arv not 
paid in a timely manner, they may be assessed against the property and 

· collected as a tax lien. 
The written report describing each parcel of real property receiving solid 

waste collection llerVice for which payment is delinquent is available for 
review at the Department of Public Works between the hours of 7:30 am. 
ani:t 5:30 p.m., Monday through Thursday, and Fridays between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. and 5 p.m. Please contact the Department of Publlc Works 
at (818) 898-1222 if you would like to schedule an appointment to review 

, the report of parcels that are currently delinquent in their payment of solid 
waste collection services fees. 

If you wish to protest the charges' you may respond to this notice 
verbally at the public hearing and/or in writing before the public hearing 
and submitted to the City Council by letter (for mall or hand delivery) to: 

Julia Fritz, City Clerk 
City of San Fernando 

117 Macneil Street 
San Fernando, CA 91340 

All opportunity will be given at said hearing for all interested persons 
to be heard. Questions regarding this matter may be directed to Maria 
Padilla, Department of Public Works, (818) 898-1222. . 

Las personas interesadaa tendran la oportunidad de ser escucha
das durante la audlencia publics. SI tiene preguntas concemientes · a 
este asunto, por favor llama al Departamento de Obraa Publicas y co
rnuniqueee con Maria Padilla al (818) 898-1222. 

To avoid having a lien placed against your property you must make 
payment directly to the City's contractor, Republic Collection Service by 
July 17, 2022. When making payment please write LIEN on your payment 
envelope as well as your check. The contractor"s contact lnfonnation is: 

Republic Services 
12949Telegraph Road 

Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 
.(800) 299-4898 

Dated this 30th day of June 2022 
City of San Fernando, California 
ls/Julia Fritz, City Cieri( 
L12948 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 111 of 207



Your Return Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication -

(2015.5 C.C.P.) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of the county aforesaid; I am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Under the date of 8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit: 

6/30/2022 

all in the year 2022. I certify (or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, 

this 30th day of June, 2022 

Signature, 

t_;gL 
Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 
11. 
12. 
13. 
14. 
15. 
16. 
17. 
18. 
19. 
20. 
21. 
22. 
23. 
24. 
25. 
26. 
'O. 
28. 
29. 
30. 
31. 
32. 
33. 
34. 
35. 
36. 
37. 
38. 
39. 
40. 
41. 
42. 
43. 
44. 
45. 
46. 
47. 
48. 
49. 
50. 
51. 
52. 
53. 
54. 
55. 
56. 
57. 
58. 
59. 
60. 
61. 
62. 
63. 
84. 

MAILING ADDRESS SITE ADDRESS TOTAL DUE 
1013 N SAN VICENTE BLVD 10151ST 1,290.31 
15840 VENTURA BLVD 310 15161ST 160.05 
14800 RINALDI ST 17201ST 2,714.48 
14800 RINALDI ST 18031ST 786.40 
18856 NAU AVE 1807 ST 3,084.49 
24979 CONSTITUTIONAVE#14111912 ST 236.20 
535 S ORANGE GROVE BLVD20211ST 2,660.07 
14417 CHASE ST 575 628 4TH 140.89 
10950 ARLETA AVE 655 4TH 278.82 
12194THST 12194TH 78.84 
12039 GERALD AVE 12234TH 525.09 
1815 7THST 18151TH 280.30 
1941 TTHST 1941 7TH 49.23 
18223 SANDR!NGHAM CT 19497TH 725.19 
8198THST 8258TH 251.58 
2921 FILLMORE AVE 1223 8TH 110.30 
1717 MAIN ST 2000 1401 8TH 103.59 
1531 B'THST 1531 8TH 136.88 
19668THST 1966 8TH 315.24 
128 NALEXANDER ST 128 ALEXANDER 762.36 
627 N ALEXANDER ST 627 ALEXANDER 963.21 
646 N ALEXANDER ST 646 ALEXANDER 310.24 
731 N ALEXANDER ST 731 ALEXANDER 280.30 
834 N ALEXANDER ST 834 ALEXANDER 260.30 
656 N ALEXANDER ST 858 ALEXANDER 218.96 
640 ARROYO ST 640ARROYO 683.97 
13802 CAUFAST 660 ARROYO 1,761.21 
27713 WAKEFIELD RD 700 ARROYO 498.28 
12752 CUMPSTON ST 751 ARROYO 107.55 
21625 PRAIRIE ST 1104ARROYO 563.80 
121 S BRAND BLVD 121 BRAND 699.00 
400 N BRAND BLVD 400 BRAND 140.39 
611 S BRAND BLVD 611 BRAND 695.50 
9929 GERALD AVE 834BRAND 1,149.72 
13639 PINNEY ST 860BRAND 762.36 
907 N BRAND BLVD 907 BRAND 575.32 
1006 N BRAND BLVD 1006 BRAND 315.24 
900 SAN FERNANDO RD 903CEUS 138.81 
900 SAN FERNANDO RO 905CEUS 3,514.32 . 
1200 OPAL ST 15 1135 CELIS 2,681 .54 
13490 CHIVERS AVE 523 CHATSWORTH 131.28 
1958 CHIVERS ST 1958 CHIVERS 713.96 
POBOX941 2043 CHIVERS 287.81 
1224 CORONEL ST 1224 CORONEL 125.76 
2020 DONNAGLEN AVE 2020 DONNAGLEN 93.84 
821 FAYECROFT ST 821 FAYECROFT 60.00 
520 FERMOORE ST 520 FERMOORE 237.51 
639 FERMOORE ST 639 FERMOORE 103.46 
1611 FERMOORE DR 1611 FERMOORE 582.36 
24617 CORDERA CT 1623 FERMOORE 218.96 
433 N CAMDEN DR STE 50 12940 FOOTHILL 49.10 
713S FOXST 713FOX 762.36 
1219 GLENOAKS BLVD 1219 GLENOAKS 172.68 
16449 ARMSTEAD ST 1402 GLENOAKS 363.27 
1615 GlENOAKS BLVD 1617 GLENOAKS 762.36 
10206 NOBLE AVE 623 GRIFFITH 309.28 
1134 GRIFFITH ST 1134 GRIFFITH 182.26 
1603PICOST 513 GRISWOLD 963.21 
602 GRISWOLO AVE 602 GRISWOLD 88.84 
834 GRISWOLD AVE 843 GRISWOLD 971 .83 
921 GRISWOLD AVE 921 GRISWOLD 280.30 
4020 ELLENrTAAVE 830HAGAR 289.42 
417 HARDING AVE 417 HARDING 372.44 
6BAYMAAERD 432 HARDING 315.24 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 112 of 207



Your Return Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication -

(2015.5 C.CP.) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of the county aforesaid; I am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Under the date of 8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit: 

6/30/2022 

all in the year 2022. I certify (or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, 

this 30th day of June, 2022 

Signature, 

Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO,CA 91340 

MAILING ADDRESS 
65. 512 HARDING AVE 
66. 8235 KESTER AVE 221 
fJ'l. 752 HARDING AVE 
68. 203 HARPS ST 
89. 17321 CAGNEY ST 
70. 17321 CAGNEY ST 
71 . 315 HARPS ST 
72. 502 HARPS ST 
73. 731 HARPS ST 
74. 1031 HEWITT ST 
75. 1324 HEWITT ST 
78. 1402HEWITTST 
77. 15045 FRIAR ST 
78. 626 HOLLISTER ST 
79. 8910 AMESTOY AVE 
80. 10870 ZELZAH AVE 
81. 1339 HOLLISTER S1 
82. 1340 HOLLISTER ST 
83. . 56 N HUBBARD AVE 

• 84. 14202 HUBBARD ST 
85. 220 N HUNTINGTON ST 
86. 301 N HUNTINGTON ST 
87. 15749 EXCELSIOR ST 
88. PO BOX 672 
89. 13874 POLK ST 
90. 924 N HUNTINGTON ST 
91. 828 S CARDINAL AVE 
92. 556 JACKMAN AVE 
93. 758 JACKMAN AVE 
94. 717 S KALISHEA ST 
95. 807 KEWEN ST 
96. 1000 KEWEN ST 
97. 1012 KEWEN ST 
98. 1125 KEWEN ST 
99. 18325 KESWICK ST 13B 
100. 1338 KEWEN ST 
101. 1529KNOXST 
102. 22341 QUINTARD 
103. 2032 KNOX ST 
104. 7.12 LASHBURN ST 
105. 222 N LAZARD ST 
106. 635 N LAZARD ST 
107. 501 LIBRARY ST 
108. 11522 GARRICK AVE 
109. 1915 LUCAS ST 
110. 2036 LUCAS ST 
111. 601 S BRAND BLVD 
112. 1131 SAN FERNANDO AD 
113. 595 SHREWSBURY AVE 206 
114. 208 N MACI.AY AVE 
115. 5629 CALHOUN AVE 
116. 5629 CALHOUN AVE 
117. 11522 GARRICK AVE 
118. 513 N MACLAY AVE 
119. 803 S MACLAY AVE 
120. 13432 LOCHAIN LN 
121. 18324CLAAKST305 
122. 1617 KNOX.ST 
123. 514 NEWBURY AD 
124. 443 N MACNEIL ST 
125. 93P N MACNEIL ST 
126. 3012 GLENDWOOD PL 
127. 248 N MEYER ST 
128. 613 MOTT ST 

SITE ADORESS 
512 HARDING 
538 HARDING 
752 HARDING 
203 HARPS 
'ZZl HARPS 
231 HARPS 
315 HARPS 
502 HARPS 
731 HARPS 
1031 HEWITT 
1324 HEWITT 
1402HEWITT 
626 HOU.ISTEA 
711 HOLLISTER 
1118 HOLLISTER 
1313 HOLUSTER 
1339 HOLLISTER 
1340 HOU.ISTER 
58 HUBBARD 
14020 HUBBARD 
220 HUNTINGTON 
301 HUNTINGTON 
429 HUNTINGTON 
435 HUNTINGTON 
664 HUNTINGTON 
924 HUNTINGTON 
1062 HUNTINGTON 
556JACKMAN 
758JACKMAN 
717 KALISHEA 
607KEWEN 
1000 KEWEN 
1012KEWEN 
1125KEWEN 
1316KEWEN 
1338 KEWEN 
1529 KNOX 
1805 KNOX 
2032KNOX 
712 LASHBUAN 
2221.AZARD 
635LAZARD 
501 LIBRARY 
1110 LIBRARY 
1915LUCAS 
2036LUCAS 
110 MACLAY 
128MACLAY 
202MACLAY 
204MACLAY 
319 MACLAY 
321 MACLAY 
455 MACLAY 
513MACLAY 
803MACLAY 
701 MACLAY 
951 MACLAY 
967MACLAY 
323MACNEIL 
443MACNEIL 
930MACNEIL 
212MEYEA 
248 MEYER 
613 MOTT 

TOTAL DUE 
130.36 
233.96 
320.24 
963.21 
2,569.44 
1,364.72 
1,967.08 
793.14 
228.96 
78.84 
237.28 
182.69 
762.36 
158.60 
762.36 
86.92 
264.60 
218.96 
403.62 
762.36 
762.36 
83.84 
104.80 
226.90 
222.44 
88.84 
590.36 
272.82 
113.46 
530.24 
211.29 
762.36 
963.21 
100.00 
762.36 
438.40 
128.08 
209.30 
146.52 
762.36 
223.96 
533.98 
189.51 
583.63 

246.52 
310.24 
1,671.28 
235.14 
1,908.20 
762.36 
377.13 
1,034.28 
595.05 
751.29 
762.36 
843.53 
885.04 
1,278.31 
762.36 
165.24 
410.58 
125.76 
93.84 
2218.32 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 113 of 207



Your Return Mailing Address 

Name: San Fernando Sun 
Address: 1150 San Fernando Road, Suite 100 
City: San Fernando State CA Zip Code: 91340 

Proof of Publication -

(2015.5 C.C.P .) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES 

The undersigned says: 

I am a citizen of the United States, and 
a resident of the county aforesaid; I am 
over the age of eighteen years; and I 
am not a party to or interested in the 
notice published. I am the chief legal 
advertising clerk of the publisher of the 

San Fernando Valley Sun 

a newspaper of general circulation, printed and 
published weekly in the San Fernando Valley, 
in the County of Los Angeles, and which 
newspaper has been adjudged a 
newspaper of general circulation 
by the Superior Court of the County 
of Los Angeles, State of California, 

Under the date of8-16, 1945 

Case Number 503894 

that the notice, of which the annexed is a printed 
copy has been published in each regular and entire 
issue of said newspaper and not in any supplement 
There of on the following dates, to-wit: 

6/30/2022 

all in the year 2022. I certify (or declare) 
under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true 
and correct. Dated at San Fernando California, 

this 30th day of June, 2022 

Signature, 

~ 
Erica Ramos 
SAN FERNANDO VALLEY SUN 
1150 SAN FERNANDO ROAD, SUITE 100 
SAN FERNANDO,CA 91340 

MAILING ADDRESS srre ADDRESS 
129. 719 MOTT ST 719 MOTT 
130. 1224-1226 MOTT ST 1224 MOTT 
131. 1224-1226 MOlTST 1226 MOTT 
132. 563 S BRAND BLVD 1211 MOUNTAIN VW 
133. 14435COHASSETST 672NEWTON 
134. 1029 NEWTON ST 1029 NEWTON 
135. 1120 NEWTON ST 1120 NEWTON 
136. 637 0 MELVENY AVE 837 0 MELVENY 
137. 1345 0 MELVENYAVE 1345 0 MELVENY 
138. 12765 HERRICK AVE 628 ORANGE GA 
139. 722 ORANGE GROVE AVE 722 ORANGE GA 
140. 925 ORANGE GROVE AVE 925 ORANGE GA 
141. 1107OAANGEGAOVEAVE 1107ORANGEGR 
142. 1920 PHILLIPPI ST 1920 PHIWPPI 
143. 1938 PHIU.IPPI ST 1938 PHILLIPPI 
144. 1971 PHIWPPI ST 1939 PHILLIPPI 
145. 1212 PICO ST 1212 PICO 
146. 637 N WORKMAN ST 1329 PICO 
147. 1330PICOST 1332PICO 
148. 1502 PICO ST 1502 PICO 
149. 1608 PICO ST 1608 PICO 
150. 1634PICOST 1634.PICO 
151. 900 SAN FERNANDO AO 908 SAN FERNANDO 
152. 000 SAN FERNANDO RO 910 SAN FERNANDO 
153. 3815 LONGRIDGE AVE 912 SAN FERNANDO 
154. 3532 BRIGHTON PL 1000 SAN FERNANDO. 
155. 3532 BRIGHTON PL 1002 SAN FERNANDO 
156. 2221 BARAY AVE 1008 SAN FERNANDO 
157. 1012 SAN FERNANDO RD 1012 SAN FERNANDO 
158. 1015 SAN FERNANDO RD 1015 SAN FERNANDO 
159. 2822 MONTANAAVE O 1016 SAN FERNANDO 
160. 2822 MONTANAAVE D 1016 SAN FERNANDO 
161. 3915LONGRIDGEAVE 1019SANFERNANDO 
162. 3915 LONGRIDGE AVE 1021 SAN FERNANDO 
163. 3915 LONGRIDGE AVE 1023 SAN FERNANDO 
164. 88 BUSH ST 2187 1025 SAN FERNANDO 
165. 19735 BUCKEYE MEADOW LN 1031 SAN FERNANDO 
166. 4232 MURIETTAAVE 1032 SAN FERNANDO 
167. 4232 MURIETTAAVE 1034 SAN FERNANDO 
168. 15823CHASEST 1040SANFERNANDO 
169. 13216 BOMBAY ST 1 ~ SAN FERNANDO 
170. 595 SHREWSBURY AVE 206 1044 SAN FERNANDO 
171. PO BOX 672 1109 SAN FERNANDO 
172. 218 S BRANO BLVD 1110 SAN FERNANDO 
173. PO BOX 672 1111 SAN FERNANDO 
174. 2140 W OLYMPIC BLVD 420 1115 SAN FERNANDO 
175. 23903 CLEARMONT CT 1123 SAN FERNANDO 
176. PO BOX 16778 1143 SAN FERNANDO 
1n. PO BOX 16778 1145 SAN FERNANDO 
178. 15455 GLENOAKS BLVD #2221534 SAN FERNANDO 
179. 25681 PRADO DE I.AS FLORES 777 TRUMAN 
180. 1125 WARREN ST 1125 WARREN 
181. 1305 WARREN ST 1305 WARREN 
182. 10300TOPEKADR 1320WARREN 
183. 1602 WARREN ST 1602 WARREN 
184. 1627 WARREN ST 1627 WARREN 
185. 1030 N MACLAY AVE 1813 WARREN 
186. 1964 WARREN ST 1964 WARREN 
187. 2021 WARREN ST 2021 WARREN 
188. 816 WOLFSKILL ST 616 WOLFSKILL 
189. 1423WOODWORlHST 1423WOODWORTH 
190. 642 N WORKMAN ST 642 WORKMAN 
191. P O BOX 920993 656 WORKMAN 
192. 6420 WILSHIRE BLVD 1500 803 WORKMAN 

TOTAL DUE 
395.34 
125.76 
199.26 
292.76 
218.96 
135.76 
310.24 
691.20 
559.46 
310.24 
316.70 
764.14 
36.52 
108.46 
1n.ea 
83.84 
1,551.58 
762.36 
562.36 
78.84 
78.84 
762.36 
864.09 
1,806.30 
1,4S5.39 
1,178.37 
1,002.07 
91.23 
399.82 
521.18 
1,877.52. 
1,694.06 
1,332.73 
1,633.55 
1,822.30 
3,266.51 
2,167.14 
216.97 
652.41 
1,941.67 
1,636.13 
6,305.48 
4,333.79 
1,144.24 
1,820.38 
1,056.94 
85.43 
1,070.32 
210.90 
2,157.54 
285.34 
653.56 
762.36 
113.46 
148.43 
46.87 
241.17 
351.36 
167.79 
554.98 
32.69 
130.76 
46.92 
7.275.10 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 114 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 115 of 207



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 116 of 207



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT       117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340       (818) 898-1227       WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director      ☒ Deputy City Manager      ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Mary Mendoza and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager  
 By:  Kanika Kith, Director of Community Development 
   
Date:  July 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by 

Azure Development, Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot 
No. 3 and the Related Exclusive Negotiation Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Receive and file an update on community outreach from Azure Development, Inc. (“Azure”) 

for potential development options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 (Attachment “A”); and  
 

b. Provide direction related to the Exclusive Negotiation Agreement.  
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On March 4, 2019, Kosmont Companies, the City’s economic development consultant, 

presented its Downtown San Fernando Economic Development and Asset Analysis in an 
informational City Council study session.  Subsequently, the City Council directed staff to 
designate the City-owned Parking Lot No. 3 site as a potential development opportunity site. 
 

2. On September 24, 2019, the City hosted a Downtown Opportunity Site Community Meeting. 
Feedback from the Community Meeting and related online survey are summarized in a 
Memorandum that is available on the City’s website at SFCITY.ORG/Economic-Development.  

 
3. On December 19, 2019, the City issued a Request for Developer Qualifications (“RFQ”) for 

Parking Lot No. 3 Mixed/Blended-Use Development Opportunity – 1.44 Acres on San 
Fernando Mission Blvd. and Celis St. to over 200 entertainment and mixed/blended-use 
developers (available on the City website at SFCITY.ORG/Economic-Development). 

 
4. On January 31, 2020, the City received one (1) response to the RFQ from a development team 

led by Azure, a real estate development corporation, based in Commerce, CA, which was 

ANill 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 117 of 207

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/economic-development/
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/economic-development/


Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 2 of 7 
 
 

reviewed and determined to be a responsible developer that met the qualifications in the 
RFQ.  

 
5. On July 20, 2020, the City Council approved an Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA) 

(Contract No. 1959) with Azure Development, Inc., for a one-year term, with two six-month 
options to extend for the purpose of conducting a project feasibility study, and, if feasible, to 
negotiate a development agreement for the Parking Lot No. 3 opportunity site. 

 
6. On February 1, 2021, the City Council received a presentation from Azure regarding the Draft 

Community Outreach Plan and provided direction. 
 

7. In May 2021, Azure began initial community outreach efforts, which concluded in July 2021. 
 

8. On August 16, 2021, the City Council received a presentation summarizing the community 
outreach responses and the resulting development options from Azure, which included: 1) 
maximizing housing on the site, 2) providing a moderate mix of housing and commercial on 
the site, and 3) maximizing commercial space on the site.  The City Council directed staff to 
work with Azure to provide a more detailed development plan and financial feasibility study 
for each of the three options.  The City Council also directed staff to work with Azure to seek 
additional community input before moving forward on selecting one of the three options.  

 
9. On March 21, 2022, Azure presented three development options to City Council that were 

designed to address comments received from community outreach conducted in July 2021 
and the City Council meeting in August 2021.  The three development options presented 
were: 1) Mixed-Use with 47 housing units, 2) Mixed-Use with 26 housing units, and 3) all 
commercial. A copy of the presentation is included as Attachment “B”.   At this meeting, the 
City Council approved at least 90-days for Azure to conduct three additional outreach 
opportunities to receive input from the community on the three development options.  

 
 
ANALYSIS: 

Overview of the Development Opportunity Site. 
Parking Lot No. 3 is an approximately 1.44-acre site owned by the City that is bounded by San 
Fernando Mission Blvd. to the northwest, Celis St. to the northeast, Pico St. to the southwest, 
and a set of commercial buildings fronting Maclay Ave. to the southeast.  The site is outlined in 
red in the location map below.  The site lies within the Downtown Residential overlay of the 
Downtown District of the Corridors Specific Plan (“SP-5”) area zone.  
 
While the site is currently being used as a 144-space public parking lot, the City has been 
interested in redeveloping the surface parking lot through a public-private partnership.  As noted 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 118 of 207



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 3 of 7 
 
 
in SP-5, “The Downtown District is established for the purpose of creating a lively, mixed-use, 
transit-oriented ‘center of the city’ where the community of San Fernando comes together.” 
Accordingly, the City pursued a catalytic blended-use project that develops connections with the 
main-street shops of the San Fernando Mall along with existing and future transit lines. Through 
the RFQ process, the City sought a blended-use developer to evaluate development of the site to 
achieve goals of the Downtown District. 
 

Location Map 

 
 
Terms of Exclusive Negotiation Agreement (ENA). 
The City and Azure entered into an ENA to establish a specific limited period of time to negotiate 
regarding the terms of the development of the project on the site. The ENA period requires time 
to perform project shaping and due diligence work, study feasibility of the project, conduct 
community outreach and collect community input, and, if feasible, negotiate terms for a binding 
development agreement for a project to move forward.   
 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 119 of 207



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 4 of 7 
 
 
The ENA is due to expire on August 5, 2022, but may be extended by action of the City Council.  
 
City Council Meeting, March 2022.  
On March 21, 2022, Azure provided a presentation on three development options to address the 
comments received during the initial community outreach and City Council meeting in August 
2021.  Three Councilmembers were supportive of a mixed-used project that includes both 
ownership housing (not rental) and commercial uses (these were reflected in Options 1 and 2), 
but wanted feedback from the community on all three options.  One Councilmember was 
supportive of an all commercial, life-style entertainment center, and was concerned about having 
housing in downtown. All four Councilmembers wanted additional feedback from the community 
on the proposed development options. A fifth Councilmember recused themselves from 
deliberation of the project.  

City Council approved at least 90-days for Azure to conduct  three additional outreach meetings 
and gather feedback from the community on all three options.   A brief summary of the three 
development options are as follows:  

Option No. 1:  A traditional mixed-used project that maximizes housing (47 housing units), 
commercial/retail space, a small-format theater (2 screens with approximately 50 seats per 
screen), and a modest garden area and open space.  

Option 1 would not need any financial contribution from the City.  Also, it would provide an 
opportunity for the City to receive approximately $4.7 million from a CalHome grant from the 
State that could be used to help low- and very low-income households with first-time 
homebuyer down payment assistance. 

Option No. 2:  A smaller mixed-use project with fewer housing units (26 housing units), 
reduced commercial/retail space (from Option No. 1), a small-format theater (2 screens with 
approximately 50 seats per screen), a senior health and wellness center, and increased 
garden area and open space. Note: Staff informed the City Council that this option requires a 
minimum of 35 housing units to be in compliance with the minimum density requirement 
pursuant to the San Fernando Corridors Specific Plan (SP-5).  

Option 2 would require the City to contribute $1.2 million that could be funded from the 
City’s Housing Fund.  The cash balance in the City’s Housing Fund as of the end of 2021 is 
$2.16 million, which is currently available to use for low-income housing activities.  Option 2 
would also give the City an opportunity to receive approximately $2.6 million through a 
CalHome grant from the State that could be used to help low- and very low-income 
households with first-time homebuyer down payment assistance.   

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 120 of 207



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 5 of 7 
 
 

Option No. 3:  An all-commercial option, with a small-format theater (2 screens with 
approximately 50 seats per screen), restaurant, retail, open space, and no residential 
component.  

Option 3 would require the City contribute approximately $10.6 million in gap funding. 

Community Outreach by Azure. 
Community outreach was conducted in June 2022 and July 2022 to take advantage of the summer 
break and the community’s presence at the City’s Red White and Lights Laser Show event (July 2, 
2022) to engage a broader audience near the proposed development. The following community 
outreach meetings were conducted:  
 

1. Virtual meeting via Zoom on Thursday, June 9, 2022, at 6pm.  
2. In-person meeting at Parking Lot 3 on Saturday, June 18, 2022, from 10 am to noon.  
3. In-person informational booth at the Red White and Lights Laser Show event on Saturday, 

July 2, 2022, at 6pm.  
4. In-person business-focused meeting at Valley Alarm on Thursday, July 14, 2022, at 6pm. 
5. Additional outreach efforts by Azure include a meeting with residents on June 16, 2022 

and a door-to-door survey. 
 
A report from Azure summarizing all outreach efforts and results is included as Attachment “A”. 

Outreach Summary. 
Virtual Meeting on June 9, 2022.  Azure staff provided a PowerPoint presentation of the three 
development options, and questions were asked and answered during the meeting with 
additional questions asked through Zoom’s “Chat” function.  The transcript of chat questions, 
and corresponding responses, is included in a summary report from Azure (Attachment “A”).  
Approximately 30-40 people attended the outreach.   

During the virtual meeting, a poll question was asked about which option was most desirable. Of 
the attendees, 16 participated in the poll question and the majority preferred the all commercial 
Option 3 (44%), 25% did not like any of the options, 19% preferred Option 1, and 13% preferred 
Option 2.   

In-Person Meeting at Parking Lot 3 on June 18, 2022.  Azure staff gave a verbal presentation of 
all three development options using printed large boards, and questions were asked and 
answered during the meeting.  Approximately 19 people attended this outreach meeting. A 
transcript of questions, and corresponding responses, as well as the attendee sign-in sheet is 
included in the summary report from Azure (Attachment “A”). 

In-Person Meeting at Red White and Lights event.  Information for all three development 
options were provided by Azure staff at a booth during the event. Azure had approximately six 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 121 of 207



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 6 of 7 
 
 
staff members talking with community members and conducting survey using a tablet.   
Information and result of the survey is included in the summary report from Azure (Attachment 
“A”). 

Meeting with residents on June 16, 2022.  Similar to the virtual meeting format, Azure staff gave 
a PowerPoint presentation of the three development options, and questions were asked and 
answered during the meeting. Approximately 23 people attended this meeting.  A transcript of 
questions, and corresponding responses, as well as the attendee sign-in sheet is included in the 
summary report from Azure (Attachment “A”). 

Outreach Survey.  From June 16, 2022 through July 7, 2022, Azure staff conducted a survey at 
the Red White and Lights event and door-to-door, in English and Spanish, and recorded responses 
via tablet.  A report of the responses to the survey are included in the summary report from Azure 
(Attachment “A”).   

A summary of the business outreach meeting scheduled on July 14, 2022, will be provided at the 
City Council meeting as this report will be published prior to the outreach.  
 
City’s Social Media Posts.  
A total of 20 comments were received from City’s Instagram post and three comments from City’s 
Facebook post advertising the outreach events.  A screenshot of these comments is included as 
Attachment “C.”  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 

There is no budget impact associated with discussing this item. Since the outreach was conducted 
by Azure, they were responsible for all cost associated with the outreach.   
 
CONCLUSION: 

Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the update on community outreach by 
Azure, and provide direction related to the ENA.   
 
Below are potential actions the City Council may want to consider for the ENA.  These are not the 
only options that may be considered by City Council.  These options are being provided by staff 
to spur City Council discussion.  
 

1. Take no action and let the ENA expires on August 5, 2022.  If the City moves forward on 
development of Lot 3 in the future, a new public process to select a developer would need 
to be conducted 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 122 of 207



Consideration and Discussion Regarding the Community Outreach Conducted by Azure Development, 
Inc. for Potential Development Options on Public Parking Lot No. 3 and the Related Exclusive 
Negotiation Agreement 
Page 7 of 7 
 
 

2. Extend the ENA for up to one-year and direct Azure to hold off on additional project 
shaping or outreach until the City has completed the visioning phase of the Downtown 
Master Plan.  This will allow more community engagement and outreach that will be led 
by staff as part of the visioning process.  Staff anticipates presenting a draft of the 
Downtown visioning to the City Council next summer.   

3. Extend the ENA for 6 – 9 months and direct Azure to pursue a Letter of Interest from a 
theater operator to demonstrate that a theater is appropriate and viable at this location.     

4. Select a preferred option and direct staff to move forward with drafting a Development 
Agreement for City Council consideration. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Outreach Summary by Azure 
B. Presentation of Development Options and Financial Summary from Azure  
C. Screenshot of Social Media Comments 

 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 123 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 1 

SITE PLAN OPTIONS 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH REPORT 

On March 21, 2022, the City Council of the City of San Fernando considered three (3) site 
plan options for proposed project “Cielo” to be developed at Parking Lot No. 3. The City 
Council directed staff and Developer, Azure Community Development, to perform 
Community Outreach that can be used to inform their decision as to the development of 
the property.  

The Community Outreach performed included the following: 

1. Business Stakeholder Meeting held on Monday, May 9, 2022, at 2 p.m.
2. Prospective Tenant Outreach at ICSC Conference held on Monday, May 22, 2022
3. Virtual Workshop held on Thursday, June 9, 2022, at 6 p.m.
4. Stakeholder Meeting held on Thursday, June 16, 2022, at 6 p.m.
5. On-site Community Meeting held on Saturday, June 18, 2022, at 11 a.m.

6. Booth at Fourth of July event on Saturday, July 2, 2022
7. Business Stakeholders Meeting to be held on Thursday, July 14, 2022, at 6 p.m.
8. Door to Door Outreach (June to July 8, 2022)

This report includes sign-in sheets taken from each of the events, a list of questions or 
comments received, and any other data available. All emails or phone numbers have been 
redacted for privacy concerns.  

ATTACHMENT "A"-.. I'll 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. I'll I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
•• I I 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 124 of 207



            
 
 

Azure Community Development, page 2  
 

 
 
1. BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER MEETING 

 
City Staff hosted this meeting on May 9, 2022, at 2 p.m. at City Hall for Zev and Aaron 
Aszkenazy, both of Aszkenazy Development and Vanessa Delgado of Azure Community 
Development. Also in attendance was Kanika Kith, Community Development Director and 
Nick Kimball, City Manager.  
 
Aszkenazy Development presented their 2018 Food Hall Plan and other planning 
documents being used to inform the development of their properties in Downtown. The 
team described that it was their intent to pursue a Public Market or Food Hall in the 
currently vacant JC Penny building and also planned a Container Park and Salon Studios 
in the Downtown. Azure supports the development of the JC Penny building given it has 
remained closed for 10 years and its revitalization can only strengthen the Downtown. 
Cielo can be customized to work in collaboration with proposed development plans for 
Aszkenazy owned property.  

 
2. PROSPECTIVE TENANT OUTREACH AT ICSC 
 
City Staff had received inquiries in April and May from a Councilmember and a Planning 
Commissioner as to the viability of a theatre in the square footage available at Cielo. The 
inquires included a tour and meeting with Greg Laemmle, though Azure was not invited 
to be a part of the meeting.  
 
City Staff asked Azure to conduct additional meetings with operators to determine what 
was the appropriate size for a movie theatre. Azure attended the International Council of 
Shopping Centers conference on May 22, 2022, and received positive initial feedback 
from Alamo Drafthouse Cinema about the San Fernando marketplace and locating a 
theatre as part of a larger project. Once one site plan is selected, Azure can more actively 
seek Letters of Interest from these operators and confirm the number of screens that 
should be incorporated into the design.   

 
 

3. VIRTUAL WORKSHOP 
 

Azure hosted a Virtual Workshop on Zoom on July 9, 2022, and has made the recording 
available to City Staff. A total of 43 people registered for the event with their names listed 
here, emails have been omitted for privacy. Participants could join at any time but the 
largest number of participants at one time was 33 people: 
 

   
   
   

-.. .. ---I.WI .. .. 
•• .. .. I.WI----
-.. 
-.. .. Ml--
•• •• .. 
•• .. 
, ' 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 125 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 3 

The agenda focused on a presentation of the Site Plan Options reviewed by the City 
Council in March, an interactive question and answer session and poll to understand what 
option participants preferred. The agenda format is shown here: 

  
 
 
 
  
 
  

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
 
  
  
 
 
  
  
 
 

First Name Last Name
1 Charles Arevalo
2 Francisco Arrizon
3 Monica Castillejos
4 Veronica Cervacio
5 Bernadette de Barajas
6 Juli Duarte
7 Joel Fajardo
8 Mary Galvan Rosas
9 Manuel Galvez

10 Danny Gamez
11 David Govea
12 Suzanne Helo
13 sonia hernandez
14 Leticia Hernandez 
15 Brenda Huendo
16 Jessica Kelly
17 Nick Kimball
18 Kanika Kith
19 Jose Lazarit
20 Carolyn Lemos-Urquidez
21 Tanya X. Leonzo
22 Anna Lopez
23 Gerardo M Marquez
24 Baltazar Martinez
25 Joeleen Medina
26 Mario Mendoza 
27 Rosalina Michel
28 Miguel Montanez
29 Sergio Moran
30 Martin Moreno
31 LINDA MORENO
32 Erika Navarrete
33 Maria M Nunez
34 Rey Pena
35 Maribel Perez
36 Antonia Q
37 Gerardina Quintanilla
38 Laurel Rodriguez
39 Sonia Romero-Fuentes
40 Pedro Santana jr.
41 George Schwary
42 Maria Solorio
43 Sandra Wilson

-.. .. 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. .. I.WI 
-.. 
-.. .. .. 
•• •• .. 
•• .. 
, ' 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 126 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 4 

Participants were encouraged to use the “Chat” function to post questions and comments 
during the presentation. A complete transcript of the “Chat” is shown here: 

18:01:15  From  Santana, Pedro : Will the residents have the opportunity to speak up today? 
18:01:30  From  Ana’s iPhone : Thank you. My name is Ana Novella 
18:02:12 From  Vanessa Delgado : Thank you @Pedro Santana. We definitely will be looking for resident input as part of the 

presentation. 
18:02:38  From  Santana, Pedro : Thank You. 
18:07:56  From  Joeleen : in addition to residential door to door, will you also walk business to business as well? 
18:09:33  From  Sandra Hernandez : Joleen, yes we will. 
18:12:16 From  Joeleen : thank you. I'm curious about how many developers responded to the project and what where the 

parameters for selecting Azure? 
18:14:00  From  Christina’s iPhone : Can you tell me where else you have developed a two screen or one screen theater? 
18:14:40  From  Santana, Pedro : Is there an option where no houses are included? 
18:14:53 From  Priscilla Estrada : I was reviewing the timeline and it stated Community Outreach was done in March to April 2021?   

We didn’t get approached or talked to anyone regarding this plan because my business was shut down then due to covid 
along with most of the local businesses. 

18:16:06  From  Adriana : What theatre is coming? Is there a commitment from a mainstream theater? 
18:16:54  From  Joeleen : Is there and LOI for any of these businesses or theater specifically 
18:17:01 From  Priscilla Estrada : Was this study ever completed outside of covid? What will you do to make up for the parking       

situation? 
18:17:31  From  Julian Ruelas : Is there a guarantee that the developer will not permit the theater space to become a swap meet? 
18:17:39  From  Laurel Rodriguez : Will this presentation be available online? 
18:18:09  From  Patty Lopez : thank you for taking the resident's account and presenting the project in time 
18:18:54  From  Julian Ruelas : How will the HOA be bonded so the city will not be responsible for future structural maintenance to  

the structure, ie water proofing and general maintenance? 
18:20:36  From  Julian Ruelas : Why are homes being included when this was intended to be an entertainment project? The 

community seemed to make it clear that housing was not desired in that area. 
18:20:43  From  Yvonne Peña : What is the occupancy of the theater per screen as currently planned? Similar to a question above, 

are there any examples of profitable/successful two-screen theaters? 
18:21:08  From  Joeleen : Parking is already is a struggle for many businesses.  people will leave 2-3 families per house and have 4&5 

cars each 
18:21:26  From  Joeleen : people will *live 
18:21:32  From  Santana, Pedro : I agree with Julian, NO HOMES! 
18:22:06  From  Martin : Agree, 
18:22:26  From  Patty Lopez : it would be possible to have a bilingual presentation in the future? 
18:22:47  From  Martin : Remove housing, commercial only.. bring business and industry to San Fernando 
18:23:12  From  Joeleen : no housing 
18:23:48  From  Santana, Pedro : If we did commercial, it wou; 
18:24:13  From  Virginia : At one point the conversation of creating the old JCPenny into housing was discussed. I don't recall 

specifics, but I recall it was mentioned that San Fernando's infrastructure wouldn't allow the increase of population to add 
housing. How is it different now? 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 127 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 5 

18:24:40  From  Santana, Pedro : would compliment what we have on Maclay. It is awesome to see people from other cities visiting 
and supporting small businesses. 

18:24:59  From  Laurel Rodriguez : Affordable housing is providing most of the funding of the first two options, right? 
18:25:28  From  Adriana : JCPenney is being developed as a food hall/ public market as a private development- why do we need 2? 
18:25:56  From  Patty Lopez : it's one thing not to want more housing in our city but we are in a crisis where there are families on 

the streets I do not want homeless in the city 
18:26:39  From  Miguel Montanez : Has an environmental impact study been completed? Does the City have the infrastructure 

(water, sewer, lighting, etc ) to support this large project? Will the police department be adequately funded for the 
increase resources needed? How will security be maintained and assured? Has a traffic study been completed? 

18:27:19  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Yes I do! Sorry my video isn’t on 
18:27:38  From  Adriana : Is there a 4th option with none of the above and let a master plan and visioning plan occur before the city 

embarks on a project? 
18:31:56  From  Santana, Pedro : can you unmute 
18:31:58  From  Linda  M : I vote for option # 
18:32:06  From  Linda  M : option#3 
18:33:32  From  Sandra Hernandez : Open House at Parking Lot No. 3 June 18th at 11 am 
18:40:17  From  Patty Lopez : Thank you for your excellent job in reaching out to residents. my neighbors know and are very in7 
18:43:54  From  Patty Lopez : We need more opportunities  for residents to have the opportunity to buy their own home at 

affordable prices. 
18:44:08  From  Adriana : Will there be a provision if the housing happens that no city employees or city council or family members 

benefit from any of this? 
18:44:18  From  Joeleen : Julian, you nailed it.   I'm very concerned about parking. and I don't understand why this can't just be a 

space for entertainment. 
18:45:10  From  Santana, Pedro : Give every resident affordable housing at this point then. I have lived here for 11 years with little 

money, I don’t get an affordable credit. 
18:45:29  From  Priscilla Estrada : All I keep hearing about is the benefits for “San Fernando residents” but I don’t hear anything 

about the local businesses 
18:49:57  From  Jose angel Rivera : I wish that more people could be included and informed un these meetings. We had no idea that 

this meeting was taking place. Thanks to one of the attendees who shared the link with me. This makes me wonder, how 
much effort is being done to reach out to ALL residents 

18:51:12  From  Patty Lopez : right now there are many buildings that are alone and the City should do something about this that is 
what damaging the mall 

18:51:27  From  Daniel Gámez : I was put in the waiting room for an extended period of time at the beginning of this call. Is there a 
way to get a pdf of the options being discussed? 

18:54:54  From  Priscilla Estrada : Is it possible to do all of this without housing? Instead of housing, create more parking structures 
to make up for the lost parking. 

18:59:50  From  Yvonne Peña : Question regarding the tenants/owners of the town homes, if they surpass the income threshold 
while occupying the home (or within the 5 years) would they be forced out? 

18:59:58  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone : Do you want our info here? 
19:01:25  From  Christina’s iPhone : If these options are not right why go with them? 
19:02:52  From  Sandra Hernandez : Yes, please feel free to leave us your contact info here. You can also email me directly if you 

prefer: sandra@azuredevelopmentco.com 
19:08:36  From  Laurel Rodriguez : I would love to see a farmer's market in this development. 
19:09:41  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Thank you ��� 
19:11:14  From  Cindy Montanez : Can you please write down all questions asked and provide written responses. 
19:11:19  From  Julia’s iphone : Open to Option #2 and #3. 
19:12:35  From  Jessica Kelly : Just a suggestion, it may be good for presence at the open market 
19:12:36  From  St. Anne's Family Services ECE : When will you be going door to door? 
19:12:44  From  Jessica Kelly : at the end of the month 
19:14:07  From  Sandra Hernandez : Jessica, we tried but were not able to secure a booth. 
19:14:50  From  Jessica Kelly : @ Sandra, that's unfortunate! Would have been a good opportunity to connect with the community. 
19:15:01  From  Jessica Kelly : Thank you for your time! 
19:15:20  From  Vanessa Delgado : @Jessica: We agree! We want to participate! 
19:15:36  From  Sandra Hernandez : Jessica, agree. But we will have more events. We will keep everyone informed. 
19:15:53  From  Jessica Kelly : Sounds great! Have a good evening! 
19:16:21  From  Sandra Hernandez : Good evening! Thank you for joining. 
19:16:43  From  Francisco’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : At this time I would go for proposal #1. Is this a 

prevailing wage project and have you considered residence of San Fernando to work on this project? 
19:17:15  From  Vanessa Delgado   to   Francisco’s iPhone(Direct Message) : I should have mentioned that! Yes the project is 

prevailing wage with union labor and local hiring. 
19:17:39  From  sandra   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : Great presentation! 
19:18:24  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Thank you all for participating. Definitely need to figure out more social outreach 

strategies for community input. 
19:18:50  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone : Good night everyone ���� 

The workshop concluded with two poll questions. Participants were asked to provide 
feedback regarding the site plan options and how the development can be improved. 

-.. I'll - · I.WI .. .. 
•• .. I'll I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
•• I I 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 128 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 6 

Participants were also asked to select one Option of the three for development. A 
transcript of the responses obtained is included below: 

4. STAKHOLDER MEETING

Azure hosted a meeting with Stakeholders on June 16, 2022, following the same format 
as the Virtual Meeting held the week prior. Approximately 23 people attended the meeting 
though 15 people completed the sign-in sheet attached here, emails and phone numbers 
have been omitted for privacy.  

POLL REPORT
Report Generated 6/10/2022 17:06
Topic Cielo Virtual Community Forum
Meeting ID 622 401 6520
Actual Start Time 6/9/2022 17:50
Actual Duration 91 minutes

Question No. 1 User Name Question: What can we improve on any of the Options?

1 Daniel Gámez
I believe in cultural representation in entertainment. This includes making independent theaters—like 
laemmles—accessable to the community. As a latinx independent filmmaker, I support film access. 

2 Francisco’s iPhone Continue having town hall meeting  and include residents to work on the project 

3 Jessica Kelly
I believe the open market, will be the attraction point of the area. Please continue to take into account, that 
younger families are moving or moving back to the area and need places to visit

4 Jose angel Rivera Option #3 more parking spaces and more support for local businesses to expand or relocate
5 Julia’s iphone Open to option #2 and #3. We love the idea! 
6 Laurel Rodriguez Please put this presentation online on the city website. 

7 Linda  M
no improvements I vote for option#3 San Fernando needs entertainment many times my family have to drive to 
other cities for entertainment and I think Marketplace is perfect for our families and elder

8 Miguel Montanez Focus on movie theater and some businesses. Maintain parking
9 Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone Would like to see documentation before the meeting time thank you grant job

10 Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone Perhaps a discussion for overall downtown visioning with the city?
11 St. Anne's Family Services ECE Theater multiple screens no market

12 Yvonne Peña
I would be supportive of a variation of option 2 - but would like to see more parking, especially because a 
theater would add pressure. Additionally, an Alamo concept with beer garden would be ideal

Question No. 2 User Name Question: Choose One Option for Parking Lot No. 3
1 Kidneys Quest Option 1: Theatre + Commercial plus 47 Homes
2 Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone Option 1: Theatre + Commercial plus 47 Homes
3 Virginia Option 1: Theatre + Commercial plus 47 Homes
4 Arlene Lozano Option 2: Theatre + Commercial plus 35 Homes
5 David Govea Option 2: Theatre + Commercial plus 35 Homes
6 Daniel Gámez Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
7 Jessica Kelly Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
8 Jose angel Rivera Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
9 Julian Ruelas Option 3: Theatre + Commercial

10 Linda  M Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
11 Santana# Pedro Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
12 St. Anne's Family Services ECE Option 3: Theatre + Commercial
13 Adriana I do not like the Options
14 Cindy Montanez I do not like the Options
15 Miguel Montanez I do not like the Options
16 Yvonne Peña I do not like the Options

-1111 I'll - -------I.WI 1111 i---------------~-----1111 --------
••--------1111--------1'11 --------1.WI --------- --------I'll--------I.WI --------1111 --------1111 --
I'll I'll 1111 
-I.WI I'll 
,, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 129 of 207



            
 
 

Azure Community Development, page 7  
 

 
The meeting included two hours of discussion and City Staff documented the following 
questions that were answered during the meeting: 

 
• Want to be like Downtown Newhall. What is their income level?  
• What will infrastructure improvements will be required and who will pay for the improvements?  
• Can we have a nicer and charming design?  
• Do you have housing project that you built elsewhere?  
• Is the theater bilingual?  
• Where can we park during construction?  

 
Everyone who provided their email was sent a copy of the digital presentation following 
the meeting. 
 
5. ON-SITE COMMUNITY MEETING 
 
Azure hosted an On-Site Community Meeting on 
Saturday, June 18th at 11 a.m. that was attended by 19 
people though 9 people completed the sign-in sheet 
attached here, emails and phone numbers have been 
omitted for privacy.  
 
The format of the meeting differed with the use of large 
boards that presented the data instead of the digital 
presentation. Everyone who provided their email was 
sent a copy of the digital presentation following the 
meeting. 

 
 

-.. I'll COMMUNITY OUlREACH MEETING 

-
Thursday, June ~ 6, 2022 

CIELO 
.. , .. , .... -«>•-·· - -~ 

I.WI 1 

.. 2 

3 ( 

4 .. 5 

6 

7 

•• 8 

' .. -1 

1 

12 

I'll 13 

14 

I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
•• I I 

1 

2 

3 

..•• , COMMUNITY OUTREACH MEETING 

~. --· 
Thursday, June 16, 2022 

t. . 

ClELO 

1 I'-

COMMUNITY Ol/TREAQi MEETING 
Saturday, June 18, 2022 

2 . lr{A 

3 f/11& "'cL IY].?IY1',w€z... 

7 ~~ 

8 ~~ 

9 ~~ 

101-----

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 130 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 8 

The meeting included an active discussion over 1.5 hours and City Staff documented the 
following questions that were answered during the meeting: 

• Do you provide opportunity for existing businesses to occupy the new retail spaces?
• How much will the homes cost?
• Are you going to prohibit rental?
• How long does the units remain affordable?
• How do you provide parking for existing commercial in the area?
• Can you ensure that the parking structure will not collapse?
• How do you handle run-off from rain?
• What retail stores are you bringing?
• Can you restrict chain businesses to a certain percentage to allow for more small businesses?

In addition, we received the following email correspondence post the On-Site Community 
with a thoughtful analysis and feedback about the development: 

Thanks so much for your presentation today (as well as the popups). 

I'm currently attending the SCAG Housing Policy Leadership Academy course, and I am well aware 
of the RHNA needs. 

-.. I'll 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. 1111 --
I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
,, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 131 of 207



            
 
 

Azure Community Development, page 9  
 

 

As a 27-year resident with a 31-year-old son and daughter-in-law who live in a different county, I 
am also personally aware of the need for down payment assistance. We had help getting into our 
first place (on Griswold--we still live there), but the amount of help that both my children (31 and 
21) would need isn't tenable. 

Quickly my thoughts after watching the June 9 presentation this morning and attending the in-
person presentation: 

I find myself between supporting options 1 and 2. 

The overhead slides that show how 47 units are sandwiched in don't really provide realistic open 
space (and I don't consider a patio or a balcony actual open space). Yet I am eager to see possibly 
more than 35 units to help pencil out the funding (as we know not every grant is winnable) and to 
help assist more families with housing opportunities in the 91340. Open space should include a 
playground area for residents--not just a fountain or seating.  

That said, I would definitely want to get a successful project up and running as quickly as possible, 
learn from the project and continue to partner with future projects in order to provide opportunities 
for people to live in San Fernando. One of my mom's nurses used the term "Don't let perfect stand 
in the way of progress." And maybe that is where we are at. 

I am not as concerned with San Fernando only residents. I'm happy if we prioritize prequalifying 
residents but bringing new families to the city should be an equal priority with finding housing for 
current residents who may want to become homeowners. 

While this project started out about a movie theatre, it's probably the least crucial component to 
me. I don't see full movie houses in the foreseeable future as Covid surges and drops over and 
over. However, if the theatre aspect is created, I would argue that along with "screen" space, 
performance space is available. I'd argue that even an outdoor amphitheater could be an option 
(Culver City has one, as do many colleges). 

I'm not a fan of a biergarten, but I am willing to let that happen if it means the restaurants that come 
in will have a better chance. If we lobby for a coffee place, a few of us thought Peet's would be 
beneficial given SBUX is a block away. I am guessing Philz would not be an option, but we can 
always hope. 

Questions that were answered in the popup but might need clarification from the 
presentation for those who did not attend today: 

Would sellers be forced to sell if a single father remarries or gets a promotion, and the income is 
no longer in the $95-120K? The answer to that was no, but I asked it.  

Specific price points were asked and mentioned at $285K for the 2 bedroom and $400 for the 3-
bedroom units. While that is subject to change, that would be something to lead with.  

This project is on a city parking lot, on city land, and it's a 50 year project so that sales for the next 
50 years would continue to go to workforce eligible families. 

I really only heard the SENIOR component at the pop-up. Given the success of multi-generational 
daycare like (ONEGen), I really liked this, but I think it should be more heavily promoted. Not all 
seniors want to live in retirement communities and many do not qualify for low income apartments. 
Keeping older folks in multigenerational communities helps foster independence. 

I would also suggest the use of the term "workforce" housing since there were a few wrinkled noses 
when people heard "affordable housing" even though that term at this point includes people who 
make far more than many residents. 

I like both the $50K SBA forgiveness at 20% over five years. I would implore that these be local 
places--even current local food trucks. People who want to go to massive chains can do so in other 

-.. .. 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. .. I.WI 
-.. 
-.. .. .. 
•• •• .. 
•• .. 
, ' 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 132 of 207



            
 
 

Azure Community Development, page 10  
 

areas.  And the $100K down payment assistance, I would need to hear more to decide whether the 
city could forgive a small component of that over the years, but I also want to make sure the funds 
continue for future groups as real estate has proven it will rise over time regardless. 

I thank you for reading this far. If I forgot to mention something you would like me to have repeated, 
just let me know. 

6. FOURTH OF JULY BOOTH 
 

Azure participated in the City’s Red, White and Lights Laser Show event with a booth 
using the Boards from the On-Site Community Meeting. Azure used Instagram and 
Facebook to announce our participation in the event.  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Azure was very well received by the Community and was able to speak to over 100 
residents and visitors of the event. The data gathered is captured below in Door-to-Door 
Outreach.  

 
7. BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER MEETING 

 
Azure will host this meeting on July 14, 2022, for business owners in the Downtown at 
Valley Alarm at 6 p.m. 
 

-.. I'll 
-I.WI ----
.. 
•• .. I'll I.WI 
-I'll I.WI . 
-■-■-■- 0 0 V -■- "a" ,.. ,.. 
••---
•• ,.. 
•• ,.. 
, ' 

vdelgadoazure Stop by our booth at the San 
Fernando Red, White, and Lights festival this 
Saturday, July 2nd, to learn more about the Cielo 
project! 

Everyone that takes our survey will have a 
chance to spin the Azure wheel to win a prize. 
You'll also be entered into a raffle for a chance to 
win an Apple Watch. 

See you there! 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 133 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 11 

8. DOOR TO DOOR OUTREACH

Azure understands that working families may find it difficult to attend meetings. A 
component of our Community Outreach includes direct contact with residents at their 
door using the same materials presented at the On-Site Community Meeting. Residents 
are asked a short series of questions in English or Spanish and their responses reported 
below. Azure has obtained 370 from the door-to-door interaction and the Fourth of July 
event: 

Question 1 asks for the participant’s name. The list of names is included as Attachment 
A for both the English and Spanish responses.  

Question 2 asks: Are you a resident of the City of San Fernando? The charts in 
Attachment B detail the responses received for both the English and Spanish participants. 

Question 3 asks: Are you a business owner in the City of San Fernando? The charts in 
Attachment B detail the responses received for both the English and Spanish participants. 

Question 4 asks: After learning about the three options our team has proposed for 
Parking Lot No. 3 in Downtown San Fernando, which one do you think will be most 
beneficial for the Community? The charts in Attachment B detail the responses received 
for both the English and Spanish participants.  

Question 5 asks: What can we improve on any of the options? The charts in Attachment 
B detail the responses received for both the English and Spanish participants.  

Question 6 asks for the participant’s email address or phone number. This information 
has been omitted from this report for privacy.  

-.. I'll 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. I'll I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
•• I I 

Azure Community Development 

CIELO 
. San Fernando, Achoicominga . . 

' Ir ti t 

t 
' STAKEHOLDER'S WORKSHOP 

I It ,. THURSDAY , J ULY 14 , 2022 AT 6PM 

.._ WHERE : VA L LEY ALARM 7 804 PICO ST .. SAN FERNANDO , CA 91340 
PARKING AVAILABLE IN THE BACK PARKING LOT THROUGH CHATSWORTH DA • 

. .,,. _.·,r~~,- If you are a Business Owner in the City of San Fernado, 
we want to hear from you! Come to the workshop to learn 
about the Cielo design options and share your thoughts on 

.:!!'9'~ J what you would like to see in a desirable project in 
Downtown San Femandol 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 134 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 12 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH CONCLUSION 
Based on recent history in Downtown San Fernando, we were advised that there would 
be a reaction against a project that included housing at Parking Lot No. 3. The results of 
this Outreach found that although commercial uses and parking are critical factors of a 
development, the lack of affordable for-sale housing in the City is an over-riding 
consideration. 

The participants of this Outreach effort are residents, business owners, stakeholders and 
leaders of the City. Across the various sectors of the Community, a pattern emerged as 
to their preferences for development at Cielo with the overwhelming majority supporting 
the inclusion of for-sale housing for working families and Seniors. 85.8% of the 
respondents to the Survey selected an Option that includes housing. Specifically, 50.7% 
selected Option 1 that includes 47 for-sale townhomes with commercial and parking. 
35.10% selected Option 2 that includes 35 for-sale townhomes with commercial and 
parking. And 14% of the respondents would prefer no housing in the Downtown. The 
selection of Option 3 tended to be a very impassioned dislike for additional housing in the 
City.  

The City Council has an exciting opportunity to meet the stated needs of its residents and 
create a dynamic project with a mix of uses. This is only possible because the State of 
California is incentivizing local cities to produce housing and offering tools and grants that 
can finance Cielo. This is a unique period of time where the City can move forward to 
take advantage of available State resources to produce a catalyst in the Downtown.  

-.. I'll 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• --------
.. I.WI 
-I'll I.WI .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-I.WI I'll 
,, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 135 of 207



Questions in the Chat room from Virtual Outreach on June 9, 2022 

Answers are shown in red. 

18:01:15  From  Santana, Pedro : Will the residents have the opportunity to speak up today? 

18:01:30  From  Ana’s iPhone : Thank you. My name is Ana Novella 

18:02:12  From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure): Thank you @Pedro Santana. We definitely will be looking for resident 
input as part of the presentation. 

18:02:38  From  Santana, Pedro (Azure) : Thank You. 

18:07:56  From  Joeleen : in addition to residential door to door, will you also walk business to business as well? 

18:09:33  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure) : Joleen, yes we will. 

18:12:16  From  Joeleen : thank you. I'm curious about how many developers responded to the project and what 
where the parameters for selecting Azure?  

City:  The City received one proposal.  The developer was selected through a Request for Proposals process 
made available to all developers. The City’s procurement policy requires a formal solicitation process.  It 
does not require a minimum number of proposals.  You can find more information by viewing the July 20, 
2020 City Council meeting staff report, found at this link:  https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-
content/uploads/2020/07/7-20-20-CC-Packet.pdf 

18:14:00 From  Christina’s iPhone : Can you tell me where else you have developed a two screen or one screen 
theater?  

Azure:  Azure is currently working on a project for the Reseda Theater that will have the same concept. 

18:14:40  From  Santana, Pedro : Is there an option where no houses are included? 

Azure:  Option 3 has no housing, it is 100% commercial. 

18:14:53  From  Priscilla Estrada : I was reviewing the timeline and it stated Community Outreach was done in 
March to April 2021? We didn’t get approached or talked to anyone regarding this plan because my 
business was shut down then due to covid along with most of the local businesses. 

Azure:  Azure team conducted door-to-door outreach as well as walked the San Fernando mall 
businesses. 

18:16:06  From  Adriana : What theatre is coming? Is there a commitment from a mainstream theater? 

Azure:  No operator has been identified at this time. If the San Fernando City Council approves one of 
the proposed plans, the Azure team will seek Letters of Interest from theater operators. Initial 
discussions with various operators have been positive.  

18:16:54  From  Joeleen : Is there and LOI for any of these businesses or theater specifically 

Azure:  No operator has been identified at this time. If the San Fernando City Council approves one of 
the proposed plans, the Azure team will seek Letters of Interest from theater operators. Initial 
discussions with various operators have been positive.  

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 136 of 207

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/7-20-20-CC-Packet.pdf
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/7-20-20-CC-Packet.pdf


18:17:01 From  Priscilla Estrada : Was this study ever completed outside of covid? What will you do to make up 
for the parking situation?  

Azure:  Options 1 and 2 are designed to have a 2-story parking structure to replace all existing 144 public 
parking spaces, provide additional parking to meet parking requirements for new uses at Cielo, and 
provide additional public parking spaces.  Option 3 is also designed to replace all existing 144 public 
parking spaces, but does not meet the parking requirements for the new uses at Cielo.  Option 3 will also 
have a 2-story parking structure, but it will be 60 parking spaces short of the parking requirements.  

18:17:31  From  Julian Ruelas : Is there a guarantee that the developer will not permit the theater space to 
become a swap meet?  

Azure:  The City will require a covenant and restriction of certain uses can be included. 

18:17:39  From  Laurel Rodriguez : Will this presentation be available online? 

City:  The entire virtual meeting, which includes the presentation is available on the City’s website: 
www.sfcity.org/community-development/ 

18:18:09  From  Patty Lopez : thank you for taking the resident's account and presenting the project in time 

18:18:54 From  Julian Ruelas : How will the HOA be bonded so the city will not be responsible for future structural 
maintenance to the structure, ie water proofing and general maintenance? 

Azure:  Since these are homeownership housing (for sale homes), an HOA will be established and 
monthly HOA fee will be collected from all property owners to fund the cost of maintenance of the 
exterior of the structures, all common areas, and all infrastructure by the HOA.  

18:20:36  From  Julian Ruelas : Why are homes being included when this was intended to be an entertainment 
project? The community seemed to make it clear that housing was not desired in that area.  

Azure:  As part of Azure due diligence, Azure conducted a market study and found that the City of San 
Fernando is in need of affordable for sale homes which is why Azure included this option as part of our 
response to the RFP. 

18:20:43  From  Yvonne Peña : What is the occupancy of the theater per screen as currently planned? Similar to a 
question above, are there any examples of profitable/successful two-screen theaters?  

Azure:  The current design plan includes two 50-seat screens. If the San Fernando City Council approves 
one of the proposed plans, the Azure team will seek Letters of Interest from theater operators. Initial 
discussions with various operators have been positive. 

18:21:08  From  Joeleen : Parking is already is a struggle for many businesses.  people will leave 2-3 families per 
house and have 4&5 cars each 

Azure:  Options 1 and 2 are designed to have a 2-story parking structure to replace all existing 144 public 
parking spaces, provide additional parking to meet parking requirements for new uses at Cielo, and 
provide additional public parking spaces.  Option 3 is also designed to replace all existing 144 public 
parking spaces, but does not meet the parking requirements for the new uses at Cielo.  Option 3 will also 
have a 2-story parking structure, but it will be 60 parking spaces short of the parking requirements.  

18:21:26  From  Joeleen : people will *live 

18:21:32  From  Santana, Pedro : I agree with Julian, NO HOMES! 

18:22:06  From  Martin : Agree, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 137 of 207

http://www.sfcity.org/community-development/


18:22:26  From  Patty Lopez : it would be possible to have a bilingual presentation in the future? 

Azure:  Absolutely, please email sandra@azuredevelopmentco.com 

18:22:47  From  Martin : Remove housing, commercial only.. bring business and industry to San Fernando 

18:23:12  From  Joeleen : no housing 

18:23:48  From  Santana, Pedro : If we did commercial, it wou; 

18:24:13  From  Virginia : At one point the conversation of creating the old JCPenny into housing was discussed. I  
don't recall specifics, but I recall it was mentioned that San Fernando's infrastructure wouldn't allow the 
increase of population to add housing. How is it different now? 

City: Azure will be required to upgrade all infrastructures needed to support the uses on this site, including 
upgrading sewer capacity to accommodate increase of population if housing is approved on this site.  

18:24:40  From  Santana, Pedro : would compliment what we have on Maclay. It is awesome to see people from 
other cities visiting and supporting small businesses. 

18:24:59  From  Laurel Rodriguez : Affordable housing is providing most of the funding of the first two options, 
right?  

Azure: Correct 

18:25:28 From  Adriana : JCPenney is being developed as a food hall/ public market as a private development-  
  why do we need 2?  

Azure: If JC Penny building will be a food hall/public market, Azure will be happy to remove the food hall 
from our project and develop a project that complement JC Penny’s food hall/public market.  

18:25:56  From  Patty Lopez : it's one thing not to want more housing in our city but we are in a crisis where there 
are families on the streets I do not want homeless in the the city 

18:26:39  From  Miguel Montanez : Has an environmental impact study been completed? Does the City have the 
infrastructure (water, sewer, lighting, etc ) to support this large project? Will the police department be  
adequately funded for the increase resources needed? How will security be maintained and assured?  
Has a traffic study been completed?  

Azure:  If the City Council approves one of the Site Plan Options, Azure will conduct a full analysis on  
the infrastructure improvements that will be required. Azure know, as detailed in the Downtown  
Specific Plan, that the sewer capacity is limited and have anticipated those upgrades in the project cost. 

18:27:19  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Yes I do! Sorry my video isn’t on 

18:27:38  From  Adriana : Is there a 4th option with none of the above and let a master plan and visioning plan 
occur before the city embarks on a project?  

Azure:  Currently there is not, but we are open to a 4th option if desired by City Council. 

18:31:56  From  Santana, Pedro : can you unmute 

18:31:58  From  Linda  M : I vote for option # 

18:32:06  From  Linda  M : option#3 

18:32:40  From  Santana, Pedro   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : I would like to be unmuted to 
finish my question 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 138 of 207



18:33:10  From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure)   to   Santana, Pedro(Direct Message) : Sure. I will go to you next. 

18:33:32  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure): Open House at Parking Lot No. 3 June 18th at 11 am 

18:40:17  From  Patty Lopez : Thank you for your excellent job in reaching out to residents. my neighbors know  
  and are very in7 

18:43:54  From  Patty Lopez : We need more opportunities  for residents to have the opportunity to buy their  
  own home at affordable prices. 

18:44:08  From  Adriana : Will there be a provision if the housing happens that no city employees or city council  
  or family members benefit from any of this?  

Azure:  A covenant will be required and restriction can be included. Eligibility will be a policy decision 
and determined by City Council. 

18:44:18  From  Joeleen : Julian, you nailed it.   I'm very very concerned about parking. and I don't understand  
  why this can't just be a space for entertainment. 

18:45:10  From  Santana, Pedro : Give every resident affordable housing at this point then. I have lived here for 11 
  years with little money, I don’t get an affordable credit. 

18:45:29  From  Priscilla Estrada : All I keep hearing about is the benefits for “San Fernando residents” but I don’t  
  hear anything about the local businesses 

18:49:57  From  Jose angel Rivera : I wish that more people could be included and informed un these meetings.  
  We had no idea that this meeting was taking place. Thanks to one of the attendees who shared the link  
  with me. This makes me wonder, how much effort is being done to reach out to ALL residents 

18:51:12  From  Patty Lopez : right now there are many buildings that are alone and the City should do something  
  about this that is what damaging the mall 

18:51:27  From  Daniel Gámez : I was put in the waiting room for an extended period of time at the beginning of  
  this call. Is there a way to get a pdf of the options being discussed?  

  Azure:  Yes, please email sandra@azuredevelopmentco.com 

18:54:54  From  Priscilla Estrada : Is it possible to do all of this without housing? Instead of housing, create more  
   
  Azure:  Option 3 has no housing. 

18:59:50  From  Yvonne Peña : Question regarding the tenants/owners of the town homes, if they surpass the  
  income threshold while occupying the home (or within the 5 years) would they be forced out?  

  Azure:  They will not be forced out.  

18:59:58  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone : Do you want our info here? 

19:01:25  From  Christina’s iPhone : If these options are not right why go with them?  

  Azure:  Azure is doing the outreach to determine which option the community would like to see on this  
  site or if there is an alternative option that is more desirable by the community.  

19:02:52  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure): Yes, please feel free to leave us your contact info here. You can also  
  email me directly if you prefer: sandra@azuredevelopmentco.com 

19:08:36  From  Laurel Rodriguez : I would love to see a farmer's market in this development. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 139 of 207



19:09:41 From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Thank you 🙌🙌🙌🙌

19:10:20  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : @gmail.com 

19:10:37  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : @gmail.com 

19:10:43  From  Daniel Gámez : I would like a copy of this presentation: @me.com 

19:10:50  From  Jose angel Rivera : @gmail.com 

19:11:02  From  Jessica Kelly : @gmail.com 

19:11:04  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone : @gmail.com 

19:11:09  From  St. Anne's Family Services ECE : Can you please send me a copy of the powerpoint to 
@gmail.com 

19:11:14  From  Cindy Montanez : Can you please write down all questions asked and provide written responses. 

19:11:19  From  Julia’s iphone : @yahoo.com 

Open to Option #2 and #3. 

19:11:30  From  Miguel Montanez   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : 
@hotmail.com 818  Please send me a copy of the presentation. Thanks for 

the presentation 

19:11:37  From  Jose angel Rivera   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : I would like to get a copy of the 
presentation @gmail.com 

19:12:35  From  Jessica Kelly : Just a suggestion, it may be good for presence at the open market 

19:12:36  From  St. Anne's Family Services ECE : When will you be going door to door?  

Azure:  Azure team conducted door-to-door outreach over a 3-week period (June to July 10) and were 
able to collect roughly 370 surveys as part of this effort during this time.  

19:12:44  From  Jessica Kelly : at the end of the month 

19:13:20 From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : Can you sent poll to me 
would like to look at it a little more 

19:13:36  From  Santana, Pedro   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : Thank you Vanessa. 

19:14:07  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure): Jessica, we tried but were not able to secure a booth. 

19:14:28  From  Laurel Rodriguez : powerpt to @gmail.com please 

19:14:50  From  Jessica Kelly : @ Sandra, that's unfortunate! Would have been a good opportunity to connect 
with the community. 

19:15:01  From  Jessica Kelly : Thank you for your time! 

19:15:01  From  Emily : I would like a copy also.. @aol.com 

19:15:20  From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure): @Jessica: We agree! We want to participate! 

19:15:36  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure): Jessica, agree. But we will have more events. We will keep everyone 
informed. 

19:15:53  From  Jessica Kelly : Sounds great! Have a good evening! 

-
-

-
-

-

-

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 140 of 207



19:16:13 From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : I didn’t do the first poll as I need to  
  look at the plans again 

19:16:21  From  Sandra Hernandez (Azure) : Good evening! Thank you for joining. 

19:16:42  From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure)   to   Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone(Direct Message) : No worries Rudy. We will  
  send you all the information and I don't mind calling you to review. 

19:16:43  From  Francisco’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : At this time I would go for  
  proposal #1. Is this a prevailing wage project and have you considered residence of San Fernando to  
  work on this project? 

  Azure:  Development on this site will be subject to prevailing wage.  Azure plans to conduct local hiring.  

19:17:15 From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure) to Francisco’s iPhone(Direct Message) : I should have mentioned that!  
  Yes the  project is prevailing wage with union labor and local hiring. 

19:17:24 From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : Thanks 🙏🙏🙏🙏 I’m also on   
  transportation and safety commission 

19:17:39  From  sandra   to   Vanessa Delgado (Azure) (Direct Message) : Great presentation! 

19:17:49  From  Vanessa Delgado (Azure) to   Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone(Direct Message) : Thank you for your service  
  and for joining us tonight. 

19:17:50  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : Pastor and work with youth  
  diversion 

19:18:09  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone   to   Vanessa Delgado(Direct Message) : Have a good night and thank you  
  🙏🙏🙏🙏 

19:18:24  From  Sergio Amalfitano’s iPhone : Thank you all for participating. Definitely need to figure out more  
  social outreach strategies for community input. 

19:18:50  From  Rudy Trujillo’s iPhone : Good night everyone 🙏🙏🙏🙏 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 141 of 207



CIELO COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
Questions and Answers 

         

Azure Community Development 
 

Parking 
Q: What is the plan to replace the existing parking? 
A: Options 1 and 2 are designed to have a 2-story parking structure to replace all existing 144 
public parking spaces, provide additional parking to meet parking requirements for new uses at 
Cielo, and provide additional public parking spaces.  Option 3 is also designed to replace all 
existing 144 public parking spaces, but does not meet the parking requirements for the new 
uses at Cielo.  Option 3 will also have a 2-story parking structure, but it will be 60 parking spaces 
short of the parking requirements. 
 
Q: How do you provide parking for existing commercial in the area?  
A: Each of the Site Plan Options replace existing 144 public parking spaces on Lot 3 with a new 
2-story parking structure that will remain public.  
 

Commercial Uses 
Q: Are there any commitments from Movie Theater Operators?  
A: No operator has been identified at this time. If the San Fernando City Council approves one 
of the proposed plans, the Azure team will seek Letters of Interest from theater operators. Initial 
discussions with various operators have been positive. 
 
Q: Is the theater bilingual?  
A: If the City Council approves one of the proposed plans, we will survey interested theatre 
operators to determine which incorporate bilingual movies and make that information available 
to the Community.  
 
Q: Will local Small Businesses have an opportunity to occupy the new retail space?  
A: If the City Council approves one of the site pan options, we will actively outreach to local 
businesses and residents when we are ready to lease the commercial component.  
 
Q: Can you restrict chain businesses to a certain percentage to allow for more small businesses?  
A: For Cielo to be successful and for financing purposes, we will have to attract a project anchor 
that will draw local families and visitors to Downtown. Our goal is to find a balance of a national 
anchor and incorporating small businesses from the local community. Azure is experienced in 
securing grant funding for small businesses to obtain fixtures and equipment and will use those 
tools in the creation of Cielo.  
 

Housing 
Q: How much will the homes cost?  
A: Home prices are set by State income guidelines. The grant funding being proposed to create 
Cielo restricts the sale of the homes based on family size as follows: 
 

 

Family Size Income
1 66,750$                 
2 76,250$                 
3 85,800$                 
4 95,300$                 
5 102,950$              

-.. I'll 
-I.WI I'll .. I'll .. I'll I'll 
-I'll .. .. .. I'll I'll .. 
-~~~ I'll t---------+------------1 

.. t---------+------------1 

,, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 142 of 207



CIELO COMMUNITY OUTREACH 
Questions and Answers 

         

Azure Community Development 
 

 
Qualifying families pay no more than 30% of this annual income on their mortgage, insurance, 
and property tax combined. The sale price cannot be set until we get closer to completion, but 
we expect the homes to sell between $385,000 to $500,000. Cielo will be seeking grant funding 
for each home to use a $100,000 silent second down-payment. This means that residents will 
pay on mortgages between $285,000 and $400,000. All numbers are estimates as the State 
updates guidelines annually.  
 
Azure is a non-profit housing development company and does not receive additional profit from 
higher sales prices.  
 
Q: Are you going to prohibit rental?  
A: The grant funding being used to create Cielo prohibits the rental of the housing units. The 
townhomes must be owner-occupied and are subject to losing their down-payment assistance 
funding if they do not comply with Cielo’s guidelines.  
 
Q: How long does the units remain affordable?  
A: The grant funding being used to create Cielo requires that we file a Covenant on the property 
to restrict the sale to eligible working families or Seniors for 55 years.  
 
Other  
Q:What infrastructure improvements will be required and who will pay for the 
improvements?  
A: If the City Council approves one of the Site Plan Options, we will conduct a full analysis on 
the infrastructure improvements that will be required. We know, as detailed in the Downtown 
Specific Plan, that the sewer capacity is limited and have anticipated those upgrades in the 
project cost.  
 
Q: Can we have a nicer and charming design?  
A: Absolutely! The project is not yet designed as we are very early in the development process. 
The Community has determined that we adopt “Spanish-style” architecture but there is a 
significant amount of design work to come. The Community will be invited to participate in the 
entitlement phase of the project that will have much more information than what is available 
today.  
 
 
 
 

-.. I'll 
-I.WI I'll .. I'll .. I'll I'll 
-I'll ~-=-------.. .. -- ----
.. I'll .. 
-I'll .. 
,, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 143 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 13 

ATTACHMENT A 

LIST OF NAMES OF SURVEY RESPONDANTS 

-.. .. 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. .. I.WI 
-.. 
-.. .. .. 
•• •• .. 
•• .. 
, ' 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 144 of 207



Cielo Design Options

1 / 10

Q1 First can you give us your full name?
Answered: 359 Skipped: 0

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Anita Giron 7/8/2022 4:51 PM

2 Cataldo Dominguez 7/8/2022 4:32 PM

3 Israel Riojas 7/8/2022 4:05 PM

4 Apolinario Briones 7/8/2022 3:36 PM

5 Esdes Carbajal 7/8/2022 3:18 PM

6 Alan Ojedo 7/8/2022 2:48 PM

7 Yaco Romero 7/8/2022 2:23 PM

8 Melissa Gallegos 7/8/2022 2:05 PM

9 Bartolomé Rascon 7/8/2022 1:53 PM

10 Silvani Crespo 7/8/2022 1:35 PM

11 Jacqueline Cejeda 7/8/2022 12:53 PM

12 Froilan Garcia 7/8/2022 12:26 PM

13 Oscar Montoya 7/8/2022 12:03 PM

14 Joey Pallas 7/8/2022 11:48 AM

15 Aleda Hinojosa 7/7/2022 5:24 PM

16 Betsabe Vega 7/7/2022 4:54 PM

17 Daniel Cisneros 7/7/2022 4:20 PM

18 Devin Caldio 7/7/2022 3:50 PM

19 Ale Lemus 7/7/2022 3:35 PM

20 Jessica Paez 7/7/2022 3:01 PM

21 Charles Murphy 7/7/2022 2:30 PM

22 Liz Loera 7/7/2022 1:56 PM

23 Navarro Covarrubias 7/7/2022 1:31 PM

24 Miguel Becerra 7/7/2022 1:07 PM

25 Seth Alido 7/7/2022 12:49 PM

26 Angel Palomar 7/7/2022 12:20 PM

27 Tatiana Ordonez 7/7/2022 12:04 PM

28 Dulce Aguilera 7/7/2022 11:44 AM

29 Gerardo Cedilla 7/7/2022 11:00 AM

30 Kathryn Carranza 7/6/2022 6:46 PM

31 Gustavo D. 7/6/2022 6:31 PM

32 Xochi Jauregui 7/6/2022 6:15 PM

33 Kiliano Archuleta 7/6/2022 5:55 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 145 of 207



Cielo Design Options

2 / 10

34 Delia Ochoa 7/6/2022 5:31 PM

35 Talia Durango 7/6/2022 4:48 PM

36 Mia Romo 7/6/2022 4:39 PM

37 Tony Gutierrez 7/6/2022 4:17 PM

38 Victor Ramiro 7/6/2022 4:00 PM

39 Veronica Barajas 7/6/2022 3:40 PM

40 Alyssa Mejia 7/6/2022 3:25 PM

41 Palemon Galindo 7/6/2022 3:14 PM

42 Santiago Linares 7/6/2022 2:45 PM

43 Anaya Rascon 7/6/2022 2:12 PM

44 Videl 7/6/2022 1:42 PM

45 Nataniel Villalpondo 7/6/2022 1:13 PM

46 Nestor L. 7/6/2022 12:38 PM

47 Carlos O. 7/6/2022 11:46 AM

48 Rodrigo Cisnero 7/6/2022 11:32 AM

49 Breanna Araya 7/5/2022 6:25 PM

50 Rudi S. 7/5/2022 6:08 PM

51 Christian Muniz 7/5/2022 5:55 PM

52 Adrian Ramirez 7/5/2022 3:49 PM

53 Abi Rujillo 7/5/2022 3:39 PM

54 Damon 7/5/2022 3:03 PM

55 Hugo Sedillo 7/5/2022 2:16 PM

56 Lizette Oropeza 7/5/2022 1:50 PM

57 Eduardo Lima 7/5/2022 1:19 PM

58 Claudia Lazzarna 7/5/2022 1:02 PM

59 Karol S. 7/5/2022 12:59 PM

60 Clint 7/5/2022 12:40 PM

61 Lupe Zavala 7/5/2022 12:08 PM

62 Ramiro 7/5/2022 12:02 PM

63 Marisol Lozano 7/5/2022 11:39 AM

64 Jose Fauro 7/3/2022 6:50 PM

65 Moises Vega 7/3/2022 5:58 PM

66 Myra R. 7/3/2022 5:34 PM

67 Porfirio 7/3/2022 5:12 PM

68 Judy Zurole 7/3/2022 5:01 PM

69 Ruby 7/3/2022 4:23 PM

70 Manuel Hidalgo 7/3/2022 3:55 PM

71 Walter Arroyo 7/3/2022 3:24 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 146 of 207



Cielo Design Options

3 / 10

72 Abel Marin 7/3/2022 2:59 PM

73 Jose Miramonta 7/3/2022 2:51 PM

74 Victorious Rey 7/3/2022 2:39 PM

75 Elvira Molina 7/3/2022 2:07 PM

76 Fabiola Navarro 7/3/2022 1:27 PM

77 Antony Medina 7/3/2022 1:07 PM

78 Hector Fernandez 7/3/2022 12:57 PM

79 Eva Santos 7/3/2022 12:27 PM

80 Lazaro 7/3/2022 11:26 AM

81 Jose Guardado 7/2/2022 8:48 PM

82 Stephanie Thomas 7/2/2022 8:47 PM

83 Javier 7/2/2022 8:44 PM

84 Arlene chavez 7/2/2022 8:40 PM

85 Javier Amaya 7/2/2022 8:38 PM

86 Conie Gonzalez 7/2/2022 8:38 PM

87 Juana 7/2/2022 8:37 PM

88 Juana sandoval 7/2/2022 8:36 PM

89 Janet Garcia 7/2/2022 8:36 PM

90 Adriana Lopez 7/2/2022 8:35 PM

91 Adolfo 7/2/2022 8:33 PM

92 Juan martinez 7/2/2022 8:31 PM

93 Eduard 7/2/2022 8:29 PM

94 Marilu alvarado 7/2/2022 8:28 PM

95 Susie H 7/2/2022 8:28 PM

96 Steven Corralejo 7/2/2022 8:25 PM

97 Lucero 7/2/2022 8:22 PM

98 Kevin Guzman 7/2/2022 8:22 PM

99 Cesar ascencio 7/2/2022 8:22 PM

100 Jesus Perez 7/2/2022 8:20 PM

101 Carla cross 7/2/2022 8:19 PM

102 Ortencia Valdiva 7/2/2022 8:18 PM

103 Elvia 7/2/2022 8:15 PM

104 Patricia Rodriguez 7/2/2022 8:13 PM

105 Julia 7/2/2022 8:13 PM

106 Azalia moreira 7/2/2022 8:10 PM

107 Adele 7/2/2022 8:10 PM

108 Maria Ramirez 7/2/2022 8:09 PM

109 Michelle avila 7/2/2022 8:06 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 147 of 207



Cielo Design Options

4 / 10

110 Maria padilla 7/2/2022 8:04 PM

111 Amber espinoza 7/2/2022 8:03 PM

112 Alba 7/2/2022 8:02 PM

113 Dana 7/2/2022 8:01 PM

114 Martin Delgado 7/2/2022 8:00 PM

115 Jeanette Sandoval 7/2/2022 7:56 PM

116 Jesus 7/2/2022 7:56 PM

117 Maria Garcia 7/2/2022 7:53 PM

118 Sophia 7/2/2022 7:51 PM

119 Hector alcala 7/2/2022 7:48 PM

120 Danielle murray 7/2/2022 7:48 PM

121 Cecilia 7/2/2022 7:44 PM

122 Katherine Cruz 7/2/2022 7:44 PM

123 Maria fernandez 7/2/2022 7:44 PM

124 Dalia 7/2/2022 7:43 PM

125 Donna 7/2/2022 7:40 PM

126 Marlyn 7/2/2022 7:38 PM

127 Francisco solorio 7/2/2022 7:38 PM

128 Maggie 7/2/2022 7:36 PM

129 Jennifer solorio 7/2/2022 7:36 PM

130 Heather Martinez 7/2/2022 7:36 PM

131 Mary solorio 7/2/2022 7:35 PM

132 Alan aceido 7/2/2022 7:32 PM

133 Viviane duran 7/2/2022 7:32 PM

134 Mayra Ruiz 7/2/2022 7:31 PM

135 Austin agredano 7/2/2022 7:28 PM

136 Jose interiano 7/2/2022 7:28 PM

137 Steve rivera 7/2/2022 7:27 PM

138 Natalia Guzman 7/2/2022 7:27 PM

139 Dixie interino 7/2/2022 7:27 PM

140 Maria 7/2/2022 7:26 PM

141 Bernice aguilera 7/2/2022 7:24 PM

142 Maria 7/2/2022 7:22 PM

143 Julia 7/2/2022 7:22 PM

144 Julieta hernandez 7/2/2022 7:21 PM

145 Samantha 7/2/2022 7:20 PM

146 Leslie 7/2/2022 7:19 PM

147 Cynthia 7/2/2022 7:18 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 148 of 207



Cielo Design Options

5 / 10

148 Adriana Iglesias 7/2/2022 7:13 PM

149 Angelica mesta 7/2/2022 7:12 PM

150 Fabian Mesta 7/2/2022 7:11 PM

151 Ramona Gonzalez 7/2/2022 7:10 PM

152 Noel Morila 7/2/2022 7:09 PM

153 Williams Rodriguez 7/2/2022 7:08 PM

154 Rose 7/2/2022 7:07 PM

155 Linda 7/2/2022 7:06 PM

156 Maria 7/2/2022 7:04 PM

157 Nicole smith 7/2/2022 7:01 PM

158 Juan Rubalva 7/2/2022 6:59 PM

159 Neli 7/2/2022 6:58 PM

160 Brenda Benica 7/2/2022 6:54 PM

161 Ana perez 7/2/2022 6:53 PM

162 Steven guillen 7/2/2022 6:52 PM

163 Taryn Delatora 7/2/2022 6:51 PM

164 Anthony Guillen 7/2/2022 6:49 PM

165 Alejandra 7/2/2022 6:49 PM

166 Kenny 7/2/2022 6:45 PM

167 Roberta 7/2/2022 6:44 PM

168 Celina herrera 7/2/2022 6:42 PM

169 Natalie 7/2/2022 6:39 PM

170 Maria 7/2/2022 6:36 PM

171 Alegandra padilla 7/2/2022 6:35 PM

172 Tony 7/2/2022 6:34 PM

173 Sonya 7/2/2022 6:32 PM

174 George Lopez 7/2/2022 6:32 PM

175 Vanessa 7/2/2022 6:30 PM

176 Jason Catalan 7/2/2022 6:29 PM

177 Josh 7/2/2022 6:28 PM

178 Carla Luna 7/2/2022 6:26 PM

179 Kayla Valdivia 7/2/2022 6:23 PM

180 Angelica 7/2/2022 6:22 PM

181 Jose Gonzalez 7/2/2022 6:21 PM

182 Wilmer juarez 7/2/2022 6:20 PM

183 Josie catalan 7/2/2022 6:17 PM

184 Ruben Maya 7/2/2022 4:49 PM

185 Hilda Pacheco 7/2/2022 4:22 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 149 of 207



Cielo Design Options

6 / 10

186 Llarnas Campos 6/30/2022 6:56 PM

187 Timoty 6/30/2022 6:25 PM

188 Madison Cervantez 6/30/2022 5:55 PM

189 Rigoberto Fuentes 6/30/2022 5:47 PM

190 Adan Trujillo 6/30/2022 5:38 PM

191 Genoveva Ureno 6/30/2022 5:20 PM

192 Orfeo Santana 6/30/2022 4:57 PM

193 Yoel Galindo 6/30/2022 4:31 PM

194 Gabriel 6/30/2022 3:44 PM

195 David Giron 6/30/2022 3:35 PM

196 Betty Jimenez 6/30/2022 3:19 PM

197 Alejandro Ayala 6/30/2022 2:54 PM

198 Aieleen Ulloa 6/30/2022 2:04 PM

199 Julia Tovar 6/30/2022 1:16 PM

200 Mercedes Saldana 6/30/2022 1:06 PM

201 Abel Ponce 6/30/2022 12:48 PM

202 Nisael 6/30/2022 12:30 PM

203 Enizabeth Conejo 6/30/2022 11:35 AM

204 Aris Cortes 6/30/2022 11:15 AM

205 Gilberto 6/29/2022 6:49 PM

206 Emilio Quiñoz 6/29/2022 6:27 PM

207 Balduino Pedroza 6/29/2022 5:48 PM

208 Aracelia Macias 6/29/2022 5:22 PM

209 Simon Carano 6/29/2022 4:51 PM

210 Iberico Fonseca 6/29/2022 4:10 PM

211 Rocio Grijalva 6/29/2022 3:46 PM

212 Alonso Castillo 6/29/2022 3:28 PM

213 Gerardo Mata 6/29/2022 2:59 PM

214 Reme Folleo 6/29/2022 2:54 PM

215 Kris Mendoza 6/29/2022 12:52 PM

216 Rafael Sosa 6/29/2022 12:23 PM

217 Esperanza Vojillo 6/29/2022 11:56 AM

218 Damian S. 6/29/2022 11:33 AM

219 Tyler 6/29/2022 11:12 AM

220 Nancy espejo 6/28/2022 5:34 PM

221 Mateo Rivera 6/28/2022 4:34 PM

222 Enrique 6/28/2022 4:09 PM

223 Alvaro Montes 6/28/2022 3:39 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 150 of 207



Cielo Design Options

7 / 10

224 Brenda Cevelldo 6/28/2022 3:08 PM

225 Fatima Barreras 6/28/2022 2:21 PM

226 Josh 6/28/2022 2:00 PM

227 Marcos Ramirez 6/28/2022 1:14 PM

228 Rosa Godines 6/28/2022 1:06 PM

229 Lucy 6/28/2022 12:40 PM

230 Jesus Reyes 6/28/2022 12:08 PM

231 Arnette Lozano 6/27/2022 5:36 PM

232 Liliana Cotujo 6/27/2022 5:02 PM

233 Pedro Decios 6/27/2022 4:13 PM

234 Don Gregorio 6/27/2022 3:49 PM

235 Destinee 6/27/2022 3:24 PM

236 Vanessa Lopezi 6/27/2022 3:10 PM

237 Nicolas Tolo 6/27/2022 3:09 PM

238 Brian 6/27/2022 2:03 PM

239 Paco Ballan 6/27/2022 1:36 PM

240 Omar Reyes 6/27/2022 12:59 PM

241 Viviana Acosta 6/27/2022 11:44 AM

242 Jabier 6/27/2022 11:19 AM

243 Bonifacio 6/23/2022 6:31 PM

244 Socorro 6/23/2022 6:04 PM

245 Karla Beltram 6/23/2022 5:44 PM

246 Monse Garcia 6/23/2022 5:17 PM

247 Steven Escobar 6/23/2022 4:50 PM

248 Kevin Buron 6/23/2022 4:21 PM

249 Fidel Sevilla 6/23/2022 4:11 PM

250 Teodoro 6/23/2022 3:44 PM

251 Isiah Willis 6/23/2022 3:25 PM

252 Marissa R. 6/23/2022 3:08 PM

253 Catherine Minjarez 6/23/2022 2:47 PM

254 Lorena Carreras 6/23/2022 2:11 PM

255 Anna Gariba 6/23/2022 12:44 PM

256 Yahira Crespo 6/23/2022 12:01 PM

257 Bianca Lozaro 6/23/2022 11:43 AM

258 Louisa Romo 6/23/2022 11:24 AM

259 Diane Cisneros 6/22/2022 6:27 PM

260 Frances Zavala 6/22/2022 6:07 PM

261 Betany Ruiz 6/22/2022 5:52 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 151 of 207



Cielo Design Options

8 / 10

262 Jose 6/22/2022 5:31 PM

263 Fausto Dolores 6/22/2022 5:04 PM

264 Orlando Cotilla 6/22/2022 4:22 PM

265 Dahlia Rollo 6/22/2022 3:55 PM

266 Rebecca Solorzano 6/22/2022 2:58 PM

267 Cindy Lajedo 6/22/2022 2:52 PM

268 Cristian Tafoya 6/22/2022 2:04 PM

269 Uriel Fimos 6/22/2022 1:38 PM

270 Elizabeth W. 6/22/2022 1:01 PM

271 Beto Nieso 6/22/2022 11:50 AM

272 Mary J Brisbin 6/21/2022 7:19 PM

273 Ysenia Lopez 6/21/2022 6:22 PM

274 Martha Dipolto 6/21/2022 5:46 PM

275 Salima Campos 6/21/2022 5:20 PM

276 Elena Arboleda 6/21/2022 5:00 PM

277 Eliseo Dengra 6/21/2022 4:39 PM

278 Paola 6/21/2022 4:21 PM

279 Henry Zeto 6/21/2022 3:13 PM

280 Wendy Quinto 6/21/2022 2:45 PM

281 Juan Pablo Escebedo 6/21/2022 1:58 PM

282 Jaclyn 6/21/2022 1:07 PM

283 Tim Dortas 6/21/2022 12:42 PM

284 Maria Lazzarga 6/21/2022 11:39 AM

285 Rose Lopez 6/20/2022 9:40 PM

286 Giovanni Lara 6/20/2022 6:27 PM

287 Yanelly ponce 6/20/2022 5:15 PM

288 Thomas Lopez 6/20/2022 4:54 PM

289 Graciela Rivera 6/20/2022 4:47 PM

290 Patti Olbedo 6/20/2022 3:35 PM

291 Imelda Contreras 6/20/2022 3:13 PM

292 Camille Reinecker 6/20/2022 3:09 PM

293 Gustavo Espehed 6/20/2022 2:41 PM

294 Gabriel Garcia 6/20/2022 2:00 PM

295 Kevin S. 6/20/2022 1:48 PM

296 Angel 6/20/2022 1:33 PM

297 Alexandria Vasquez 6/20/2022 12:59 PM

298 Sandra Mijudo 6/20/2022 12:30 PM

299 Joel Saes 6/18/2022 4:22 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 152 of 207



Cielo Design Options

9 / 10

300 Kimberly Yu 6/18/2022 3:57 PM

301 Valerie Gomez 6/18/2022 3:38 PM

302 Mario 6/18/2022 3:32 PM

303 Vicki L. 6/18/2022 2:53 PM

304 Carmela Garribay 6/17/2022 6:07 PM

305 Nestor Padilla 6/17/2022 5:56 PM

306 Amanda Gomez 6/17/2022 4:55 PM

307 Arturo Ortega 6/17/2022 4:38 PM

308 Lupe Estrada 6/17/2022 4:02 PM

309 Victor Gonzales 6/17/2022 3:59 PM

310 Andrew Lugo 6/17/2022 3:40 PM

311 Jose Duerte 6/17/2022 3:29 PM

312 Carlos Saldano 6/17/2022 3:08 PM

313 Jackie Alvarez 6/17/2022 3:02 PM

314 Andrea Ruben 6/17/2022 2:43 PM

315 Ramon Palomares 6/17/2022 2:37 PM

316 Jaime Soto 6/17/2022 2:26 PM

317 Ruby Borromeo 6/17/2022 1:59 PM

318 Rodrigo Loja 6/17/2022 1:47 PM

319 Estrella Rentis 6/17/2022 1:27 PM

320 Camila Benavanta 6/17/2022 1:21 PM

321 Max Cervantes 6/17/2022 12:58 PM

322 Felipe 6/17/2022 12:18 PM

323 Dulcet Herrea 6/17/2022 12:02 PM

324 Luis Valard 6/17/2022 11:47 AM

325 Veronica Grilon 6/16/2022 6:09 PM

326 Isabel Coroneo 6/16/2022 6:03 PM

327 Bertha Veliz 6/16/2022 5:58 PM

328 Humberto salaz 6/16/2022 5:37 PM

329 Daniella Lafuente 6/16/2022 5:28 PM

330 Joaquin Salina 6/16/2022 5:21 PM

331 Matthew Cervantes 6/16/2022 5:12 PM

332 Alma Navarra 6/16/2022 4:57 PM

333 Christopher Minaya 6/16/2022 4:48 PM

334 Estefani Alvidrez 6/16/2022 4:39 PM

335 David Riveras 6/16/2022 4:15 PM

336 Lourdes Rojillo 6/16/2022 4:10 PM

337 Jason Flores 6/16/2022 3:49 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 153 of 207



Cielo Design Options

10 / 10

338 Laura Ponton 6/16/2022 3:29 PM

339 Clarissa Orozco 6/16/2022 3:11 PM

340 Lupita Arroyo 6/16/2022 2:51 PM

341 Robert Siles 6/16/2022 2:37 PM

342 Jonatan Fregoso 6/16/2022 2:30 PM

343 Xinena Mariano 6/16/2022 2:20 PM

344 Alejandra Pazo 6/16/2022 2:06 PM

345 Joshua Gaona 6/16/2022 1:51 PM

346 Fabian Ocampo 6/16/2022 1:13 PM

347 Sofia Ateno 6/16/2022 1:02 PM

348 Jesus Caranza 6/16/2022 12:53 PM

349 Lucas Bailon 6/16/2022 12:47 PM

350 Miguel Sanchez 6/16/2022 12:24 PM

351 Maria 6/16/2022 11:48 AM

352 Ignacio Porde 6/16/2022 11:29 AM

353 Patricia Correa 6/16/2022 11:23 AM

354 Raul 6/16/2022 11:13 AM

355 Ivan Gutierrez 6/15/2022 5:50 PM

356 Juan Crespin 6/15/2022 5:33 PM

357 Daniel Renteria 6/15/2022 4:36 PM

358 Jelani Arriaga 6/15/2022 4:12 PM

359 Diana Sote 6/15/2022 2:26 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 154 of 207



Opciones de Diseño para Cielo

1 / 6

Q1 Primero, nos puede dar su nombre completo?
Answered: 11 Skipped: 0

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Beatriz Moreno 7/2/2022 8:15 PM

2 Jose madrigal 7/2/2022 7:55 PM

3 Maria Flores 7/2/2022 7:39 PM

4 Jose Cruz 7/2/2022 7:19 PM

5 Francisco Escalante 7/2/2022 7:05 PM

6 Guadalupe panuco 7/2/2022 7:00 PM

7 Gabriela Dengra 6/16/2022 2:23 PM

8 Edgar Mejia 6/16/2022 12:07 PM

9 Agustina Quesada 6/15/2022 5:05 PM

10 Saulo Arquido 6/15/2022 3:00 PM

11 Carolina Funte 6/15/2022 1:44 PM

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 155 of 207



Azure Community Development, page 14 

ATTACHMENT B 

SURVEY RESPONSES 

-.. .. 
-I.WI .. .. 
•• .. .. I.WI 
-.. 
-.. .. .. 
•• •• .. 
•• .. 
, ' 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 156 of 207



Powered by

Cielo Design Options
Wednesday, July 13, 2022

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 157 of 207



Powered by

Q2: Are you a resident in the City of San Fernado?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Other (please specify)

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 158 of 207



Powered by

Q2: Are you a resident in the City of San Fernado?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes 89.14% 320

No 10.03% 36

Other (please specify) 0.84% 3

TOTAL 359

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 159 of 207



Powered by

Q3: Are you a business owner in the City of San Fernando?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Yes

No

Other (please specify)

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 160 of 207



Powered by

Q3: Are you a business owner in the City of San Fernando?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes 3.34% 12

No 96.66% 347

Other (please specify) 0% 0

TOTAL 359

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 161 of 207



Powered by

Q4: After learning about the three options our team has proposed for Parking Lot 
No. 3 in Downtown San Fernado, which one do you think will be most beneficial for 
the community?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Option 1: Theater + Shops + 47 For-Sale Townhomes

Option 2: Theater + Shops + 35 For-Sale Townhomes

Option 3: Theater + Shops (No Housing)

Other - share your thoughts on what you would like to see
developed at Parking Lot No. 3

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 162 of 207



Powered by

Q4: After learning about the three options our team has proposed for Parking Lot 
No. 3 in Downtown San Fernado, which one do you think will be most beneficial for 
the community?
Answered: 359   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Option 1: Theater + Shops + 47 
For-Sale Townhomes

50.70% 182

Option 2: Theater + Shops + 35 
For-Sale Townhomes

35.10% 126

Option 3: Theater + Shops (No 
Housing)

13.37% 48

Other - share your thoughts on 
what you would like to see 
developed at Parking Lot No. 3

0.84% 3

TOTAL 359

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 163 of 207



Powered by

Opciones de Diseño para Cielo
Thursday, July 07, 2022

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 164 of 207



Powered by

Q2: Es usted residente de la ciudad de San Fernando?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Si

No

Otro (Por favor especifique)

er'\» SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 165 of 207



Powered by

Q2: Es usted residente de la ciudad de San Fernando?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Si 90.91% 10

No 0% 0

Otro (Por favor especifique) 9.09% 1

TOTAL 11

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 166 of 207



Powered by

Q3: Es usted dueño de negocio en la ciudad de San Fernando?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Si

No

Otra (por favor especifique)

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 167 of 207



Powered by

Q3: Es usted dueño de negocio en la ciudad de San Fernando?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Si 0% 0

No 100% 11

Otra (por favor especifique) 0% 0

TOTAL 11

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 168 of 207



Powered by

Q4: Después de conocer las tres opciones que nuestro equipo ha propuesto para 
el Estacionamiento No. 3 en el Centro de San Fernando, ¿cuál cree que será más 
beneficioso para la comunidad?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Opción 1: Teatro + Tiendas + 47 Casas en Venta

Opción 2: Teatro + Tiendas + 35 Casas en Venta

Opción 3: Teatro + Tiendas (Sin Vivienda)

Otro - comparta sus pensamientos sobre lo que le gustaría ver
desarrollado en el Estacionamiento No. 3.

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 169 of 207



Powered by

Q4: Después de conocer las tres opciones que nuestro equipo ha propuesto para 
el Estacionamiento No. 3 en el Centro de San Fernando, ¿cuál cree que será más 
beneficioso para la comunidad?
Answered: 11   Skipped: 0

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Opción 1: Teatro + Tiendas + 47 
Casas en Venta

27.27% 3

Opción 2: Teatro + Tiendas + 35 
Casas en Venta

45.45% 5

Opción 3: Teatro + Tiendas (Sin 
Vivienda)

27.27% 3

Otro - comparta sus pensamientos 
sobre lo que le gustaría ver 
desarrollado en el 
Estacionamiento No. 3.

0% 0

TOTAL 11

cr'\i SurveyMonkey· 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 170 of 207



ATTACHMENT "B"
July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 171 of 207



July 20, 2020 : ENA Awarded

March to August 2021: Performed Extensive Community Outreach

September to November 2021: Designed 3 Site Plan Options

December 2021: One on one brief ings of Draft Plans with City Counci l

March and Apri l 2022: Formal Review of Site Plan Options by Counci l

Year of 2022 : Ent i t lements and Grant Submittal

1 .

2 .

3 .

4 .

5 .

6 .

PARKING LOT 3
DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

Q 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 172 of 207



OVERVIEW OF THE SITE PLAN OPTIONS

OPTION 1 SUMMARY

16,800 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

47 For-Sale Homes

239 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls 

94 Housing Parking Stalls

9 Residential Guest Parking Stalls

3,835 SF of Public Open Space

3,525 SF of Private Open Space 

OPTION 2 SUMMARY

12,325 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

26 For-Sale Homes

203 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls

52 Housing Parking Stalls

5 Residential Guest Parking Stalls

5,615 SF of Public Open Space

18,950 SF of Private Open Space

4,320 SF Public Benefit Space

OPTION 3 SUMMARY

12,800 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

No Housing

153 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls

15,000 SF of Public Open Space

11,500 SF Public Benefit Space

• • • 

• • • 

• • • 

• • • 
• • • 

• • 
• • 

• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 173 of 207



FOR SALE TOWNHOMES

2 and 3-bedroom units

1,250 to 1,500 square feet of living space

Private Two-Car Garage

Energy Efficient Units

Private Open Space

Community Amenities including BBQs,

Gardens and Play Area

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 174 of 207



SAMPLE TOWNHOME FLOOR PLAN

5TI\NDA D 
STALL 

18.'-1 'i H2' 

29' ' 

TANDAR 
STALL 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

2' r 

I - .._ 

I 
I 
I 

I 

l -~-=-.'....:-==~-=:-,.-:,,_}·.::~--~-;--==-~=.,,~,d 

' Ii,,----

3 BEDROOM - A (MIDDLE) 

-

~ 
CQ 

~ ,, 

II 

~ 

□ 
I 
' . : , ..... 
I 

iQ 11 

I 
I 
I 

I 

t---

15'-6 ta'' 

I 

-----------------------------· 

Li '====:l ~ LJ 

11- f 
II 

D 
"'• I' 

L(i \. !l .,_________. 

- -

29'-8 1/2" 

_li ',{)' 6!-~ 1£.2" 

~ 

a 
--
□ j ·~-Jir 

. 
1z:;;;;::::: 

I 

,I ,, ,---
,I 

,-] i ;--::----:,-"' 

rfll IJ1' I' 

:"!: 
~ 

'? 
:.,,r 

I! 

~n8 I ,-

tj, 
iv; 

~ 
11 ,--0 

fy 
tj" ,-

·~ 
.~ 

-~ -- -

6'-'i 1/2" 

6'-:.1 6'-W j'-1 112" 1()- • _ 

, .. - = --- - ~- . - -.,,_ -- ,. 
j ~ II .□□ l I 

,.. 
8EI\CH 

I -

M ~ I OT 
~ 

..,.~,HE R 
~T" 

' a 
CL<l¼T - 8ATh .... IO 

□ 
j -

I G I 
'I 

aw r.! !'ER" \ 

I 
5 ~ <"O 

Am:IOOW 

I N 'r- ...,__ 

·~ (I C:l! l!iiil 

_J 

CIO . I I 

~ 

I • I 
"EDRCXJ!,' 8E[lfl00 II 

01 02 -~ 7 -rr=l - 6 -

ll I . . 
, I 

-.~ - -
I 

&-111.'4," B'• 11 114" B'-111/2" 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 175 of 207



PUBLIC MARKET + THEATRE

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 176 of 207



PUBLIC MARKET + THEATRE

Public Market is a unique space for local chefs and culinary variety

Public Market will have music, live events and a craft beer garden

Public Market has communal seating and outdoor patios

Cinema above the Public Market with 100 Premium Seats

Cinema has Full Concession Stand and Stadium Seating

Cinema can be used by non-profits/schools during the week for

Community events

• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 177 of 207



OPTION 1
CIELO 

AT SA FERNANDO, ACHOICOMINGA 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 178 of 207



OPTION 1 

SUMMARY

16,800 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

47 For-Sale Homes

239 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls 

94 Housing Parking Stalls

9 Residential Guest Parking Stalls

3,835 SF of Public Open Space

3,525 SF of Private Open Space 

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 179 of 207



PUBLIC 'PARKlNG 
269 STALLS 
•98PRIVATE 

PUBUC AR:KET 
11 .500 SF 

o:PENSPACE 
3,,835 SF 

,PROGRAM MIX 

2-BR RESIDENTIAL 
(8 UNITS) 

3.-BR RESIDENTIAL 
1(39 U NITSJ1 

PRIVATE rQPEN 
. SPACE 

3525SF 
' 

THEATER 
5,300, SF 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 180 of 207



OPTION 1 - GROUND LEVEL 

LEGEND 

0 
e 
e 
e 
e 
0 

Ancestor tree - sycamore 

Central feature highlighting 
Fernandeno Tataviam lribe 

Communal table and seating 
for adjacent retail 

Curbless sidewalk edge 

Text engraved in paving 

Fllexible area for retail or 
public events 

/ Indoor/outdoor connections ,Q 

~ 
,CO 
z 
0 
(fJ 

~ 
:2 
a 
CJ z 
<( 
z 
0::: 
w 
ILL 
z 
<:( 
(j) 

THEATER 
5.100 SF 9 .... ...,, 

36'-0" 

:.i-
~ 
-; □ 
1D 
N 

9 
00 
N 281 

n :::, 

PUBLIC MARK8 
7,000 SF 9 

□ ~ a 

40'-0" 16'-0" 

□ ~ ..,.. 

Oo 
IJ 

0 

001,llll'/!0"1. 
UTIUIY 
&:!JS!' 

5~DJ\ 

ccm£Rcw. PAAKINB elCYCLJ; 
TRASH OFFICE r STOR<GE. PAJ<l;LNB 
2t!SSF 4to SF aoo s, 

~ ~ fi 
II ...... 

~ 
COl\iiMl:R,CIAl. 8, 

F'UEIUC MRKI.NG 

<==i 
1? 

~ ¾a 
N 

~ 

~ 
[l n {I r [l □ 

I 
~ fr I 

24'-0" ,2 ~ 
a n a r □ 

fr 
<:=J 

5' 0 ~ 
~ 

12 

□ □ TI □ 

~ fr 
24'-0" 

121t.-
24'-0" 17 □ ll □ 

¢::::i 
t-? ..,. 
N 

~ 

~ ~ fi 
D a D [J 

~ ~ fi 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 181 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 182 of 207



OPTION 1
TOTAL PROJECT COST $45 Million 

$21.98M Residential Construction Loan 

$4M Commercial Construction Loan

   = $26M or 58% of Project Cost

PRIVATE FUNDING
$0. Project does not require

additional funding. 

FEDERAL FUNDING

Land Contribution

Receives Permit Fees

Receives Reimbursement Agreement

Receives new Sales and Property Taxes

Receives $4.7M Cal Home Revolving

CITY FUNDING

$14M AHSC/IIG

$4.7M Cal Home Grants

  =$18.9M or 42% of Project Cost

STATE FUNDING 

1 • 
• 

• 
• 

• 

4 : 
• 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 183 of 207



OPTION 2

................... ··················•· .. 

--

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 184 of 207



OPTION 2

SUMMARY

12,325 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

26 For-Sale Homes

203 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls

52 Housing Parking Stalls

5 Residential Guest Parking Stalls

5,615 SF of Public Open Space

18,950 SF of Private Open Space

4,320 SF Public Benefit Space

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 185 of 207



PUBLIC IPARKll:NG 
235 + 50 PiRIVATE 

!RESl!DENTIAL. OPE- SPACE 
5,800 SF 

BEBR 1G.ARDEN 
. 161 SF 

PR'OGRAM MIX 

2 BR RESIDENTIAL 
(8 UNIITS.) 

3~BR IRESIDENTIAL 
(3, UNITS) X2 

3JBR RESIDENTI~L 
(2 UNITS,) X2 

2 BR. RESIDENTIAL 
(4 UNITS.) X2 

SMALL BUSINESS CENTER 
4,,320 SF 

THEATER 4 2901 + FOOD 
HALL6874SF 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 186 of 207



OPTION2-GROUNDLEVEL 

LEGEND 

8 Ancestor tree - sycamore 

Raised planters for seniors to 
tend 

e 
0 
e 
e 

• e 

Central feature highlighting 
Fernandeno Tataviam tribe 

Seating 'for adjacent retail 

Curb ess sidewalk edge 

Paving patterns continued into 
Celis Street 

Text engraved m paving 

Flexible area for retail or 
public events 

I ndoor/outdoo:r connections 

. 
0 
::j 
co 
z 
0 
U) 
fQ 
~ 
0 
a z 
<( 
z 
0::: 
w 
LL 

:a: 
~ 

PUBUC MARl(ET 
6,874 sf 

4T-0 11 

BEER 
GARClEf'l, 
1. 161 sr 

RESTROOMS 

RESTROOM$. 

SMALL BUSI.NESS 
CENTER 
~,.3.2(l$1 

□ n 

a □ 

= i==== c::::== = 

D □ 

1MS,T/i.LLS 

□ □ 

D 

[1 0 

~ 
PUElLtC PAAKIOO 

□ □ 

=== === 

D □ 

<::::::::i 
~ ;,. 
<'l 

i=:> 

=== === 

11 

" ,. 
11 II 

1--
□ □ 11 

D □ ~n 

<:=:i 
PUBLLC PARKING 

:,,. 
~ 

c::> 

D a D 

ij fi 
; 

J 

D 

~ 

~ ~ fr 
-

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 187 of 207



OPTION 2 - FIRST LEVEL 

LEGEND 

0 Shaded seating area 

e Resident garden beds 

e Communa grill 

0 Parklet with specimen tree 

e Picnic tables 

C, Flexible lawn space 

0 Flexible deck space 

e Movable Furniture 

C, Planters 

0 
::j 
ca 
z 
0 
V) 
CD 
~ 
0 
0 z 
<( 
z 
0:: 
w 
LL 

z 
~ 

I 
I 

L 

L 

CELIS STREET 

I 

I 

P~CO STREl=.T 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 188 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 189 of 207



OPTION 2
TOTAL PROJECT COST: $33.8 Million  

$11.6M Residential Construction Loan 

$4.8M Commercial Construction Loan

=$16.4M or 48.7% of Project Cost

PRIVATE FUNDING
$3M EDA Grant

=$3M or 8.9% of Project Cost 

FEDERAL FUNDING

Land Contribution 

$1.2M from Housing Trust Fund

Receives Reimbursement Agreement

Receives $2.6M Cal Home Revolving

Receives Permit Fees

Receives new Sales and Property Taxes

=$1.2M or 3.6% of Project Cost

CITY FUNDING

$10.5M AHSC/IIG

$2.6M Cal Home Grants

=$13.1M or 38.8% of Project Cost

STATE FUNDING

1 • 
• 

• 
• 

• 

• 
• 

4 : 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 190 of 207



OPTION 3
CIELO 

AT SAN FERNANDO, ACHOICOMINGA 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 191 of 207



OPTION 3

SUMMARY

12,800 SF Commercial with Public

Market + Theatre

No Housing

153 Public + Commercial Parking Stalls

15,000 SF of Public Open Space

11,500 SF Public Benefit Space

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 192 of 207



OPTIO.N 3 - GROUND LEVEL 

LEGEND 

• • 
e 
e 
e 
e 
fl 
e 
e 

• 
/ 

Ancestor tr,ee sycamore 

Raised planters for seniors to 
tend 

Central feature higihl'ghting 
Ortiz lineage 

Central feature higihl'ghting 
Garcia Ii neag,e 

Central feature higihl'ghting 
Qrt,ega lineage 

Seatiing for adjacent retail 

Curb ess sidewalk edge 

Paving patterns continued into 
Celis Street 

Text engraved 1in paving 

Flexibl,e area for reta il or 
pub ic events 

Indoor/outdoor connections 

F'UBl!.IC MARi<E.T 
4,700sl 

-- --

0 
~ 

SM/!: 

I 

e 
I 

lJ a □ □ 

~ § ~ § 
0 ~ {} <J 

D 
13El8'GARDE [] , .400 i.f 

[] 

0 
0 
[] 

Oo 
0 

§ 

Oo 
0 

0 
BUSINESS CENTER 

3,600 :.f 

80 
(j 

l1o 
0 

~ 

• 
)ft 

e 
D 

0 

- -

CELIS STREET 

BiC'>'qE 

-ING 

□ 

Ci 

□ 

~ _, 
~ 

!J □ 

□ □ 

9 
~ 
<',I 

,._ 
24'-0" 

□ -/----½ □ 

Sl.tAll BUSLNESS 
OENTER 
3,200 sf 

C 

a 

fr === 

~ 
~ 

C 

□ 

8 

<;:::::J 

~ 

□ 

□ 

<=i 

i=>-

n 

Cl 

~ 

~ 

C 

21 

10 

a 

C 

VEHICU\.AR 
RAMP liP 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 193 of 207



OPTION 3
TOTAL PROJECT COST: $19.7 Million  

$6.6M Commercial Construction Loan

= $6.6M or 34% of Project Cost

PRIVATE FUNDING
$3.5M EDA Grant

=$3.5M or 18% of Project Cost 

FEDERAL FUNDING

Land Contribution

$9.6M in City Subsidy or Bond 

Receives Reimbursement Agreement

Receives new Sales Tax

=$9.6M or 49% of Project Cost

CITY FUNDING

$0. State funding prioritizes projects that

include housing, 

STATE FUNDING

1 . • 

• 
• 4 : 

• 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 194 of 207



STATE REQUIREMENTS

SURPLUS LAND ACT: Cities must prioritize the
development of under-utilized sites for
affordable housing.

STATE RHNA REQUIREMENT: San Fernando must
produce 1,795 new housing units by 2029-

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 195 of 207



TIMELINE FOR A SUCCESSFUL DEVELOPMENT

GRANT APPLICATION CALENDAR

ROLLING DEADLINE

Federal EDA 
OCT 2022

Cal Home

 

OCTOBER 2022

AHSC Round 7

 

JUNE 2022

Super NOFA (IIG)

 

Dates are projected until final deadlines are set by the State of California. 

EDA has a rolling application deadline but recommend submittal by end of March. 

CIELO 
AT SAN FERNANDO, ACHOICOMINGA 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 196 of 207



July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 197 of 207



ATTACHMENT "C"

t1 r. ' 
rt 

Azure Co1nmuriity Developnient 

CIELO 
San F1•r1111111lo, A1•hni1·11111i 11gu 

BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP 
TH URSDAY . JULY 14 . 2022 AT 6F M 

WHERE : VALLEY ALARM 

8 04 P IC O ST .. SAN FERNANDO . CA 91340 
PAllKIIHl AVA ILABLE IN THE BACK PARK I NO LOT THAOIJOH CHATSWORTH OR . 

tr you are a Bm.iness Ownor in thr City ur San Fernl\do, 
we want to hear from you! Come to the workshop to learn 
about the Cielo design opi ions and i.hare your thoughts 011 

\\'hat, you would like to ,;ee in a desirable proje<'t in 
Down wn San Fernando! 

officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

vvni:11: I I IUl ~uoy. JU IY 14, c:.v c:.c:., 11 0111 0 lU O J.)111 

l ocation: Valley Alarm. 804 Pico St. (parking lot and entrance is 
behind the building through Chatsworth Dr.) 

The City of San Fernando is working with Azure Development, 
l lC on three design concepts with affordable for-sale residential 
housing and commercial uses on the City's Parking lot No. 3, 
located on San Fernando M ission Blvd, between Cel is Street and 
Pico Street (adjacent to Jack in the Box). 

Option No. 1: Mixed-Use - 47 affordable tor-sale residential 
housing units. with 16,800 square feet for a food halL small
format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses. 

Opt ion No. 2' Mixed-Use - 35 affordable for-sale residential 
housing units. with 12.325 5quare feet for a food halL small
format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses. 

Option No. 3: 100% Commercial - No housing, wit h 12,800 
square feet of commercia l for a food hall, a small -format two
screen movie theater, other retail uses, and wellness/ social 

service center. 

We invite business stakeholders to this workshop to provide 
feedback on what you would like t o see in a desirable proj ect in 
Downtown San Fernando! 

For more information, visit SFCITY.ORG/ Community
Development (see link in bio and go to the Community 
Development page, Parking lot 3 Development section) 

@ richdogg_818 #3 

37m Reply 

4 likes 

46 MINUTES A.GO 

Q Add a comment •. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 198 of 207



i 

Azure Co1n1nunity Develo11ment 

CIELO 
S1u1 Ft•rmu1tlo, Al'hoirio111111gu 

BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP 
THURSDAY , JULY 14 , 2022 AT 6r ~1 

WHERE : VALLEY ALARM 

804 PICO ST .. SAN FERNANDO . CA 91340 
PAAKIHO AVAILABt..E It.I THE 8ACk PAfU(INQ LOT THA:OUCH CHATSWOA:TH OR . 

rr you arP a Businei;s 0", 1er in tlw Cit) of San Fernadu. 
we wa11t to hear from you! l'ome to the workshop to learn 
about lite Cielo design optio11s and sbare your lhoughts on 
what you would like to scl' in a desirable projeet i11 
Down wn San Fernando! 

officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

LUU :fUUll: Vd ll!::'Y J-\ldl Ill, OV4 r'ILU ...)l. \fJCU KH IY IOl emu E::I ILHHK!::' I!) 

behind the building through Chatsworth Dr.) 

The City of San Fernand o is working with Azure Development 
l lC on three d esign concepts wi th affordable for-sale residential 

housing and commercial uses on the City's Parking lot No. 3. 
located on San Fernand o Mission Blvd, between Celis Street and 

Pico Street (adjacent to Jack in the Box). 

Option No. 1: Mixed -Use - 47 affordable for-sale residential 
housing units, with 16,800 square feet for a food hall, small 
format two -screen movie theater, and other commercial uses. 

Option No. 2: M ixed -Use - 35 affordable for-sale residential 
housing units, with 12,325 square feet for a food hall, small 
format two -screen movie theater, and other commercial uses. 

Option No. 3: 100% Commercial - No housing, with 12,800 
square feet of commercial for a food hall. a small -format two
screen movie theater. other retail uses, and wellness/ social 

service center. 

We invite business stakeholders to this workshop to provide 
feedback on what you would l ike to see in a desirable project in 
Dow ntown San Fernando! 

For more information. visit SFCITY.ORG/ Community
Development (see link in bio and go to the Community 
Development page, Pa rking lot 3 Development section) 

2d 

hilacious Option 3 shouldn't even b e considered. We need 

housing here. I appreciate t his being opened up for discussion! 

10h Reply 

o av 
5 likes 

2 OAVS AGO 

Q Add a comment ... 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 199 of 207



officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

service center. 

Come to the workshops to provide feedback on what you would 
ljke to see in a desirable project in Downtown San Fernando! 

For more information, visit SFCITY.ORG/ Community
Development (see link in bio and go to the Community 
Development page. Parking Lot 3 Development section) 

3w 

- valley_veronica Option 3- no more housing 

3w Reply 

0 r4ultme 3 

3w Reply 

, I'! dannyp0626 Option 3! 100% commercial use .~ 
3w Reply 

t) clarissacuri_ Option #3 

3w Reply 

14 likes 

JUNE 18 

ed_when Option 3! 100% commerical use 

3w Reply 

_mehlee Going just to vote for option 3 that is 100% 

commercial use 

3w Reply 

Q Add a comment. .. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 200 of 207



officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

residencial aseqllibles para la venta, con 12,325 pies cuadrados 
para un salon de comidas. un cine de dos pantallas estilo 
pequei\o, y otros usos comerdales. 

[I) Ope ion nu mere 3: 100 % comercial - sin viviendas, con 12,800 
pies cuadrados de uso comercial para un salon de comidas, un 
cine de dos pantallas estilo pequei\c, otros usos comerciales, y 
un centro de bienestar/ servicio social. 

;Venga a los talleres para dar sus comentarios sobre lo que le 
gustaria ver en un proyecto en el centre de San Fernando! 

Para obtener mas informacion, visit el si tio web de las ciudad en 
SFCITY.ORG/ Community-Development (vea el enlace en la 
seccion · bio" y vaya a la pagina de Community Development). 

3w 

el_richrom Old JCPenney building is the perfect place for a 6 
screen movie theater! Been saying this for years & will keep 
saying it in hopes tl1at I can manifest it into reality @IJJJ 

3w 2 likes Reply 

~- dannyp0626 100% comercial ! 
J.'l/e 

3 likes 

3w Reply 

ed_when Opcion 3 Sin Viviendas ! 

3w Reply 

_mehlee Opcion 3 ! 100% comercial , sin viviendas 

3w 1 like Reply 

Q Add a comment... 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 201 of 207



officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

format two-screen movie theater. and other commercial uses. 

0 Option No. 2: Mixed-Use - 35 affordable for-sale residential 
housing units. with 12.325 square feet for a food hall. small
format two-screen movie theater. and other commercial uses. 

[Ij Option No. 3: 100% Commercial - No housing. with 12,800 
square feet of commercial for a food hall, a small-format two
screen movie theater, other retai I uses, and wellness/ social 
service center. 

Come to the workshops to provide feedback on what you would 
like to see in a desirable project in Downtown San Fernando! 

For more information. visit SFCITY.ORG/ Community
Development (see link in bio and go to the Community 
Development page, Parking Lot 3 Development section) 

3w 

- leslie.greise.kelly Option 3! 

3w Reply 

josuph option 2 ! 

3w Reply 

s _mehlee 100% Commercial ! 

3w Reply 

s _mehlee Option 3 ! 

3w Reply 

6 likes 

JUNE 17 

Q Add a comment. .. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 202 of 207



officialcityofsanfernando • Following 
0 

r t:HIC:HlUO IVtl:>!)-IUll D IVU y \...!::'II~ =,t tJUCllU i:::1 Jdl:K 1ft UH:: OUX}, 

La Ciudad de San Fernando esta trabajando con Azure 
Development LLC en tres conceptos de disei\o con v iviendas 
residenciales asequibles para la venta y uses comerciales en el 
Estacionamiento No. 3 de la Ciudad, ubicado en San Fernando 
Mission Blvd, entre Celis Street y Pico Street (adyacente a Jack in 
the Box): 

IT] Opcion numero 1: Uso mixto - 47 unidades de vivienda 
residencial asequibles para la venta, con 16,800 pies cuadrados 

para un salon de comidas, un cine de dos pantallas estilo 
pequeiio, y otros uses comerciales, 

III Opcion numero 2: Uso n,jxto - 35 unidades de vivienda 
residencial asequibles para la venta, con 12,325 p ies cuadrados 
para un salon de comidas, un cine de dos pantallas estilo 

pequeiio, y otros uses comercia les. 

[Il Opcion numero 3: 100 % comercial - sin v iviendas, con 12,800 
pies cuadrados de uso comercial para un salon de comidas, un 

cine de dos pantallas estjlo p equeno. otros uses comerciales, y 
un centre de bienestar/ servicio social. 

;Venga a las talleres para dar sus comenta rios sabre lo que le 
gustar,a ver en un proyectc en el centre de San Fernando! 

Para obtener mas informacion, v isi t el sitio web de las ciudad en 

SFCITY.ORG/ Community-Development (vea el enlace en la 
seccion "bio" y vaya a la pagina de Community Development). 

Edited 3,.. 

!9 _mehlee Opci6n 3 - sin v iviendas 

3w Reply 

2 l ikes 

Q Add a comment, 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 203 of 207



officialci tyofsanfernando • Following 
0 

W0ption No. 3: 100% Commercial - No housing. with 12,800 
square feet of commercial for a food hall, a small -format two
screen movie theater, other retail uses, and wellness/ social 
service center. 

Come to the workshops to provide feedback on what you would 
like to see in a desirable proj ect in Downtown San Fernando! 

Sw 

y.brend.a I understand housing for sale is of interest to the city. 0 
however I don't see an option of housing for those who'd like 
to rent a house because they don't have enough funds to buy 
one. 

4w Reply 

bodeviwineandespressobar The process to get the link is 
complicated and I worry that it will discourage alot of business 
owners and residents from getting zoom link. Is there really 
nothing easier? 

4w Reply 

Hide replfes 

officialcityofsanfernando O 
@bodeviwineandespressobar Thank you for your 
feedback! The link in our bio has been updated to 
(hopefully) make it easier to register. Feel free to call 
or email us and we'll be happy to help guide you 
through the process: (818) 898-1202 or 
info@sfcity.org 

4w 1 like Reply 

0 017 .t Liked by bodeviwineandespressobar and 26 others 

JUNE 8 

Q Add a comment ... 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 204 of 207



City of San Fernando, Government
Published by Hootsuite  ·  · 

You are invited to participate in a Business Stakeholder Workshop to express ideas about 
developing the City’s Parking Lot No. 3.
When: Thursday, July 14, 2022, from 6 to 8 pm
Location: Valley Alarm, 804 Pico St. (parking lot and entrance are behind the building through 
Chatsworth Dr.)

The City of San Fernando is working with Azure Development, LLC on three design concepts with 
affordable for-sale residential housing and commercial uses on the City’s Parking Lot No. 3, 
located on San Fernando Mission Blvd, between Celis Street and Pico Street (adjacent to Jack in 
the Box).

Option No. 1: Mixed-Use – 47 affordable for-sale residential housing units, with 16,800 square 
feet for a food hall, small-format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses.

Option No. 2: Mixed-Use – 35 affordable for-sale residential housing units, with 12,325 square 
feet for a food hall, small-format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses.

Option No. 3: 100% Commercial – No housing, with 12,800 square feet of commercial for a food 
hall, a small-format two-screen movie theater, other retail uses, and wellness/social service center.

We invite business stakeholders to this workshop to provide feedback on what you would like to 
see in a desirable project in Downtown San Fernando!

For more information, visit: https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/...

 
h2

See insights and ads Boost post

2 Comments

Like Comment Share

Most relevant 

Write a comment…

3m

Frank Rizo
Will you address what plans have been addressed to handle the tenant or visitor
parking for any of these development projects ? 
Like Reply Hide Send Message

3m

Author

City of San Fernando, Government
Hi Frank Rizo, great question! Yes, please feel free to attend tonight's meeting
to discuss your question. We will also be posting a FAQ on the City's website
soon.
Like Reply

22

0 0 

Q 

rb 

0 

Azure Community Development 

CIELO 
Sau FPrmuuJo, Arhmcominga 

BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP 
THURSDAY. JULY 14. 2022 AT 6PM 

WHERE , VALLEY ALARM 
804 PICO ST .. SAN FERNANDO. CA 91340 

•AAKINC. AVA l lA9LI I N fHI. ■ AClt ,-APKING LOT THltOUOH Ct!AlliWOIIITH DR . 

tr you al't' a Bu.sineu Owner in t.h• Cily of San F,roado. 
we want lo h1t1ar from yout Come to the worluihop to l•am 
about thr lelo dni o Uont. and ■hare our thou 1ta on 

Azure Community Development 

CIELO 
Sw1 1-'ernando, Arhokorningo. 

TALLER PARA COMERCIANTES 
JUEVES, JULIO 14, 2022 o los 6PM 

DONDE, VALLEY ALARM 

804 PICO ST. SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

ESTACIONA.MIENTO SERA DISPONIBU POR DETU,S EN CHA.TSWOllTH OR. 

Si eres comerciante o dueiio de un negocio en la ciudad 
de San Fernando, tqueremos saber de ti! &Venga al tailor 
para conocer laa opcionee de diaei\o del proyecto Cielo y -
CJ 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 205 of 207

https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=%3C%2CP-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=-UC%2CP-R
https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=https%3A%2F%2Fci.san-fernando.ca.us%2Fcommunity-development%2F%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR0tzP_1nTdtqcefocjAUHSGW-2Jr7p4KNrvddGod96euBAplBwGof8IrSA%23parking-lot-3-development&h=AT0u_WZYg_mqK4wXCxP69z_w21HdhhPT34ebV3zusF_H8Hhs34p8as1SOo2SAKbVccDnBnS20p63-YewYGYh0dzCourK4AewHqYYzSMhwffWdO02cJ7pRHo4JPYT2RPvnrRm&__tn__=-UK-R&c[0]=AT2VQFNG0AfxrQIO4GIEdD1YOWeDjUmWwyOof2dDAcPOqAbymA_KM-3U1oZZHPheSMHphSxFu57_CvD2kOqochYfxCgI6r_3SVElJaqjjSlZbPeTtgHRIvnWZqncEtja3UH7nE4I5K72Ty1MMjQKUuF34x_6FLSPIvpmaK6F5M-otQ
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=%3C%3C%2CP-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=370084931927852&set=pcb.370084978594514&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=*bH-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=370084925261186&set=pcb.370084978594514&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=*bH-R
https://www.facebook.com/ad_center/create/boostpost/?entry_point=www_profile_plus_permalink&page_id=166350947041944&target_id=370084978594514&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=*W-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando/posts/370084978594514?comment_id=392084776239343&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNzAwODQ5Nzg1OTQ1MTRfMzkyMDg0Nzc2MjM5MzQz&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNzAwODQ5Nzg1OTQ1MTRfMzkyMDg0Nzc2MjM5MzQz&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando/posts/370084978594514?comment_id=392084776239343&reply_comment_id=443315977434390&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNzAwODQ5Nzg1OTQ1MTRfNDQzMzE1OTc3NDM0Mzkw&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNzAwODQ5Nzg1OTQ1MTRfNDQzMzE1OTc3NDM0Mzkw&__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?__cft__[0]=AZV67tTfvbXrP1l7KOisD33rATkhxEKBV75hlREweMKnAc0xU0LxQPAodoV_Cu4xz46BjU-ZrYoqVRCqDnVCvlTWaUkdjETZHB2WrdgbdZBLC07laj3MdrVeqbU-b8uoDwioZBBxw0PgTl2pwrYSCN5T&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?ref=tab
https://www.facebook.com/groups/
https://www.facebook.com/gaming/?ref=games_tab
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/166350947041944/inbox/
https://www.facebook.com/166350947041944/inbox/


City of San Fernando, Government
Published by Hootsuite  ·  · 

You are invited to participate in a Business Stakeholder Workshop to express ideas about 
developing the City’s Parking Lot No. 3.
When: Thursday, July 14, 2022, from 6 to 8 pm
Location: Valley Alarm, 804 Pico St. (parking lot and entrance are behind the building through 
Chatsworth Dr.)

The City of San Fernando is working with Azure Development, LLC on three design concepts with 
affordable for-sale residential housing and commercial uses on the City’s Parking Lot No. 3, 
located on San Fernando Mission Blvd, between Celis Street and Pico Street (adjacent to Jack in 
the Box).

Option No. 1: Mixed-Use – 47 affordable for-sale residential housing units, with 16,800 square 
feet for a food hall, small-format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses.

Option No. 2: Mixed-Use – 35 affordable for-sale residential housing units, with 12,325 square 
feet for a food hall, small-format two-screen movie theater, and other commercial uses.

Option No. 3: 100% Commercial – No housing, with 12,800 square feet of commercial for a food 
hall, a small-format two-screen movie theater, other retail uses, and wellness/social service center.

We invite business stakeholders to this workshop to provide feedback on what you would like to 
see in a desirable project in Downtown San Fernando!

For more information, visit: https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/...

 
l t   5 01 1yJ : Pa u 1 M

See insights and ads Boost post

3 Comments 1 Share

Like Comment Share

All comments 

Write a comment…

2d

Frank Rizo
I would like to know what plans are in place for tenant and visitor parking?
Like Reply Hide Send Message

1m

City of San Fernando, Government
Hi Frank Rizo, please feel free to attend the workshop to share your thoughts
and questions.
Like Reply

Reply to Frank Rizo…

2d

Sue Ruval
I like this idea!!
Like Reply Hide Send Message

Write a comment…

11

0 

0 

rb 

0 
0 

Azure Community Development 

CIELO 
Sau FPrmuuJo, Arhmcominga 

BUSINESS STAKEHOLDER WORKSHOP 
THURSDAY. JULY 14. 2022 AT 6PM 

WHERE , VALLEY ALARM 
804 PICO ST .. SAN FERNANDO. CA 91340 

•AAKINC. AVA l lA9LI I N f HI. ■ AClt ,-APKING LO T THltOUO H Ct!AlliWOIIITH DR . 

tr you al't' a Bu.sineu Owner in t.h• Cily of San F,roado. 
we want lo h1t1ar from yout Come to the worluihop to l•am 
about thr lelo dni o Uont. and ■hare our thou 1ta on 

Azure Community Development 

CIELO 
Sw1 F'ernando, Arhokorningo. 

TALLER PARA COMERCIANTES 
JUEVES, JULIO 14, 2022 o los 6PM 

DONDE, VALLEY ALARM 

804 PICO ST. SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340 

ESTACIONA.MIENTO SERA DISPONIBU POR DETU,S EN CHA.TSWOllTH OR. 

Si eres comerciante o dueiio de un negocio en la ciudad 
de San Fernando, tqueremos saber de ti! &Venga al tailor 
para conocer laa opcionee de diaei\o del proyecto Cielo y -
CJ 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 206 of 207

https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=%3C%2CP-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=-UC%2CP-R
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/community-development/?fbclid=IwAR1aMFPhrV34NgMbXyNNuLDk7i95IAcBovO6i2PwdnZY1vmUFLLp2lpzQRw#parking-lot-3-development
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=%3C%3C%2CP-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=368249522111393&set=pcb.368249555444723&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=*bH-R
https://www.facebook.com/photo/?fbid=368249508778061&set=pcb.368249555444723&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=*bH-R
https://www.facebook.com/ad_center/create/boostpost/?entry_point=www_profile_plus_permalink&page_id=166350947041944&target_id=368249555444723&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=*W-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando/posts/368249555444723?comment_id=439735584667998&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNjgyNDk1NTU0NDQ3MjNfNDM5NzM1NTg0NjY3OTk4&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNjgyNDk1NTU0NDQ3MjNfNDM5NzM1NTg0NjY3OTk4&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando?comment_id=client%3Ad004bdb3-f3b9-49da-9ce0-ba2d48ee552e&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/frank.rizo.9?__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/thecityofsanfernando/posts/368249555444723?comment_id=729721278299947&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/zamilovie?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNjgyNDk1NTU0NDQ3MjNfNzI5NzIxMjc4Mjk5OTQ3&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/zamilovie?comment_id=Y29tbWVudDozNjgyNDk1NTU0NDQ3MjNfNzI5NzIxMjc4Mjk5OTQ3&__cft__[0]=AZVl9_2reE0zTeSJPKWtU2hMzaaXAYIOvof9b54URm_WX9tgZbkt8pba1-rdXBIzAzpTL1gFdHF95rnOyP-4Rx-q8LirgRfr0ea6eTAedBHZoFgLWfO4CHvizm9AGhsroT6ljjTw0pAOX5kh1JcIdAwC&__tn__=R]-R
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?ref=tab
https://www.facebook.com/groups/
https://www.facebook.com/gaming/?ref=games_tab
https://www.facebook.com/
https://www.facebook.com/notifications/
https://www.facebook.com/166350947041944/inbox/
https://www.facebook.com/166350947041944/inbox/


City of San Fernando, Government 
Published by Hootsuite $ , 
June 18 at 8:10 AM. 0 

You are invited to participate in Community 
Workshops to express ideas about developing 
the City's Parking Lot No. 3. 

ON SITE WORKSHOP - Saturday, June 18. 
2022, 11 am to 1 pm 
Parking Lot No. 3 located at the corner of San 
Fernando Mission Blvd and Celis St (adj acent to 
Jack in the Box) 

The City of San Fernando is working with Azure 

Development, LLC on three d esign concepts with 
affordable for-sale residential housing and 
commercial uses on the City's Parking Lot No. 3, 
lo ... See more 

Edit 

0 1 2Comments 

r/:J Like CJ Comment F) Share 

Most relevant • 

Eric Rodriguez 
My idea is leave it as a parking lot 

because it is much need ed .• We are 
so overcrowded city streets look like 

car dealerships because there are so 
many cars. 

Like Reply Hide 3w 

~ Authot 

City of San Fernando, 
t vernment 

Eric Rodriguez thank you for 

your input! 

like Reply 3w 

Write a comment. .. 

July 18, 2022 City Council Meeting

Page 207 of 207


	2-FIN_City Warrant (07-18-22) COMBINED
	FIN_City Warrant (07-18-22) AR & ATT A
	FIN_City Warrant (07-18-22) ATT A_EXH A

	3-PER_Special Services Agreement with LCW FY 22-23 (7-18-22) COMBINED
	PER_Special Services Agreement with LCW FY 22-23 (7-18-22) AR
	PER_Special Services Agreement with LCW FY 22-23 (7-18-22) ATT A

	4-RCS_Consideration to Approve ENP MOU_(07-18-22) COMBINED
	RCS_Consideration to Approve ENP MOU_(07-18-22) AR
	RCS_Consideration to Approve ENP MOU_(07-18-22) ATT A
	1. Duties, Responsibilities and Obligations of PARTNER
	2. Duties, Responsibilities, and Obligations of CITY


	5-PD_2nd Reading Ord 1711 Military Equipment Policy (7-18-22) COMBINED
	PD_2nd Reading Ord 1711 Military Equipment Policy (7-18-22) AR
	PD_2nd Reading Ord 1711 Military Equipment Policy (7-18-22) ATT A
	PD_2nd Reading Ord 1711 Military Equipment Policy (7-18-22) ATT A EXH A
	PD_2nd Reading Ord 1711 Military Equipment Policy (7-18-22) ATT B

	6-PW_Trash Svcs Billing PH (7-18-22) COMBINED
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing PH (7-18-22) ATT A
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing PH (7-18-22) ATT A EXH A
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing PH (7-18-22) ATT B
	PW_Trash Svcs Billing PH (7-18-22) ATT C
	PH Notice Tax Lien Property Unpd Trash 21-22 (1st Ad) Publish-L12948-1
	PH Notice Tax Lien Property Unpd Trash 21-22 (1st Ad) Publish-L12948-2
	PH Notice Tax Lien Property Unpd Trash 21-22 (1st Ad) Publish-L12948-3
	PH Notice Tax Lien Property Unpd Trash 21-22 (1st Ad) Publish-L12948-4


	CD_Azure Development Outreach (7-18-22) COMBINED
	CD_Azure Development Outreach (7-18-22) AR
	CD_Azure Development Outreach (7-18-22) ATT A
	2022.07.13.Cielo.SitePlanOptions.OutreachReport
	2022.07.13.Cielo.SitePlanOptions.OutreachReport.pdf
	2022.07.13.Question 1.pdf
	Question 1.pdf
	220713_Cielo.EnglishSurvey.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Q2: Are you a resident in the City of San Fernado?
	Q2: Are you a resident in the City of San Fernado?
	Q3: Are you a business owner in the City of San Fernando?
	Q3: Are you a business owner in the City of San Fernando?
	Q4: After learning about the three options our team has proposed for Parking Lot No. 3 in Downtown San Fernado, which one do you think will be most beneficial for the community?
	Q4: After learning about the three options our team has proposed for Parking Lot No. 3 in Downtown San Fernado, which one do you think will be most beneficial for the community?

	Cielo.SurveyMonkey.Spanish.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Q2: Es usted residente de la ciudad de San Fernando?
	Q2: Es usted residente de la ciudad de San Fernando?
	Q3: Es usted dueño de negocio en la ciudad de San Fernando?
	Q3: Es usted dueño de negocio en la ciudad de San Fernando?
	Q4: Después de conocer las tres opciones que nuestro equipo ha propuesto para el Estacionamiento No. 3 en el Centro de San Fernando, ¿cuál cree que será más beneficioso para la comunidad?
	Q4: Después de conocer las tres opciones que nuestro equipo ha propuesto para el Estacionamiento No. 3 en el Centro de San Fernando, ¿cuál cree que será más beneficioso para la comunidad?



	CD_Azure Development Outreach (7-18-22) ATT B
	CD_Azure Development Outreach (7-18-22) ATT C
	July 13 2022
	July 11 2022
	June 18 2022
	June 18 2022 SP
	June 17 2022
	June 17 2022 SP
	June 8 2022





